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THEMBEREBERE

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

(BR1FFIiE S - KB BB T RENL)

(In HK$ millions unless otherwise specified)

Esl

FEH=

e R (T aEs)
KR N & (KT 5E5)
P& B8 B A5 A (B a25)
HE O SRR (K7225)

Sales

Gross profit

Gross margin

Operating profit (notes 5)

Operating margin (notes 5)

Profit attributable to shareholders (notes 5)
Return on sales (notes 5)

Be RIRTETRIBITER
LEES (K:25)
BEBTE(KiHs)
BEBEE (Ki2s)
R E S (f5E5)

Cash and bank balances less bank loans
Working capital (note 5)

Total assets (note 5)

Total liabilities (note 5)

Shareholders' funds (note 5)

FREN—EXCGEM)
SRR ERR S CEL)
GRS RIR BRE GBL)
FRRIIE CENL)
BRI RIS CEAL)

Earnings per share - Basic (HK cents)
Interim dividend per share (HK cents)
Special interim dividend per share (HK cents)
Final dividend per share (HK cents)

Special final dividend per share (HK cents)

FIEERBEBR (M i25)
FHRRE S B H®RE (H:25)
FEHRAZREL X (BB (A1)
BN X (B8 (A1:25)

Return on average total assets (notes 5)

Return on average shareholders' funds (notes 5)
Inventory turnover on costs (days) (note 1)
Current ratio (times) (note 5)

mignERn8A (T&R)
[RREEGE:

Number of shares outstanding (in thousands)
Market capitalization

P (Hi22)

Number of stores (note 2)

ks Self-operated stores in Group markets
R s Franchised stores in Group markets
EEMISFIHRE Group markets total
JEEETISPITRE (Hi13) Non-group markets total (note 3)
2RI AAE Total stores worldwide
it - Notes:
1. FiEHZ 7B/ 2 FHEKRETLFR A 1. Inventory held at year end divided by cost of sales and multiplied by number of

2. FEAHF

3. HEFEEERA]  PREELA] (2011F KU FTF/E) R
FEZEHAEEFTEEZ TSI

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

days in the year
2. Figures as at year end

3. Stores in markets operated by joint ventures in South Korea and Middle East (prior
year 2011) and third-party franchisees

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #



THEMBEREBERE

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL AND OPERATION HIGHLIGHTS

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
5,381 5,545 5,848 5,673 5,614 4,731 4,233 5,048 4,950 4,372
3,097 3,214 3,551 3,331 3,283 2,731 2,175 2,439 2,357 2,178
57.6% 58.0% 60.7% 58.7% 58.5% 57.7% 51.4% 48.3% 47.6% 49.8%
556 542 828 1,005 909 695 320 325 384 376
10.3% 9.8% 14.2% 17.7% 16.2% 14.7% 7.6% 6.4% 7.8% 8.6%
426 408 663 826 728 537 288 311 295 205
7.9% 7.4% 11.3% 14.6% 13.0% 11.4% 6.8% 6.2% 6.0% 4.7%
1,076 915 1,105 1,173 1,209 978 750 454 474 665
1,405 1,401 1,616 1,555 1,658 1,385 1,047 742 736 862
3,847 3,857 4,469 4,605 3,822 3,320 2,810 2,557 2,935 2,984
881 773 1,220 1,452 1,001 827 624 651 909 894
2,790 2,910 3,096 2,997 2,735 2,408 2,118 1,855 1,927 1,987
27.10 26.00 42.60 53.80 48.20 36.00 19.30 20.80 19.80 13.80
12.50 10.50 16.00 15.00 15.00 4.50 2.00 4.50 4.50 4.50
- - - - - 4.00 - 2.00 2.00 2.00
14.50 14.50 24.00 25.00 23.00 7.00 7.00 3.00 5.00 5.00
- - - - - 11.50 7.00 - 10.00 15.00
11.5% 11.0% 16.1% 21.1% 21.8% 18.5% 11.1% 11.5% 10.3% 7.3%
14.5% 13.8% 21.8% 28.8% 28.3% 23.7% 14.5% 16.4% 15.1% 10.0%
78 80 82 74 95 74 52 42 62 70
2.9 3.1 2.6 2.3 2.8 2.9 3.0 2.3 1.9 2.1
1,570,395 1,569,913 1,566,837 1,543,709 1,521,291 1,496,069 1,491,647 1,491,647 1,491,513 1,490,853
5,701 5,400 10,858 11,501 8,565 6,777 3,431 2,909 5,578 6,336
1,386 1,451 1,499 1,449 1,232 1,052 1,015 1,036 1,000 962
570 559 694 758 838 748 602 512 482 441
1,956 2,010 2,193 2,207 2,070 1,800 1,617 1,548 1,482 1,403
416 442 449 441 601 553 497 458 413 366
2,372 2,452 2,642 2,648 2,671 2,353 2,114 2,006 1,895 1,769
4. 20084 H & Placita: 4. Disposal of Placita in 2008:

RO008F + K2 [ 1] & & 3+ Z X Ik &K B 2 AlPlacita
Holdings Ltd ([Placita]) ° 7<% [T & 7ZPlacitaz 2008

In 2008, the Group disposed of its principal garment manufacturing subsidiary
Placita Holdings Ltd (“Placita’). The Group’s 2008 results excluding Placita are

BlEMEWT - summarized below:

(BRFRIFESN - U B BB TBEN) (In HK$ millions unless otherwise specified) 2008
HER Sales 4,710
E7 Gross profit 2,362
EFIx Gross margin 50.1%
Feg=pinll Operating profit 330
1 ) Operating margin 7.0%
IR R FE AL i F) Profit attributable to shareholders 290
$HE B =X Return on sales 6.2%

5. 2013F A1 2 B F WA FIRAEE B ER19] ER 17
FU 1 7 1€ i 38

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #

The adoption impact of HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” are not reflected in the years
prior 2013
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B WE B ER LSS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

(Chairman and Chief Executive)
Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI
Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN'
CHAN Ka Wai

Non-Executive Directors

CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian
CHAN Sai Cheong

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Barry John BUTTIFANT

KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, JP

Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH

GROUP CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN?

GENERAL COUNSEL AND COMPANY SECRETARY
Mark Alan LOYND

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Barry John BUTTIFANT (Chairman)
KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, JP

Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH (Chairman)
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

Barry John BUTTIFANT

Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman)
Barry John BUTTIFANT

Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu)
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Mark Alan LOYND

' Resignation tendered on March 3, 2016
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

LAWYERS

Hong Kong lawyers
Kennedys
King & Wood

PRC lawyers
King & Wood

REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road
Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRARS AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRARS AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Abacus Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
BNP Paribas

The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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K EAZESE% + MEFAKBETF - 1o AR FH
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GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

Dear Shareholders:

I would like to take this opportunity to thank you for your continuous
support and to thank both the Board of Directors and our employees
for their devotion and hard work throughout the year. Together with
my senior management team and all of our employees around the
world, we will continue to strive to develop the Group’s business and to
deliver shareholder value.

In 2015, the Company’s profit attributable to shareholders amounted
to HK$426 million, a 4% increase over 2014. While consolidated
sales decreased by 3%, gross profit margin held up at 58%, almost
unchanged from the previous year. The Company did, however,
increase comparable same store sales by 3% year-on-year. The Board
has approved a total dividend of 27.0 HK cents per share, in line with
our longstanding policy of returning surplus cash to shareholders. A
thorough discussion and analysis of the 2015 operating results and
financial position is provided by the management in the 2015 Annual
Report.

In the Chairman’s statement of the 2014 Annual Report, | emphasized
that the Company was both aware of and prepared for the difficult
times that lay ahead. In contemplation of the unstable market
conditions, we were steadfast in building core competences, such as
supply chain management, quality assurance and the execution of our
various strategies. On these fronts, we have made steady progress,
and we will continue to hone these strategic competences.

While our overall strategy remains one of concentric diversification
based on solid foundation, our digital strategy will become increasingly
important. Customer behaviours are continuously changing with the
rapid development of smart phones and the increasing prominence
of social media as a retail platform. As such, we will continue to work
on bridging the digital and physical shopping experiences for our
customers, while at the same time exploring additional online and
mobile retail channels.

In terms of geographical expansion, we will employ market-specific
expansion and penetration strategies in mainland China, the Middle
East, Africa and other emerging markets. These efforts will leverage our
existing resources. While we understand that international expansion
is key for business growth, we will not rush into it before we are
prepared and sufficiently confident about the viability of such expansion
penetration strategies.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #
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TREHREE
CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

The key to our overall branding strategy is to couple the pursuit of
operational excellence with quality marketing. Through the execution
of our 5R strategy, we will improve the acceptance and consistency
of our overall product range across all brands. We shall also introduce
lines with higher quality and price points fitting the more discerning
customers while keeping our core items at competitive prices. At
the same time, we will continue to improve our shops and visual
merchandising as well as roll-out quality marketing campaigns to
reinforce our brand position around the world.

Suffice to say, we will strive to continue to generate healthy cash flow
and create shareholder value. That said, we fully understand that the
expectations of our shareholders and the public at large have never
been higher, and the success of our business depends on external
engagement. We will therefore continue to observe the highest
standards of transparency and social responsibility.

More importantly, we will continue to invest in our most valuable asset:
people. | believe our success is determined by our people, so | am
committed towards attracting and retaining talent at all levels of the
Company’s business. Through the re-introduction of our improved Fast
Track Management Trainee Scheme, the senior management team and
I will endeavour to groom and inspire the future generation of leaders
here at Giordano.

While there appears to be widespread consensus on the volatility of
the global economy, there is a feeling of cautious optimism within the
Company.

To our supportive shareholders, valuable business partners and loyal
staff, | thank you once again for sharing your Company’s beliefs.

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Chairman
March 3, 2016

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF



EEEBzmAR 2
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2015F X EWME Overview of 2015 Performance
2E TEE t¥g
Full Year Second Half First Half
(W EEETBEL) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014 Variance = 2015 2014 Variance = 2015 2014 Variance
HEH Sales 5381 5545 (3%) 2,645 2,873 (8%) 2,736 2,672 2%
£ Gross profit 3,007 3214 (4% 1,581 1,649 (7% 1,566 1,565 #FFlat
(0.4pp/ 0.5pp/ (1.4pp/
EH% Gross margin 57.6%  58.0% EAH) 57.9% 574% BHE  572% 586% EAH)
L2ER Operating expenses (2,630)  (2,749) (4%)  (1,291)  (1,384) (7%~ (1,339)  (1,365) (2%)
Lyl Operating profit 556 542 3% 281 309 (9%) 215 233 18%
0.5pp/ (0.2pp/ 1.4pp/
R % Operating margin 10.3% 98% EAE) 106% 108% EAH) 101%  87% BN
EBITDA EBITDA 743 760 (2%) 313 418 (11%) 370 342 8%
FER Net profit 426 408 4% 218 234 (7%) 208 174 20%
0.5pp/ 0.1pp/ 1.1pp/
TS Net profit margin 7.9% 74%  BRE  82% 81% BY%  16% 65% BN
RISEEBHE2EMELTE Free cash flow from operations 644 399 61% 287 145 98% 357 254 41%
ReRBTHEFFE Net cash and bank balances 1,076 915 18% 1,076 915 18% 1,029 940 9%
FERE Inventory balances 491 514 (4%) 491 514 (4%) 453 445 2%
TEREYHKAL
mELE(R) Inventory days on costs (days)’ 78 80 © 78 80 ) 70 73 (3)
FmeE Number of outlets 2311 2452 81) 2811 2452 (81) 2,378 2553 (175)
Net change in outlets
RGeS during the period (1)  (190) M (101 (74) (89)

7

FRATIF 17 BB LA 35 & K A LA 365 A -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& m AR 2

Gl

1 Inventory held at year end divided by cost of sales and multiplied by 365 days.
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EAN27% °

(B8#ET)
(HK$ millions)
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R
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BEEEBzmAR 2N
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Profit Attributable to Shareholders (“PATS”)

During the year, PATS increased by 4% to HK$426 million from
HK$408 million last year. Excluding currency impact, profit attributable
to shareholders increased by 27%.

B R FEAG i A

5 1 9
— S I
500 | e
(10)
400 pm v
R R S i
200 NEN
R
0 \
2014%F R KB BERAM e BAHAM HERRF  MBOBRFEMN  EEEE BA - BREGER FEREZ 20154
BRREGER BRI BRI WAE BRI 2 ARBEFRLD  FEEME  (RTERRE) ERPE RREGER
i £:953
Hitp 8
2014 Decreasein Decreasein Increaesin Increasein Increasein  Increasein Decreasein  Taxation, PATS Currency 2015
PATS profit from  profits from  profits from  profits from  profits from  wholesale share of non-controlling (Exclude impact on PATS
Mainland ~ Hong Kong Taiwan Rest of Middle East profit profit interestsand ~ Currency Income
China & Macau Asia Pacific of joint  other segments  Impact) Statement
ventures
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 & # = 5 R E B AER A A
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'ISE: EE @ Z A L & *ﬁ
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

ERHNERZTE
SNEEREHRZEHFBERBENATEE

AND ANALYSIS

Currency impacts to Income Statement

The impact of foreign currency exchange rates changes had the
following impact on the Income Statement:

RERZ
E¥EE
53]
Currency
BREZE R 7 Z% Depreciation
B Translation Transaction loss on RS R
(U B EE TAEN) (In HK$ millions) Reported difference  difference purchase Adjusted
HER Sales 5,381 219 - - 5,600
EF Gross profit 3,097 126 - 76 3,299
H A Other income 89 1 2 - 92
KEBA Operating Expense (2,630) (104) - - (2,734)
PR R FE 5 5 7 PATS 426 15 2 76 519
INEE B R G AN R K E{E FINEE o The Group operates in foreign jurisdictions which do business in foreign

currencies.

BMEISIMNOR 2 FERBTTE - HIRREGE
MIERK 2 B 18 R1,5008 8 7T » tL AR E
EfeE - BREEE - K - #al - #ing
TTRARE (FREETERDRIEZE12%
16% * 6% * 4% * 8% Kk2%)E X 5B 2 TFH|
FEPMH -

N R 2B ERLRT R ARBEXRF
AREEREZBERLT  r AREERHN - SHE
BRI 2 E A ASIE 07,6008 8 7T ©

BEmME  INEEREHNEAREFEEZEERK
Z AR 2 59,3008 8 T °

W Pt E¥ 2 2 - 20155 JR R FEAE % A
JEARSAER L LA FEERFIHREE
1E% M Z22% @ B2014F 7 REEH %A S
27% °

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

e The impact on PATS of translating the results of these entities

into Hong Kong dollars was a loss of HK$15 million. This was
due to the adverse impact from translation of trading currencies
such as the Indonesian Rupiah, Malaysian Ringgit, Thai Bhatt,
New Taiwan Dollar, Singapore Dollar and the Chinese Yuan which
depreciated against the US dollar by 12%, 16%, 6%, 4%, 8% and
2% respectively over the year.

In markets where we operate in foreign currencies that in the year
depreciated significantly against the US dollar and the Chinese
Yuan, costs of purchasing products sourced in China increased by
HK$76 million due to such currency weakness.

Overall, the impact of foreign currency changes on the Group’s
results was an adverse impact of HK$93 million.

Excluding these currency impacts, 2015 PATS would be HK$519

million, 22% more than the PATS reported in the year and 27%
more than the PATS in 2014.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #



BEEEBzZWmMLK D
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

sHE%E Sales and Gross Profit
HERERRER
Sales growth and contribution
(BEB#ET)
(HKS millions)
6,000 Ovorai o5, o
5,000
1,580 (28%) Mainland China 1,451 (27%)
16%*/ 1 8%
4,000 -
3000 1,640 (30%) Hong Kong & Taiwan 1,610 (30%)
F¥Flat */ | 2%
2,000 DAHMME
1,362 (25%) Rest of Asia Pacific  FSEcE b A0V T/
18%*/13%
1,000 | B ..
617 (11%) IRONRYEARYEA 639 (12%)
Middle East
0 346 (6%) T ;v;if:fgjgﬁ- T }'5_0/:, o 364 (7%)
2014% 20155
CHERERIEFE T E EHRARLEEEERET B
* Sales growth excludes exchange effects % of group sales in brackets

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2015 # iR T A O BE B E R L



EEEBzmAR 2
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BRENEZEEREHEEHEER
Brand sales growth for the last eight quarters

8%
6%
4%
2%
0%
-2%
-4%
-6%
.80
8% 20144 20144 20144 20144 20155 20155 20155 20155
E-ZE E-FE HB=FE ENEE E-ZE BoFE $=FF ENEE
First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2014 2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015 2015
. MR ESEER AP EREER
Total Brand Sales Growth Comparable Store Sales Growth
BRET-RE=EHER
Sales for the last twelve quarters
(A8E#ERT)
(HK$ millions)
1,800 | 1674 00
1,600 1,514 e O U405
1 ,400 """" 1’380’1,3271,2921,2911,3331,2831240 """"""""""
1,200 - [APPINEEE - R I N -l | 390 g
1,000 [ g L e - S
IR 498 | 400 | 437 G 302 | 384 | 3o R 373 | 364 |31 s | | 430 o
600 -
AR o o [ e oo o 0] s
CUVR 174 | 155 [ 155 | 164 | 153 | 144
0 vé 83 o7 6o | 95 | 100 | 75 | 85 | o2 88 83 | 75
2013F 2014F  2015% 2013F  2014F  2015%F 2013% 2014%F 2015% 2013F 2014%F 2015%
E-ZE E-FE E-ZE EoEE F-EE F-EFE BZFE $=FF E=FE BNEE ENEE ZNEE
First First First Second Second Second Third  Third  Third Fourth Fourth Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2013 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015
s KR BERAE m mAHMiEE R m Mz #E 8
Mainland China Hong Kong & Taiwan Rest of Asia Pacific Middle East Wholesale to overseas

12 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BEEEBzmAR 2N
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2 T¥g by
Full Year Second Half First Half
(UEEETAE) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014 Variance 2015 2014 Variance 2015 2014 Variance
BHER Total Sales' 5,381 5,545 (3%) 2,645 2,873 (8%) 2,736 2,672 2%
R miBEE R Global brand sales? 7,321 7379 (1%) = 3,688 3,734 (3%) 3,604 3,645 1%
mERATHEER Comparable store sales’ 3% (4%) 1% (4%) 6% (4%)
7 Gross profit 3,097 3,214 (4%) 1,531 1,649 (7%) 1,566 1,665 % FFlat
(0.4pp/ 0.5pp/ (1.4pp/
EHE Gross profit margin 57.6% 58.0% ENE) 51.9% 574% EHH  51.2%  586% EAE)
FmEE Number of outlets 2,31 2,452 81)  2,3M 2,452 81) 2,378 2,553 (175)
HAMTHEZETE Net change in outlets during
the period (81) (190) W) (101) (74) (89)
7z A B EFE

Gross margin in brackets

7 e S EEEE R NG MR E a5 (17 1 Total Sales are total retail sales in self-operated stores and total wholesale sales to

FHERAE) o franchisees, translated at average exchange rates.

2 PRI ERIEE & (B1EA FEE) - 1185 AT 2 Global Brand Sales are total retail sales, at constant exchange rates, in self-operated
BRARHENG/EE NGRS T i EEAEE (1A stores (include e-shop), franchised stores and stores operated by subsidiaries and
TIEERFE) associates/joint ventures.

3 OB PIF s BRI & N Gl/8 B NGB EEE % 3 Comparable Store Sales are total brand sales, at constant exchange rates, from
e > BEPITH RATF E G2 DR 45T (17 B F PE X existing stores and e-shop that have been opened/operated by subsidiaries and
TE) o associates/joint ventures in the prior year.

EFE L

Gross profit reconciliation

(AE#T)
(HK$ millions)
A 000 [
3,500 | e 27
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2000 wew® 2097 B
1,500 (58-00/0) '''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''' (57.60/0)
1,000 | I
500 [N
0
20145 B mEA RBEY BERED HERN  WEAESR BREEE 20154
EF A RERE FIEB REFERE EF
2014 Decrease in Currency Price Volume Kuwait Exchange 2015
Gross Merchandise Depreciation  Decrease Increase and Qatar Difference Gross
Profit Cost Loss on Acquisition and Stock Profit
Purchase Provision
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Gross margin changes over the last 8 quarters
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Group Sales decreased by 3% to HK$5,381 million in 2015 from
HK$5,545 million in 2014. On a constant currency basis, sales
increased by 1%.

The Group’s gross profit decreased by HK$117 million, or 3.6%,
to HK$3,097 million from HK$3,214 million in 2014. Gross margin
decreased by 0.4 percentage points to 57.6%.

—  Sales volume increased as a result of focusing on core items
but this also resulted in some reduction in average selling
prices. In the first half of the year, sales prices were also
reduced as a result of inventory clearance initiatives.

—  Costs increased due to the relative weakness of many trading
currencies against the US dollar, which reduced gross
margin by 1.4 percentage points, but this was offset by some
improvements in product costs reflecting the core product
mix and purchasing savings from lower raw material costs.

—  The weakness of foreign currencies against the Hong Kong
dollar also reduced gross profit by HK$126 million when these
results were translated into Hong Kong dollars. Excluding this
translation effect, gross profit would have been flat compared
to 2014.
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—  Overall gross margin improved as the year progressed and
in the fourth quarter was 0.8 percentage points favourable
to that in the prior year. This reflects tighter buying budgets,
healthier inventory levels and strong sales price discipline and
a continuous improvement in gross margin management over
the past six quarters.

— Due to unseasonably warm weather in the fourth quarter
across many markets, sales volume declined reduced by 4%
compared to prior year.

Markets — Mainland China

Mainland China sales decreased by 8% in 2015, or HK$129
million, to HK$1,451 million from HK$1,580 million in 2014.
Excluding the effect of translating Chinese yuan into Hong Kong
dollars, sales decreased by 6% in the year.

The key underlying measure of sales growth is brand sales which
represents the end sales of merchandise through Giordano stores,
both self-managed and franchised. This measure excludes the
effects of both currency exchange fluctuations and the impact
of inventory changes undertaken by franchisees. Brand sales in
Mainland China decreased by 6% in 2015 but comparable same
store sales increased by 6% reflecting the closure of loss-making
stores and improvements in our core store portfolio.

Key factors determining sales in China are as follows:

—  Same store sales in the first quarter were strong, against a
weak 2014 base, with a 14% increase in same store sales.
The second half of the year was weaker with same store sales
flat against 12% growth in the first half. Unseasonably warm
weather negatively impacted cold weather merchandise sales
in the fourth quarter resulting in a 2% decline in same store
sales against the same quarter of 2014.

—  During the year, we eliminated unprofitable shops as we
rightsized our portfolio closing 70 more stores in Mainland
China than we opened. This resulted in brand sales
decreasing by 6% in the year but contributed significantly to
improved profitability in this market.

—  We closed a net of 98 self-managed shops, opening a net of
28 franchised shops by comparison. We now have 80 loss
making shops (compared to 145 in 2014) which represents
21% of all self-managed stores (compared to 31% in 2014).
Of these loss-makers, we have 18 that are “significant”
(compared to 33 in 2014) which has contributed significantly
to profitability in 2015.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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— We closed 40 shops in the year that we believe were
detrimental to the brand image. We now have 130 shops
which we see as weakening the brand image, representing
15% of all shops in Mainland China (compared to 18% in
2014 and 31% in 2013). We have downsized the proportion
of street stores, which we see as a less profitable sales
channel, to 15% of all stores compared with 17% in 2014.
Conversely we have increased the proportion of department
store counters to 56% compared to 53% in 2014 reflecting
our strategy to focus on this channel.

- Women-only counters in department stores reduced from
36 to 24 during the year. Overall these counters are profit
making.

— We have reduced inventory held at our franchisees by
HK$5 million from the levels held at the end of 2014 which
did not significantly impact sales in this channel. We are
well positioned to launch new product ranges in 2016
unencumbered by significant amounts of excess stock.

—  We have upgraded/opened 132 self-managed stores (2014:
208) and 162 (2014: 131) franchised stores during the year.
This reflects a change of shop mix towards franchisee stores
which we are developing. Investment per store was at a
similar level to that in 2014 reflecting our strategy to improve
shop ambience and customer experience.

- 91% of our e-sales in Mainland China are through online
third party platforms and revenues through these channels
increased by 23% from HK$162 million in 2014 to HK$199
million in 2015. Sales growth was supported by a significant
new platform.

— In addition to our in-store terminals, we are now enabling
purchasing through social media platforms and are
introducing technology tools such as iBeacon which enables
store location guidance and mobile marketing to our
customers.

Gross profit in Mainland China decreased by 8% with gross margin
decreasing by 0.1 percentage points. Excluding the effect of
translating foreign currencies into Hong Kong dollars, gross profit
decreased by 6%.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #



i —

%EEEZHHL& *ﬁ'

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEmMs  BRMANEREABEANRTFHEER
RARENZLER - F—ZEMHMOCHE
RPELRE ATEE04ENBZELER
BT EEEE s maEREE
R EER P mRR M ERENTFEKE -

MBEMEMNE (EBEERMARE) BN
TAEBESE VAR RMAEBEERNE
mMEMES  MESMBEBNRFNER - £
BEERESEHEB) T - L RE AL EPFIMHE
MERER -

EEREE
EARNEEHEBENITSEB TR D1%E
Q.71EBTT - ATLLWPITH S E BB IN7% ©

AEE BEREMBHEBREERIT%
M2014EE R R4% - B R KB R Eﬁ
BYEENE - B RE - BERY - A2

FRERANEHELARNZSHE EHjTGF'EﬁI%

BIES -

BB ZEFW6.58FEBTHA1,2008 8L E
6.4618 B 7T o EFI R H67.3%F 208 T H
25 266.5% °

P& G A AN 8% &H%EFWIJJ%'IEEI’JF%D
HE - EHFHEERENT —EFE  2FH
EERIE10% - Eﬁmﬁ%IEEW%FDD/WQ ’
mizLIBEEMm HE EFA10% o

B & K F E H & s ike. 62%z‘§ ToR 3%
6391\_//%7-E }R.):F_I:‘FE =5 fﬁﬁﬁgﬁ%ﬂj
BRA1% °

EREESRYNPERENFRELEF
EBREMBERER  FREEFBERE PN

% BINEEHEERDI13% ERMHEE
ERFEPIUALRBENEFTENBERXAEELER
o B S E HE R £20164F -

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #

Overall we saw a change of product mix towards more core
merchandise with lower average selling prices and costs.
Discounting in the first quarter, particularly in the e-channel where
we acted to clear excess winter stocks from 2014, gave way to
stronger price discipline as the year progressed reflecting more
accurate merchandise decisions and healthier stock profiles.

The gross margin of our franchisees themselves (which we
measure through our point of sales system) increased by
1.1 percentage points as we improve the profitability of our
franchisees through more effective merchandising and product
mix. This helps to drive same store sales growth in this channel.

Markets - Hong Kong & Taiwan

Sales in Hong Kong decreased by 1% during the year from
HK$978 million to HK$971 million. Comparative same store sales
increased by 7%.

During the year, Hong Kong apparel sales in the market as a whole
declined by 7%, compared to 4% growth in 2014. This market
is slowing down as the nature of visitors from Mainland China
changes. In response the Company, closed 8 more stores in the
year than it opened, exiting 6 loss making stores.

Gross profit in Hong Kong declined by HK$12 million from
HK$658 million to HK$646 million. Gross margin declined by 0.8
percentage points, from 67.3% to 66.5%.

Merchandise costs decreased by 8% reflecting more functional
merchandise mix. This had some impact on average selling prices
which declined by 10%. Less themed marketing products and
more core items were sold with volume increasing by 10%.

Sales in Taiwan declined by 3% during the year from HK$662
million to HK$639 million. On a constant currency basis, sales and
gross profit increased by 1%.

After a relatively strong Chinese New Year, albeit against a weak
base, sales growth has gradually declined during the year with
fourth quarter sales reducing by 13%. This reflects weak consumer
demand and unseasonably warm weather in the fourth quarter
which delayed the sale of winter merchandise until 2016.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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Gross profit in Taiwan declined by 4% or HK$14 million from
HK$388 million to HK$374 million. Gross margin declined by 0.1
percentage points, from 58.6% to 58.5%. Average costs increased
by 1% due to weak local currency against the Hong Kong
dollar which increased costs by 5% but this was offset by a 4%
reduction in underlying product costs and selling price discipline
which increased average selling prices by 1%.

Markets - South East Asia

Sales in other markets in Asia, notably in Singapore, Malaysia,
Thailand and Indonesia, declined by 3% or HK$45 million to
HK$1,317 million from HK$1,362 million in 2014. On a constant
currency basis, sales increased by 8%. Comparable same store
sales increased by 6%.

— Sales in Singapore decreased by 2% but on a constant
currency basis grew by 6% due to improved merchandising.
Trading conditions continue to be challenging as economic
growth weakens external demand in this market, particularly
in tourist areas where growth was significantly lower than in
residential areas.

— Sales in Malaysia decreased by 19% but in local currency,
decreased by 3%. The introduction of sales taxes and cost
increases due to a weaker Ringgit resulted in negative sales
growth in the second half of the year.

— Sales in Indonesia increased by 2% and on a constant
currency basis by 15% reflecting continuing weakness in the
Rupiah which has been in decline against the US dollar since
August 2013. Demand in this market has been depressed
by a general economic malaise and growth has mainly been
in non-Giordano international brands where we act as a
franchisee. We added 21 new stores including 16 stores from
other brands. Same store sales for other brands increased by
18% and for Giordano by 1%.

— Sales in Thailand increased by 12% and on a constant
currency basis by 19%. A clear focus on core products in this
market has resulted in strong sales momentum. We added 11
new stores in this market which continues to show potential
for profitable store development.

— In Australia, sales declined by 26% in the year and on a
constant currency basis by 11%. Sales were impacted in this
market by closures of loss making shops. Same store sales
increased by 8%.
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Gross profit decreased by 6% with gross margin down by 1.6
percentage points. On a constant currency basis, gross profit
increased by 5%. Currency depreciation in all markets increased
costs by 12% which impacted gross margin by 4.5 percentage
points. Average underlying costs fell 3% and selling price
increases compensated for both these cost increases on a dollar
basis but not sufficiently to prevent margin erosion.

Markets - Middle East

Sales for Middle East markets increased by 4% or HK$22 million
from HK$617 million to HK$639 million. Excluding the acquisition
of the businesses in Kuwait and Qatar sales decreased by 1%.
Comparative same store sales declined by 3%.

— Sales in the United Arab Emirates decreased by 2% in the
year due to changes in visitor patterns and weak consumer
sentiment on the back of falling oil prices.

— In Saudi Arabia, sales stayed flat in the year as economic
growth slowed on the back of falling oil prices.

— In Kuwait and Qatar sales increased by 9% due to strong
performance in Qatar. These sales are now consolidated by
the Group following acquisition of a controlling interest in the
year.

—  Sales to regional franchisees increased by 3% from HK$30.8
million to HK$31.7 million in the year. Some markets were
negatively impacted by political instability in the region but
this decline was offset by modest growth in markets such as
Pakistan and Sri Lanka.

Gross profit increased by 7% with gross margin increasing by
2.1 percentage points. Excluding the impact of consolidating the
Kuwait and Qatari acquisitions, gross profit was flat and gross
margin increased by 0.5 percentage points.

Due to changes in merchandising mix, costs decreased by 3% and
selling prices increased 4%. Volume decreased by 6% as a result
of improved merchandising discipline and focus on more relevant,
core products.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Markets — Wholesale East Asia

Wholesale sales in East Asia increased by HK$18 million, or 5%,
from HK$346 million in 2014 to HK$364 million in 2015 and gross
profit increased by 5% in 2015.

Sales to the Korean joint venture increased by 5% or HK$10
million supplemented by strong growth in Vietnam (up 65%) and
Japan (up 15%).

Gross profit from intercompany sales stayed flat. The net effect of
external and intercompany sales was a 1% increase in gross profit.

Brand Development

Giordano Men: Under the Giordano brand, 72% of sales were
from Men. Brand sales for Men is flat but gross profit increased
by 1%.

— Volume increased by 5% in the year with stronger
performance from spring summer items; cold weather
merchandise sales were impacted by unseasonably warm
weather in the fourth quarter.

— Overall costs decreased by 5% representing savings from
purchasing and a more functional product mix. Average
selling prices decreased by 4% and although gross margin
did increase, gross profit contribution per piece declined.
A high level of stock clearance in the first half of the year
together with price discounting in the fourth quarter, led to
margin pressure on most product categories.

Giordano Women contributed 24% of sales of the Giordano
brand and sales decreased by 1%.

— Volume increased by 4% with strong performance across
categories that have been re-designed. Product development
is ongoing to improve other categories where demand was
weak.

— Although product costs and average selling prices decreased
by 5%, gross margin was flat but gross profit contribution
per piece declined. This brand was subject to the continuous
stock clearance of excess inventories from prior year and
margin is expected to improve going forward as new designs
are introduced.

- We have a total of 46 standalone counters in China and

Thailand after net closure of 11 unprofitable stores. These
stores are profitable overall.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #



EEEzWLR D

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Giordano Ladies® A5 & 58 1/£3.9118/8 T 1%
MM %ZE3.93EB T - £ &% M1E4,0008 % 7T
WE43008ETT - mEREBREENEK
WALHBE - FR - IEMBHEEEREBEEZN
FE LHEHEERBEERFEKRE 2&5
2016 F M S E B R EF R RMITERH - It
MIEBRTAREREERITER - AEEBE
REFEMSENEPREE TREEPHE
R EZ R e

BSX$ &% NR15% » Jy R B RA B 18 5 45 A
B ARAREARERFPRMISHEERE &
2w A R1,4008 BT TREE10088 T - A&
REaltRENEFIRBFER  BMBE
AR ETE TN RPETE - H2016FE£E
BL/EHEE - WM BB EBEEEER
R E - BRI 5 R A9 L FE 52 1 )

Beau Mondefs & H 1% It RIERFE - RE
RA R B R8I EH - BE XS EH
20154 IR /B E1E - B EFITE#BFE2016
F¥eARSEHEY —EABMNTENE S
e HEBEENESRERAK

Eula: lt RIEEHEFRAEFTEQARZLK
KR ERAEMTFEARREES  BH
REFE - REERFRKL  HEEEE
HE &

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #

Giordano Ladies increased sales by 1% in the year from HK$391
million to HK$393 million and operating profit increased from
HK$40 million to HK$43 million. The brand performed well in Hong
Kong and Taiwan in particular. During the year, excess inventory
was cleared across all markets, in particular in South East Asia
and Mainland China and preparations have been made for
improved sales and margins in 2016. This brand is now managed
on a global basis with centralized merchandising and extensive
training of staff across all markets in the customer service
elements of this unique brand.

BSX sales declined by 15% as loss-making stores were closed.
Operating profit declined from HK$14 million to HK$1 million as
a result of operating losses in Mainland China and the Middle
East. In order to increase the competitiveness and profitability
of the brand, shop numbers will continue to be rationalized in
2016 as we will exit the Middle East and focus on Greater China.
Additionally, we will leverage supply chain synergies with Giordano
brands, through fabric consolidation and vendor rationalization.

Beau Monde has now established 28 shops in Greater China
as we develop this new brand. Although these stores have made
modest losses in 2015, in 2016 we expect to establish a profitable
merchandise mix for these stores and grow this new business.

Eula: This brand was developed as a women'’s fashion brand for
Mainland China department stores. Nine stores were operated in
the past two years but due to unprofitable performance this brand
was terminated in the year and operations have been closed.
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HEeSAEBEBRSEM % - FHEFERER
DETHRBEEPEREENEIEEE -

7/p

FHEER D 16% I FEE D RENE RFE
FERRTMSHAKNTERHAEE - 8F7
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EPATEE L BIR S PIEL o

o EHMEEAABREERHTE 2E KERE
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KHHEAAEQARTXH TR EHITER
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HK$2,630 million from HK$2,749 million in last year. Acquisition
of Kuwait and Qatar incurred additional HK$20 million operating
expenses to the Group during the year. Excluding the acquisition
and currency impacts, total operating expenses declined by 1%.

e Total rent costs decreased by 4%. Rent to sales for the Group
decreased from 22.4% to 21.4%. Average shop area decreased
by 3% while rent per square foot decreased by 2%. E-shop rental
however contributed 1% increase in Group's rental. The decline in
average shop area was mainly due to the closure of loss making
shops in Mainland China, with the total average area down by
15%; this was partially offset by the opening of new shops in
developing markets such as Indonesia and Thailand. The 1%
decrease in rent per square foot was mainly attributable to the
increase in the proportion of rental in lower cost markets.

e Shop overhead costs comprise shop depreciation, warehouse,
utilities and credit card charges. Overhead costs decreased by
3% due to the decrease in shop depreciation expense by HK$11
million, mainly in Mainland China, following a net decrease in the
number of stores and decreasing expenditure as shop mix moves
towards department stores away from street stores.
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Total staff costs increased by HK$39 million or 4%. Average staff
headcount decreased by 4%. Additional headcount in South East
Asian markets following store expansion was offset by a reduction
in Mainland China following closure of shops. Average staff costs
per head count increased by 9%. This reflected the increase
in minimum wages and the increase of year-end bonuses by
HK$15 million due to improvement of underlying earnings.

Advertising and marketing expenses decreased by HK$13 million
or 12% due to fewer crossover collaborations with celebrities and
third party organizations this year as our product development
moves in a more functional, less thematic direction.

Total operating expenses as a proportion of sales decreased from
50% to 49%. Costs have been generally well controlled but have
been impacted by inflationary pressure on staff costs in some
developing markets.

In Mainland China, on a constant currency basis, total operating
expenses decreased by 11% or HK$93 million. The reduction is
mainly from reduced rental of HK$54 million (down 16%) and shop
overhead costs of HK$21 million (down 14%). Our network of self-
managed stores reduced by a net of 98 stores, from 472 to 374
as we exited 84 loss making stores in the year. Such closures
contributed to the reduction of shop expenses. Staff costs
reduced by HK$6 million or 2% as average headcount decreased
by 13% but average salaries increased by 12% due to increases in
minimum wage levels and increases in staff bonus.

In Hong Kong, total operating expenses decreased slightly by
1% or HK$3 million. Rent decreased by 3% and rent to sales
decreased by 1 percentage point to 34.4% as we closed 6
inefficient loss making stores. Total average saleable area
decreased by 2% and rent per square foot by 2%. Rent of
comparable stores increased by 5%, (compared to 18% last year).
We started to see easing of rent pressure in Hong Kong and will
cautiously select profitable locations to extend our network in
Hong Kong. Overall staff costs in Hong Kong increased by 6%
with average staff costs increasing by 12% due to higher bonuses,
offset by a decrease in headcount of 5% upon closures of stores.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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In Taiwan, operating expenses increased by 3%. Total operating
expenses to sales increased by 0.9 percentage points to 51.4% as
sales only increased by 1% in local currency. Rentals were up by
2%, in line with sales due to the high proportion of concessionary
rent in department stores. Staff costs increased by 7% due to
average salaries up 4% and headcount up 2%. Despite tough
trading conditions, Taiwan has continuously invested in the brand
by upgrading shop ambiance and thus depreciation and other
shop overhead expense increased by 2%.

Operating expenses in South East Asia decreased by 5%
compared to a decrease in gross profit of 6%. In local currency,
total operating expenses increase by 6%, reflecting high
inflationary pressure in developing markets such as Indonesia,
Malaysia and Thailand. During the year, shop rental increased by
4%, and shop area by 5% reflecting growth in emerging markets.
Store numbers in the Rest of Asia Pacific increased by 18 mainly
in Indonesia and Thailand where we are expanding our reach
into regional shopping centres and department stores. Staff
costs increased by 8%, of which 3% represented an increase in
headcount and 5% represented increases in average salaries.

Operating expenses in the Middle East stayed flat and gross profit
also stayed flat. Shop rental was flat with shop numbers also flat
compared to last year. Staff costs increased by 5% with average
headcount down by 7% and staff cost per head up by 13%,
mainly due to employment of more Saudi nationals in accordance
with local labour laws. Staff productivity also improved as shop
headcount per square foot decreased by 3%

Operating Profit before Other Income

Overall, sales decreased by 3% in the year and gross margin
by 0.4 percentage points resulting in a reduction of gross profit
by 4%. Operating expenses decreased by 4%, resulting in an
Operating Profit before Other Income of HK$467 million, up by
HK$2 million from last year.
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Other Income

Other income increased by HK$12 million from HK$77 million to
HK$89 million. The major changes are due to the following:

- Exchange losses decreased by HK$15 million (2015: HK$2
million; 2014: HK$17 million). We minimize non-functional
currencies kept in local markets to control exchange risks.

— Interest income declined by HK$5 million as a result of
decrease in bank deposits effective interest rate from 2.8%
to 2.1% and the depreciation of local currencies in Mainland
China and South East Asia.

— A gain on disposal of staff quarters in Mainland China of
HK$11 million was recognized during the year (2014: HK$14
million).

Operating Profit

As a result of the above, the Group’s 2015 operating profit
increased by HK$14 million, or 3% to HK$556 million from
HK$542 million in 2014.

Operating profit in Mainland China increased by HK$31 million
from HK$59 million to HK$90 million, up 53% compared to 2014.
Operating margin increased from 3.7% to 6.2%. This was due to:

— Reduction in losses from closure of poorly performing shops
— Reduction in back office costs

— Sales growth in the core portfolio of self-managed and
franchisee stores and online platforms

Operating profit in Hong Kong decreased by HK$5 million from
HK$75 million to HK$70 million, down 7% compared to last
year. Operating margin decreased from 7.7% to 7.2%. Operating
expenses decreased by 1% compared to a decrease in gross
profit of 2%. Going forward, as we focus on core functional
merchandise, price discipline will be imposed to optimize gross
margin.

Operating profit in Taiwan decreased by HK$6 million from
HK$55 million to HK$49 million, down 11% compared to last
year. Operating margin decreased from 8.3% to 7.7%. Currency
depreciation resulted in higher purchasing costs and continuous
brand investment with shop ambiance upgrade caused decline in
profit margin.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Operating profit in the Rest of Asia Pacific decreased by HK$18
million from HK$169 million to HK$151 million, down 11%
compared to last year. Operating margin decreased from 12.4% to
11.5%. Profitability declined by HK$9 million due to the translation
of profits in foreign currency into Hong Kong dollars. Additionally
costs increased by HK$64 million due to weak foreign currencies.
Against this background price increases, improved merchandising,
selective portfolio growth and cost controls improved profitability
by HK$56 million.

Operating profit in Middle East increased by HK$5 million from
HK$107 million to HK$112 million, up 5% compared with last
year. Operating margin increased from 17.3% to 17.5%. Excluding
the acquisition of Kuwait and Qatari operations, operating profit
increased by HK$1 million.

BN e Joint Ventures - South Korea
2 TEHE i 3:3
Full Year Second Half First Half
(HEEETAER) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014 Variance 2015 2014 Variance 2015 2014 Variance
BHERE Total Sales’ 1,545 1,743 (11%) 800 884 (10%) 745 859 (13%)
MEBRMNTHEERE Comparable store sales? (3%) (5%) 1% (10%) (6%) 1%
7 Gross profit 840 969  (13%) 429 487 (12%) 411 482 (15%)
(1.2pp/ (1.5pp/ (0.9pp/
ek Gross profit margin 54.4%  55.6% ENE) 536% 55.1% ENEH) 552% 56.1% BLEH)
i Al Net Profit 84 10 (24%) 46 55 (16%) 38 55 (31%)
ElEABAREN Share of JV profit
LA (BERY (% of equity
1B 48.5%) holding: 48.5%) M 53 (23%) 22 26 (15%) 19 27 (30%)
Fim &R Number of outlets 198 219 (21) 198 219 (1) 200 232 (32)
Net change in outlets
BRPTHEEY TS during the period 1) (25) 2 (13) (19) (12)

7
2

BHERETE G (R TFEFTE) -
EJ L P #4 BB IE A 1 F IR SR/ S 2 HAPTH 2 da
HEBE (KEEEFHE) -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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2

Total Sales are total retail sales translated at average exchange rates.
Comparable Store Sales are total brand sales, at constant exchange rates, from
existing stores that have been opened/operated in the prior year.
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Brand sales growth in South Korea for the last eight quarters
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Sales in Korea declined by 11%. Excluding the effect of translating
the Korean Won into Hong Kong dollars, sales in Korea declined
by 5%. Gross profit declined by 13% (or by 7% in local currency)
and gross margin by 1.2pp. Total operating expenses declined by
11% or 5% in local currency through closing unprofitable stores
and controlling marketing expenses. Net profit declined by 24%
and operating margin declined from 6.3% to 5.4%.

Trading conditions in South Korea have been challenging in
2015. Consumer sentiment in the first quarter was weak and an
initial recovery in demand was deflated by a scare over Middle
East Respiratory Syndrome which reduced tourism in the second
quarter. In the second half there has been modest recovery in
sales volumes.

Income Tax

The Group’s 2015 income taxation expense was HK$118 million
(2014: HK$130 million), resulting in an effective tax rate' of 19.7%
(2014: 21.8%). The decrease in our effective tax rate reflects a
change in profit mix and an increase in profit proportion generated
from low tax markets such as Hong Kong, Singapore and Middle
East.

Income tax expense divided by profit before taxation

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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IR 3R FE (% R Profit Attributable to Shareholders

o 2015 EEME RN A EF4.08(EHB T o 2015 profit attributable to shareholders increased by 4% or HK$18
114% (=%1,800% B 7T) 242618 8 T ° F & million to HK$426 million from HK$408 million last year. Net profit
FEH7.4% EFA05EEHBET7.9% © margin increased by 0.5 percentage points from 7.4% to 7.9%.

o HREANEBRFN D AIEMZE2717%81l o Basic and diluted earnings per share increased to 27.1 HK cents

(20144 : 26.0/ 1) K271l (20144 : (2014: 26.0 HK cents) and 27.1 HK cents (2014: 25.9 HK cents),
25.97%81l) - respectively.
REEERFE2EHRERE Free Cash Flow from Operations

EBIT REKEXKFIEZEHREERE

EBIT and free cash flow from operations

(A8#ET)

(HK$ millions)
0
Y s |
700
600
BO0 | I
QOO0 | B
SO0 [ EIUE R
200 |
TO0 | I

20156  IEREE %ﬁi? i3 gEES HENSR Hith BBE EREER

EBIT AERAT 25 AN ROR 8z BEH
BN T RERE
BB AR F
(HIBRBR B A)
2015 EBIT  Depreciation Capital ~ Share of pre-tax Changesin  Decreaes in Others Tax paid Free cash flow
and expenditure  profit of JV/ working rental deposits & from operations
amortization less disposals associate capital prepayments

(net of dividend less amortization

income)

o D20I5FWEEEBIMBZEBRESMES o  Free cash flow from operations was HK$644 million, an increase

6.4418 7% TT + B & F3.9918 7 JT 18 h12.4518 of HK$245 million, or 61% from HK$399 million last year. The
BT (E61%) - BRI ERRE A28 (LA conversion rate of free cash flow before tax to EBIT was 120%, up
EBITZ bt R A120% * #20144F Z91%1E N 29% from 91% in 2014.

29% o

o HHKEWAEE KMFEMRELFEMEE e  This result is to some degree exceptional and reflects cautious

®HENEERENER (E2016F £ shop opening and renovation policy, timing differences to suppliers
BFE) LA 2015F 5£201 45 54 FI AN B9 B 50 who were paid in early 2016 and lower tax payments for 2014
BL - BEEBESKAE  BrBEEREAH profits paid in 2015. As consumer demand stabilizes some of
TEHALE  AENMERER  BREEHH these cash flows will not repeat and any return to growth will
ERARHAERSEFLHESIRE - require cash investments in new shops and rental deposits.

28 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BERBEESRECHEIN Simplified free cash flow analysis
5
(X EEETEEN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014 Variance
B P15 750 A g Profit before income tax 598 596 5 FFlat
m: EEEEREY
/NI Add: Share of tax of JV/associate 11 15 (27%)
e FEBHRE Add: Interest expense - 1 NEMAn/a
oo AT E R Add: Depreciation and amortization 134 148 (9%)
EBITDA EBITDA 743 760 (2%)
A EemEER Impairment loss on available-for-sale 3 4 (25%)
MEMEEEZRERERE financial asset & leasehold improvement
&N T 2 BESE Impairment loss on associates - 2  NEAn/a
Accounting gain on deemed
BRALEBME AR g5t e disposal of associate 2) - TEAn/a
FERE & RFY
Bt 2 X A] bR 0 B A Share of pre-tax profit of JV/associate (53) (70) (24%)
Net gain on disposal of building &
LEMEREE b2 F = leasehold land (11) (14) (21%)
e TERIBEH Amortization of rental prepayments 50 49 2%
LEEEE Changes in working capital 112 (11) (1,118%)
ERHE Interest paid - (1) “TEMAn/a
EFTIEH Income tax paid (89) (160) (44%)
FEWA - B REAM Interest income, exchange and others (41) (41) F5 FFlat
WEEEBMEBZHESRAFE  Net cash inflow from operating activities 712 518 37%
KEEERNE)
By A a2 B A Dividend income from JV/associate 35 37 (5%)
Capital expenditure less proceeds
BRI E S RIA from disposals (83) (131) (37%)
Increase in rental deposits and
MERS NS ENREL N rental prepayments (31) (41) (24%)
2B Interest received 11 16 (31%)
RBELEBEFTEB2EHARERE  Free cash flow from operations 644 399 61%

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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BEAXRRAX Capital expenditure

o D015F B AL E2014F 14,6008 %7 > o  Capital expenditure decreased by HK$46 million in 2015
BRI AR F B2 BN ESHIER B FTE A compared to 2014. The decrease in capital expenditure was
MBS R IE A A BERAES - mainly due to the slow down of store expansion and tight control

over shop portfolio development.

o  WERD1,4008EBTT RAFEEZEEER LD - o  Depreciation decreased by HK$14 million, reflecting the reduction
in renovations in the year.

EXMX
Capital expenditure
(A&E#ET)
(HK$ millions)
180
160
140
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100
80
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40
20
0
2013%F 2014%F 20154
2013 2014 2015
— R AR wE
Capital expenditure Depreciation
EEESEH Changes in working capital
REFZEBERRBP1121BETT - WTFIFTR © Working Capital in the year decreased by HK$112 million as follows:
BHER
LEES RFER FE1
28 e ERRE
Change Kuwait &  Completion
2014%1273  in Working Qatar dividend Hih 20155128
(UBEEETAEN) (In HK$ millions) Dec 2014 Capital  Acquisition payable Others 2014
g Inventory 514 (27) 4 - - 491
JE W R 3 Trade Receivables 291 27) - - - 264
Hib K Other Receivables 180 (14) 4 - - 170
JERTER R Trade Payables (167) (64) () - - (232)
Hitt A3 Other Payables (293) 20 (5) (20) 27) (325)
525 (112) 2 (20) 27) 368

30 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Inventory

Group inventory in 2014 decreased by HK$23 million from HK$514
million to HK$491 million.

Inventory turnover on costs was 78 days, 2 days less than
last year. Inventory levels are seasonally impacted by an early
Chinese New Year in 2016. Additionally, due to unseasonally
warm weather, sales in the fourth quarter were depressed which
adversely impacted inventory. Against this background, we
exercised strict control over deliveries, pushing inventory back in
the supply chain.

"7E
Inventory

(BEB#ET) (8/)
(HK$ millions) (Days)
700 - 100

-90
600 78
— -1 80
500 -70
400 760
-1 50
>0 291 [
200 -130
100 12
-10
20135128 20145128 20155124
Dec 2013 Dec 2014 Dec 2015
FE REAH
Inventory Turnover days

FEARE (BERRHER2RKER

Total inventory including finished goods at suppliers

2015128 2014512H

(U B EBETAEN) (In HK$ millions) Dec 2015 Dec 2014

REERBEZHRIFE Inventory balance held by the Group 491 514
Inventory balance held by franchisees

REAEMRERBEZHGREFE in Mainland China 75 80

HER2ENE R (RFE) Finished goods at suppliers (not yet shipped) 67 23

AGFEHE Total system inventory 633 617

AEBNUGAEZEEERFEKY - HMEE
MR LW IR FIER 2P B RE NS
ZEE - WREREMTIAHREEIELEE
BERINZHFERE BREMFELLT
BHRREES - W RGFE]IEN3% - AW
HEBBEZFERIBSER]  HERE
AR EERZRME2016FE —FEA
B BB B R - TR HA1E Itk HA R A SR S R
BRENTFEKFE-
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The Group manages inventory levels on an integrated basis.
We monitor our suppliers’ inventory and that of our franchisees
in Mainland China, which we do not own. This ensures that we
do not build up inventory commitments to our suppliers “off
balance sheet”. Due to weak demand in the fourth quarter in cold
weather markets, this “system inventory” increased by 3%. The
merchandise held at suppliers is however generally “fresh” and
improvements in supply chain flexibility mean that we can have
reduced buying commitments over the first quarter of 2016 and
expect to have healthy inventory levels at the end of this period.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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FE W BR =X Trade receivables
o EBEFMA2015E R A2, 7008 BT E2.64/8 o  Trade receivables decreased in 2015 by HK$27 million to HK$264
PETT o ARUNE S5 RIE B B 15 48H - million and days sales outstanding remained the same at 48 days'.

o  F2015F12A31H F BIHAFIBAA%E(GEUEE o  As at December 31, 2015, total overdue accounts were 22% of

HAEFEH22% » 2014F B A25% ° A& B & gross receivables, compared to 25% in 2014. The Group exercises

PEERKINO 2 EE4&46 LHIEBEAIE careful monitoring of outstanding credit balances, particularly

WHABESIER TR RS IEE - overdue amounts, restricting and stopping shipments where
appropriate.

1 B FER RN E HEFKEAZE B URBHEE 1 Prior years' DSO days amended to cater credit sales net of concession rent in

BERAHNE L IEEHER - department stores.
FE UK BR X
Trade receivables
(AB®T) (/)
(HK$ millions) (Days)
350 48 .8 -1 60
300 — 48 -150
250 <40
200
-130
150 - 291 264
100 - 120
50 110
1 1 o
201341248 201445128 20154128
Dec 2013 Dec 2014 Dec 2015
PEUTBR X RUEIHERIE A E
Trade receivables Y Days sales outstanding
32 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

T 7 o BE BB R L F ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F ik



BEEEzWLR D

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FE S BR K

JE 15 BR FUHE 06,5008 B T E2.32B 8 T ° &
EHARBREHSERY - AXFRE
RIEHBA428 0 MR2014F K A328 » F&
fIES0R EHE E MW EmIL e » FHILiE KB
FERMEZE BHNKBRESE201654E
Frigsg o

(BEB#ETT)
(HK$ millions)
250

34

200
150
100
50
20135128
Dec 2013
AN

Trade payables

T
o
all

kg nazai ke ik

Trade payables

Trade payables increased by HK$65 million to HK$232 million.
This was due to longer payment days with days of purchases
outstanding at 42 days compared to 32 days at the end of 2014.
This represents a timing difference as our normal credit terms of
30 days have not changed and some reversal of this position can
be expected in 2016.

P& 15 B 3K

Trade payables

(B)
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201451248
Dec 2014

201551248
Dec 2015

RENERBROEBE

Days purchases outstanding

Share of Profit of Joint Ventures and Associated
Companies and Dividend income received

[ RR @t

South Korea Middle East Total
2 29 28
(UBEFTAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014 Variance 2015 2014 Variance 2015 2014 Variance
BB B ATER Share of pre-tax profit 53 69 (23%) - 1 (100%) 53 70 (24%)

TER

R EY Dividend received’ (35) (37) (5%) - - N/A (35) 87) (5%)
18 32 (44%) - 1 (100%) 18 33 (45%)

/

ZOEEHENARE A% DT R A
A PR E AT AAEEL RS £
o Hop HORIE RN BE A E D AR
Wb o

MR2015%F12A31H @ A & Qa1 H4.67
BB T (2014F : 5A7TEB L) RE 6k o 1k
FHFT1E(48.5%) 2 2.2618 7 JT 3 # 4 f A &
MHEERER -
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This represents the difference between the portion of profit due to
the Group from Joint Ventures and Associated Companies and the
dividends paid to the Group in the year. The reduction is due to
the decrease in profit from the Korean joint venture.

At December 31, 2015, the Korean joint venture held cash
balances of HK$467 million (2014: HK$547 million). Giordano’s
(48.5%) share of HK$226 million is not consolidated in our balance
sheet.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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AEBZEFRESWRR Net cash position of the Group
BHERBITEEFEESH

Change in net cash and bank balances
(HEET)
(HK$ millions)
A B0 [
1,600 [
1,400 [
1,200
1,000
800
600
400
200

20144 mEER ERRER BITHRA WEEER IR BIRER 20155
12A3182 EEZEH FEEEHIME Fi858 BMEKK BTEEEE 1283182

REeR&T BeRE BEzRE FEEER ZEREER BEe R\
et o] Fpeaet ]
Netcash&  Free cash flow Dividend paid to Proceeds from  Acqusition of Exchange Net cash &
bank balances on from shareholders and issuance of Giordano difference on bank balances on
31-Dec-2014 operations  non-controlling  new shares Kuwait ~ opening net cash 31-Dec-2015

interests & Qatar & bank balances

. RNREFE 7H S RIETEFEEEIEIN1.61E%FE © The Group increased its net cash and bank balances by

TLE2015F12 831 H 210.76E 4 7T (20144 HK$161 million to HK$1,076 million as at December 31, 2015
128318 : 9.15(@#8 L) ° (December 31, 2014: HK$915 million).
. FARAEMBREBIEATSIE ° Dividends paid during the year comprised the following:
(U B EBETHEN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
014F REARE (R FRE 2014 Final dividend (which brought the full year
EALEERFRMNZ95%) dividend to 95% of the Group’s full year profit) 228 377
2015 R HARR B (EAR K E 2015 Interim dividend (94% of 2015
20155 HR B 7 2 94% ) Group’s interim profit) 196 165
BERNEENBRRZ Dividend paid to non-controlling interests
JEIEFIME S 2R B of subsidiary in Indonesia 46 37
Dividend paid to shareholders and
ENRREFEEHEERZRE non-controlling interests 470 579

o FR - AEEBKEETEMESEI00EB T * HK$E3 milion was raised from the exercise of employee share
options during the year.
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B SNERRRASER

o 20154128318 "EBEBEBIINGA

THISNEIR & A5 R

Treasury, Foreign Currency Risk and Cash
Management

As at December 31, 2015 the Group holds the following foreign
currency cash balances outside Hong Kong:

(BE#7T) (BE#ET)

(HK$ millions)  (HK$ millions)

ETHBEY US dollar pegged currency 143
AR A R E 2 ai g AED in United Arab Emirates 68
DAz FEDR SAR in Saudi Arabia 55
REBRZETH QAR in Qatar 12
RFY 2 R MOP in Macau 8

FETHMER Non US dollar pegged currency 604
FRIAREZ AR RMB in Mainland China 470
ez ENeE IDR in Indonesia 50
FT NI 2 7 NI T SGD in Singapore 31
BRAE 2 FRAEE MYR in Malaysia 15
M 2 R AUD in Australia 10
B 2 Fr ik THB in Thailand 8
R 2 B R KWD in Kuwait 11
BEZHMEE TWD in Taiwan 6
ENE 2z ENE &t INR in India 3

ERBENEEZIEEE Total Foreign Currency Held Outside HK 747

REEBZBRRRENBARRARHWENA o

RERREMBEZRE  UBEHRETER
AEHE  AAKEGZABBBIT/ET -

FER B ARE - 1.78B 8 T 2 N2016F WIE &=
BE1.88FBEBELATADIK - X1.04EE T
2016 F HEIEEZHE -

iR E

EECHRTREERBREFR14.558 (L
(2014%F : FR14581W)  2FREEHA
FR%27.0/8 1L (20144 « Hi%25.0/81) < K&
TERAAMEB T BAFEREEREEFZ
99% °

RBREBRZORRSKFE REFSEHER
2016 F EMEA 2 BERSE » MR EEF
BINE ZIRFE °
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The Group’s policy is to hold cash in its subsidiaries sufficient to
cover the foreseeable cash requirements of the business, remitting
surplus funds to the Group where they will be converted to Hong
Kong/US dollars.

In Mainland China HK$178 million was remitted to Hong Kong in
early 2016, HK$188 million is non distributable and HK$104 million
will be remitted to Hong Kong later in 2016.

Dividends

The Group has decided to pay a final dividend of 14.5 HK cents
per share (2014: 14.5 HK cents) which will result in a full year
dividend of 27.0 HK cents per share (2014: 25.0 HK cents). This
represents HK$424 million which is 99% of the Profit Attributable
to Shareholders in the year.

This reflects a strong cash position and a decision by the Board
to return surplus cash to shareholders in the light of a stable
performance in the first two months of 2016.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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35



36

BEEEBzmARE DM
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Al = R W

20165 - ERREEMENEF 2 M S
BHBRHEBEERLKEENER - PEKEL
BREENEANTNEE L RSB XTRE
EHRFNZOTSERRRRAE - HET
BRBURBATE ERAKEMENFTRT
5 o HPIEHZFIEBIRFEN2016F T & H
BERMBERSEZE -

20155 + I A B K e /9 2 {8 <8 15 B A5
HE - BEARRARESHIUTENRFIBR
BENE - BAR2016FBEEZ AR
FREKEAENESHE  BMEFABE
BZOEBRELERATR - PITH B AL
gl —PEELR/EMIBEEE LH
BE-OEHT  BMONBEEKSESK
BB 2015FMBIEHENIBREFR TR
I L B AU M ER - TEE L 827102016

FREFHE -

AEEHERRENBEISCESTEAED
BEARBMBEANKRESRT T - HR
BRI RRXMNNERENSAFENTFE
BRI E AR BARERERRE LR
R — SIER LI -

FEAREER - KA ATARE BB 7 R B 48
HORBEREENG EEEEEREER
DEHRE « 52 WM E2016F 2x
RRERESFHEE(BABETERBIRL) U
MBRAEREEREHEMEARN TR ZE
o ° 20155 BifE &9 £ 1) K 2 & 78 Bl #§ 752016
FiHE -

ZEAMSHNEERESNTERERENS
A R AN _EBRIER 7 o 7N 5 [ 3 4 HE R R 2R &Y
BE SR £ Bh - 30 IR A DA B 00 1B 5 A AN M A AR
EMEEE - ARBIIHNZELR /2016
FHEREAMWEXRE  EAKEREER
HREIRINRBRE  LHEEERINHE KR
R AR ERBRANESE - R - #
ERRAEBETHEINEEERRE - EINA
EHAHTERENEESE - KB RERK

BUAZBERIFE -
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OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY

Consumer demand during 2015 has been weak across nearly
all the markets in which Giordano does business. A slowdown
in economic growth in Mainland China and Asian currencies
weakening against a strong dollar, have resulted in difficult trading
conditions in our core markets. Falling oil prices and political
instability have also impacted markets in the Middle East where
we do business. We do not foresee any changes in these external
conditions in 2016.

During 2015, we made progress in Mainland China in a number of
areas. Closure of poorly performing shops significantly increased
our profitability in this market. As more contract renewals in 2016
will lead to more opportunities to complete this process, we are
starting to see our core portfolio return to growth and profitability.
Positive same store sales will be enhanced by growth in the
number of outlets, particularly in third and fourth tier cities where
we see a lot of opportunity for our franchisees. Progress in this
area is evident through the growth in the number of franchisee
outlets during 2015 which we expect to continue in 2016.

Growth in Mainland China and improved profitability has been
supported by significant improvement in our supply chain
processes across the Group. Tight control of merchandise
ordering and delivery has resulted in strong inventory control in
the year and we will further extend this through a combination of
prudent buying and supply chain flexibility.

Throughout the Group, our front line teams have been developing
processes and expertise which is significantly enhancing the
effectiveness of merchandise selection and allocation. This will
enable a focus in 2016 on increasing average selling prices as a
result of decreased clearance pricing and a renewed emphasis
on selling and marketing our differentiated products. The
improvements in gross margin throughout 2015 are expected to
continue into 2016.

Currency depreciation in many markets has placed upwards
pressure on the cost of merchandise sourced in Mainland China.
The Group does not speculate on currency changes going forward
and adopts the policy that any increases in costs locally should be
recovered by selling price increases. Recent depreciation of the
Chinese yuan may provide more favourable currency conditions in
2016 but the Group will continue to develop sourcing opportunities
outside China, particularly in Bangladesh and Vietnam, to realize
opportunities from lower cost sources. At the same time, supply
chain development will also focus on flexibility and service which
remain important aspects of aligning supply and demand, avoiding
wrong buys and minimizing inventory.
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AR ZEMENLERERRNE  HSRHES
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R2015%F  HFHEH TEEARBEER
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TERBESEERMBALRMT S 2ENE
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HEBEREFZEMEN  UWE-FPRER
WHiEHERBAERFE -

RIE2015EHRT S EQE - UE T
RTAESERNES -

- O ElE R EGiordano Men Xk
Giordano Women# 18 1% & 5 #94Z /0 im &
EEEHE - BHaRNEIERET -

- Giordano Juniorf kg 75 5 LA #8 LA 2 =X 3%
B EBEAENEENMBAN  ERTFH
AR M T2 o

- Giordano LadiesB & B TRE BN @
BERA—(EE2KME  BEEDAR
—EXENABFmS - FEREFEMNU
REJEETHEINIEDRAS S
A - FER]1E20164F 9] B A3 o

- Beau Mondes2 72 X A 2 ib [& A K (B
mmhE o E2015FHE T2 EMAEEE
BB EBELAE2016FHHERE A
—EAEF B LR R -

- EuaEHMHETEAEMNSEZE®R
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HAPIFE2015F B MBE 7 1 0 # 7 an JA Ko
BEFER - BRTISRAKRDGEERE - 5
Ko - ERFEFERFHHRDKA -
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Control of rental costs has improved in 2015 as economic
conditions in many of our markets have eased. We will remain
vigilant in this area in 2016 and continue to look for business
development initiatives which minimize rentals.

During 2015, a matrix style brand management process was
introduced whereby we look at product development, merchandise
mix, allocation of products to shops and pricing strategies as
a partnership between global brands and local markets. During
2016, we will enhance this initiative by extending this to product
categories to further align product development with local market
needs.

During 2015, we developed a number of brands to better suit the
needs of different groups of customers.

—  The core functional brands of Giordano Men and Giordano
Women are developing well in line with our core brand values
of simplicity, style and function.

—  The Giordano Junior brand will also be developed in a similar
way with more emphasis on value and universality and less
emphasis on fashion elements in the design.

—  Giordano Ladies has developed from a Hong Kong focused
brand to a global brand, although Hong Kong remains a
key profitable market. Much work has been done to clear
obsolete inventory and train personnel in international markets
and this should bear fruit in 2016.

— Beau Monde, our budget brand in Greater China, has
undergone a lot of development activity in 2015 and we are
now confident that we can establish this as a profitable,
growing brand in 2016.

—  Eula, our premium women’s brand developed for Mainland
China, has not proved to be successful and we have
discontinued this brand.

Market conditions in South East Asia have been challenging
in the past two years. During 2015, we significantly improved
merchandising, and therefore profitability, in Singapore but this
will be a tough market going forward. Developing markets such
as Malaysia, Indonesia and Thailand are now maturing and
opportunities to grow, although still available, are decreasing. We
will look to establish a legal entity in Vietham in 2016 and this will
support a steady growth strategy in this emerging market.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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° In the Middle East, political stability and falling oil prices are still
restricting our ability to achieve significant growth. In the long
term, there is a lot of potential in this region. During 2016, in
markets such as the UAE and Saudi Arabia, we will continue to
rigorously implement merchandising disciplines to drive operational
excellence. Additionally, we will look to expand our reach into new
franchisee markets.

° During 2015, we further developed online sales in Mainland China
through a new platform. In 2016, we will look to establish growth
through our existing third party platform partnerships and will look
to invest further in digital marketing to do this. Additionally in 2016,
we will start to establish digital sales channels outside Mainland
China, initially through the development of our own e-shops.

HUMAN RESOURCES

On December 31, 2015, the Group had approximately 8,100
employees (2014: 8,200). The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages and generous, goal-oriented bonuses targeted to different
levels of staff. Senior managers are also offered generous performance-
based bonus schemes and share options as a means for the Group to
reward and retain a high calibre leadership team. We also invest heavily
in training in sales and customer service, management, planning and
leadership development to retain a skilled and motivated workforce.

Fast Track Management Trainee Scheme

In 2014 we established a Fast Track Management Trainee scheme
in Hong Kong, designed to develop managers who can take up
responsibility across our global operations. This scheme takes high
quality graduates from a wide variety of backgrounds and equips
them quickly with a range of skills and experience that enables them
to contribute significantly to the future of the Group. These trainees
will graduate from the scheme in 2016 and we are in the process of
launching the second cohort of this scheme in 2016.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #
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Operating Performance by Market

Summary of total sales, comparable store sales growth
and store development by market

WhEEMTHHER
BHERE Comparable
Total sales store sales

BRHIEBR Summary by market o
(LB EETAER) (In HKS millions) 2015 2014 Variance 2015 2014
A K e Mainland China 1,451 1,580 (8%) 6% (2%)
B KR Hong Kong and Macau 971 978 (1%) 7% (5%)
= Taiwan 639 662 (3%) 1% 1%
N3k Singapore 317 325 (2%) 10% (8%)
EIfe Indonesia 444 436 2% 5% (3%)
SR PE R Malaysia 184 227 (19%) (7%) (8%)
ES Thailand 262 234 12% 15% (7%)
SEM Australia 84 113 (26%) 8% (4%)
HE India 21 25 (16%) (15%) 1%

TEA i A
SR 47 2& Cambodia 5 2 150% N/A N/A
o B 28 UAE 235 241 (2%) (3%) (3%)
i SSTEA = Saudi Arabia 325 325 Flat (3%) (7%)
HER E i = Other Middle East regions 79 51 55% Flat (6%)
ZERDHBEE Retail & Distribution total 5,017 5,199 (4%) 3% (4%)
HEiEER Wholesale sales 364 346 5%
EEBEE Group total 5,381 5,545 (3%)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #
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2015F12H 20145F12H
MTEE  » Number of outlets as at Dec 2015 Dec 2014
o B K Mainland China 891 961
BB MR Hong Kong and Macau 71 79
aE Taiwan 205 199
s Singapore 47 49
Elfe Indonesia 224 203
BRI Malaysia 90 92
Z= Thailand 153 142
B Australia 22 25
ENE India 49 56
S Cambodia 1 1
] g UAE 46 45
pZE SRR (= Saudi Arabia 90 95
R H b b = Other Middle East regions 66 63
L South Korea 198 219
H b T 5 Other Markets 218 223
Rk Group total 2,371 2,452

% m R e Review by Brand
HEH geEw RERAE
Sales Operating profit Operating margin

CEL -7 2 29 %

BEfr) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014 Variance 2015 2014 Variance 2015 2014 Variance
Giordano & Giordano &

Giordano Junior  Giordano Junior 4,302 4,491 (4%) 414 396 5% 9.6% 8.8% 0.8pp/BENE
Giordano Ladies  Giordano Ladies 393 391 1% 43 40 8% 10.9% 102%  0.7pp/BE D&
BSX BSX 167 207 (19%) 1 14 (93%) 0.6% 6.8% (6.2pp/B 7 &)
B Others 155 110 41% 14 15 (7%) 9.0%  13.6% (4.6pp/B 2 %)
FERA#H Retail & Distribution 5017 5199 (4%) 472 465 2% 9.4% 8.9% 0.5pp/ANEH
MmEE Number of outlets 2015 2014
Giordano & Giordano Junior Giordano & Giordano Junior 2,174 2,252
Giordano Ladies Giordano Ladies 71 70
BSX BSX 71 83
H Others 55 47
SEAHE Group total 2,371 2,452

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS
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B K PE Mainland China
2E TEE L¥F
Full Year Second Half First Half
(NEEETBEN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014 Variance 2015 2014 Variance 2015 2014 Variance
BHER Total sales 1451 1580 (8%) 689 807 (15%) 762 773 (1%)
BEESERH Retail self-operated stores 1,060 1,163 (9%) 497 589 (16%) 563 574 2%)
AMBEE HEHER Wholesale to franchisees 391 417 (6%) 192 218 (12%) 199 199 Flat
miEEERS Total brand sales 1,787 1,846 (6%) 818 918 (11%) 919 928 (1%)
B2 Self-operated stores 1,000 1,142 (7%) 504 577 (13%) 556 565 (2%)
mEE Franchised stores 677 704 (4%) 314 341 (8%) 363 363 #VFlat
LEMmEER Comparable store sales 6% (2%) # FFlat 1% 12% (5%)
= Gross profit 776 847 (8%) 375 420 (11%) 401 427 (6%)
(0.1pp/ 2.4pp/ (2.6pp/
EHE Gross profit margin 535%  536% ENH)  544% 52.0% EHE 526% 55.2% EREH)
TEER Operating expenses (714) (823)  (13%) (338) 412)  (18%) (376) (411) (9%)
s Operating profit 90 59 53% 49 29 69% 4 30 37%
2.5pp/ 3.5pp/ 1.5pp/
BERN% Operating margin 62% 37% ANE  14% 36% EHY  54%  39% BEHY
FmeE Number of outlets 891 961 (70) 891 961 (70) 928 1,066 (138)
BEE Self-operated stores 374 472 (98) 374 472 (98) 435 503 (68)
mEE Franchised stores 517 489 28 517 489 28 493 563 (70)
Net change in outlets
HMAMmUBEET TR during the period (70) (200) 37 (105) (33) (95)
= Self-operated stores (98) (60) (61) (31) (37) (29)
mEE Franchised stores 28 (140) 24 (74) 4 (66)
BRANEBZEEFBEAMERBHEEEER
Brand sales growth in Mainland China for the last eight quarters
20%
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5%
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-10%
-15%
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B-RE H=FE FNFE
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mEHERAEER

Total Brand Sales Growth
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20155 2015% 20155
EoFE E=FE ENEE
Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter
2014 2014 2014
AP HHERIER

Comparable Store Sales Growth
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FEXEKEBEE Five-year operations highlights
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
minEE
(AEEBILAZEN) Total sales (in HK$ millions) 1,451 1,580 1,727 1,898 2,029
BEARHEERE
(AT REN) Sales per sq. ft. (in HK$) 1,900 1,900 1,900 1,900 2,100
AL RMmiEERE Comparable store sales 6% (2%) (6%) (6%) 6%
ZEEE(FAR) Retail floor area (square feet) 748,100 835,500 1,001,100 1,077,600 1,173,900
PITI &L B Number of outlets 891 961 1,161 1,243 1,372

ERYE - E AR

Gross profit reconciliation - Mainland China

(A&®ET)
(HKS$ millions)
1,000 [
900 29
|
soo 9 "

700 |-
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200 |-
100 -

0
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20145 RARED BRI SHETR
EH

2014 Cost Price Volume
Gross Decrease Decrease Decrease
Profit

BREZER
FEEE
Exchange
Difference
and Stock
Provision

20155
E
2015

Gross
Profit
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& 2 PY Hong Kong and Macau
2 T¥E L¥E

Full Year Second Half First Half
2 29 28
(NEEETBEN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014 Variance 2015 2014 Variance 2015 2014 Variance
BHER Total sales 971 978 (1%) 492 508 (3%) 479 470 2%

MLBEMTHER Comparable store sales 7% (5%) 4% (5%) 8% (6%)
7 Gross profit 646 658 (2%) 325 338 (4%) 321 320  f5FFlat
(0.8pp/ (0.4pp/ (1. 1pp/
EH% Gross profit margin 66.5% 67.3% ANY)  664% 665% ENY) 67.0% 68.1% ENE)
REER Operating expenses (579) (583) (1%) (288) (292) (1%) (291) (291)  #FFlat
s Operating profit 70 75 %) 38 45 (16%) 32 30 7%
(0.5pp/ (1.2pp/ 0.3pp/
TERTIX Operating margin 7.2% 7%  BA%H) 1.1% 89% ANH)  6.7% 64% EBAH
FimeE Number of outlets 71 79 8) 71 79 8) 74 83 o)

Net change in outlets
BRMmYEEEFE during the period ) 9) @) (4) (5) (5)

BO\EFESEBRRAMREHEERER

Brand sales growth in Hong Kong and Macau for the last eight quarters

15%
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FEXEKEBEE Five-year operations highlights
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
minEE
(AEEBILAZEN) Total sales (in HK$ millions) 971 978 1,042 1,024 997
BEAREERE
(BT REN) Sales per sq. ft. (in HK$) 10,700 10,700 12,400 13,400 12,500
AR miEERE Comparable store sales 7% (5%) 2% 11% 23%
ZEEE(FAR) Retail floor area (square feet) 90,100 92,200 90,800 84,200 77,500
PITI &L B Number of outlets 7 79 88 84 73

BB -FERRM

Gross profit reconciliation - Hong Kong & Macau
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- Taiwan
2 T¥E 3.2

Full Year Second Half First Half
# 28 25
(UEEETEEN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014 Variance 2015 2014 Variance 2015 2014 Variance
BHER Total sales 639 662 (3%) 299 346 (14%) 340 316 8%

MLBEMTHER Comparable store sales 1% 1% (8%) 6% 12% (4%)
e Gross profit 374 388 (4%) 175 203 (14%) 199 185 8%

(0.1pp/ (0.2pp/
EH|% Gross profit margin 58.5%  58.6% AAH) 585% 58.7% EAH) 585%  585% #FFFlat
REER Operating expenses (329) (335) (2%) (160) (179) (8%) (169) (162) 4%
s Operating profit 49 55 (11%) 18 31 (42%) 31 24 29%
(0.6pp/ (3.0pp/ 1.5pp/
TERTIXR Operating margin 7.7% 83% BAH)  6.0% 90% BAH)  91% 76% BAH
P& E Number of outlets 205 199 6 205 199 6 201 199 2
Net change in outlets
MAMMEE2EEE during the period 6 @ 4 - 2 @

RIO\EFEEAEmEHEHERER

Brand sales growth in Taiwan for the last eight quarters
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Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2014 2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015 2015
mAEHEAEER AHLBMTHEEER

Total Brand Sales Growth
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EEEBzmAR 2
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TFE¥EBBE Five-year operations highlights
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
ISR
(U B EETAEN) Total sales (in HKS millions) 639 662 683 732 762
FHREERE
(W& T BEN) Sales per sq. ft. (in HK$) 3,200 3,300 3,200 3,300 3,800
ALRMTIEERE Comparable store sales 1% 1% (4%) (9%) 12%
ZERE(FAR) Retail floor area (square feet) 202,000 200,600 205,500 220,900 219,500
P& A Number of outlets 205 199 201 214 208
ENEHE - E
Gross profit reconciliation — Taiwan
(BE®BT)
(HKS millions)
G
400 | o 5 1
350 N a2 (18)-
300 B
250 [ - -roreereeo o
200 LR
150 B
100 B
5O [
0
2014  @EmAER  FBE% EXEAH #HELA REZER  2015F
EZ b2y REFE wEEE  EA
2014 Decreasein  Currency Price Volume Exchange 2015
Gross merchandise depreciation  Increase Increase Difference Gross
Profit cost loss on and Stock Profit
purchase Provision
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EAHME Rest of Asia Pacific
2E TEE t¥g
Full Year Second Half First Half
(W EEETBEL) (In HK$ milions) 2015 2014 Variance =~ 2015 2014 Variance =~ 2015 2014 Variance
BHER Total sales 1,317 1,362 (3%) 679 733 (7%) 638 629 1%
LM mHEESR Comparable store sales 6% (6%) 3% (4%) 9% (9%)
e Gross profit 773 821 (6%) 391 433 (10%) 382 388 (2%)
(1.6pp/ (1.5pp/ (1.8pp/
= Gross profit margin 58.7%  60.3% ENH) 576% 59.1% ENH) 599% 61.7% EHEH)
REER Operating expenses (622) (659) (5%) (309) (332) (7%) (313) (323) (3%)
e s Operating profit 151 169 (11%) 83 100 (17%) 68 69 (1%)
(0.9pp/ (1.4pp/ (0.3pp/
HERF® Operating margin 11.5% 124% B7E)  122% 136% EBAEH) 107% 11.0% E7H)
FmeE Number of outlets 586 568 18 586 568 18 559 555 4
Net change in outlets
MAMmEEEHTE during the period 18 20 27 13 9) 7

ROENEEESAHMBERBRESHEER

Brand sales growth in Rest of Asia Pacific for the last eight quarters

JBOY [ B /e
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MAEHESBEILR AHBRMTHERIER

Total Brand Sales Growth Comparable Store Sales Growth
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EEEBzmAR 2
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FEXEKEBEE Five-year operations highlights
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
mIHEE
(U BEETAE ) Total sales (in HKS millions) 1,317 1,362 1,460 1,427 1,328
BYFREEHE
(K BT/ ENT) Sales per sq. ft. (in HK$) 2,600 2,800 3,300 3,500 3,700
ALERMTHEERE Comparable store sales 6% (6%) 2% 3% 8%
ZEEE(FAR) Retail floor area (square feet) 558,784 518,900 489,800 428,900 380,200
P& A Number of outlets 586 568 548 482 417

EMNHE - AHMEE

Gross Profit reconciliation — Rest of Asia Pacific

(B8#8x)
(HK$S millions)

1,000 [
900

800 -
700 -
600 -
500 -
400 -
300 -
200 -
100 -

0
20145 BmRA  REEW  EREA  #ELA BREZER  2015F
E W BEER BEERE Eil
2014 Decreasein ~ Currency Price Volume Exchange 2015
Gross Profit merchandise depreciation  Increase Increase Difference Gross
cost loss on and Stock Profit
purchase Provision
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

== ]y=2) Middle East

2E TEE t¥g

Full Year Second Half First Half
(W EEETBEL) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014 Variance =~ 2015 2014 Variance =~ 2015 2014 Variance
BHER Total sales 639 617 4% 319 311 3% 320 306 5%

MLBEMTHER Comparable store sales (3%) (6%) (5%) (8%) 1% (2%)
=il Gross profit 414 387 7% 209 194 8% 205 193 6%
2.1pp/ 3.1pp/ 1.0pp/
% Gross profit margin 64.8% 627% ENE  655% 624% ENE  641% 631% HOH
TEER Operating expenses (302) (283) 7% (157) (140) 12% (145) (143) 1%
s Operating profit 112 107 5% 52 55 (5%) 60 52 15%
0.2pp/ (1.4pp/ 1.8pp/
LR % Operating margin 175% 173% AB7%7%  163% 177% @7XH) 188% 17.0% EHE
Fme e Number of outlets 202 203 (1) 202 203 (1) 202 201 1

Net change in outlets
MAMMEEZEEE during the period (1) 8 - 2 (1) 6

BRI\ EFEFRmEHERER

Brand sales growth in Middle East for the last eight quarters

15%
10%
5%
0%
-5%
-10%
_1E0
15% 20145 20145 20145 20145
E—FE gt F=FE FOEE
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2014 2014 2014 2014
MIBHEHEER
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20155 20155 20154 20154
E—FE [t F=FE FOEE
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2015 2015 2015 2015
ALBRMTHEREER

Comparable Store Sales Growth

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
TR 2

= R BE B

A

49



EEEBzmAR 2
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ENHE-—FREE

Gross profit reconciliation - Middle East

(&%)
(HK$ millions)
450
400
350 |-
300 |-
250 |-
200 |-
150 |-
100 |-
50 -
0
0145 FAES BRLR  BETH NESRE SEZER 20155
4] BEKE FEEE A
2014 Cost Price Volume Kuwait Exchange 2015
Gross Decrease  Increase  Decrease and Qatar difference Gross
Profit acquisition and Stock Profit
Provision
EEAIMBEREELE MR Wholesale Sales to Overseas Franchisees and Joint
Ventures
2% T¥E ¥
Full Year Second Half First Half
2 29 29
(NEEETBEN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014 Variance 2015 2014 Variance 2015 2014 Variance
BHER Total sales 364 346 5% 167 168 (1%) 197 178 1%
FmEE Number of outlets 416 442 (26) 416 442 (26) 414 449 (35)
Net change in outlets
MAMmEEEEE during the period (26) (7) 2 (7) (28) -

EMN-HBEEELFA[HEE
Hivn MR ZTER

Gross profit - Wholesale sales and intra Group

(BEET)
(HK$S millions)

120 114

100 | 1,290 = NN o1 -
80
60
40

20

2014 2015

£ RIEFE oz # B

Intercompany margin Wholesale sales to overseas
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

BEERLT (£/F)  BEFE3R AAEBTHA
Ho-BNMAEARRREZLZECEERTHEZE S K
B o HM1987TF MA KR SEE - I 19942 A8H
RATHAR  RESAI0REERARNEHESRS
By

A TRAEARREEEBR AR ZBLIEHNTT
FE UARER2002FEZ2010F HIEFEEESE
EERARZEMIERNITES - ZMERRHERE
BEARSH LT - BB ATARETIARETH
ERERBRERAZESZERE  UEBEBHEMA
BRAMISEHE -

BT RERERIRBIRERBLEM N2
ARMEBERBTIHERELBULBERBHE
RTEM - BRAMEREFFEHMHAEEERNE
RAREEGTMAGZER - RIMAKREEF
BTN MERZALERXERBABBI2FN
BENE R -

RELBL (HTEFREFEZEE)  BRF%
R20006F1 AMMAARSKE - BRI TESREFE
BE RELBEMATBEKREXY RKHEEAR
SEMEE  NEBEENEMBMFER LA
B ARERMFERER  NESAKENE
BRI - MIBLERRKTELCHEBRDSHERED
RIEMBIGFLR

RELHARBEIAZRTIHEEBELEBULE
BWTABRREEEENBELT BN -

SMERRE (HITEFREFEENHREE)  RF
525% * M2010F8 A MARRA] » R AEEHTT
EXNERVBRE  EERHMKER REE
BRI BEEBTINE - IMARRBZAT - AL
BB F A MNUYBEENSELR  WERNE
BRREN TR RBFEEER - X EEBEFRE
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants 2
SENFAERENMBRBE LR -
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Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter (Chairman), aged 63, is the Group’s Chief
Executive. He is also chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He joined
the Group in 1987, became the Chief Executive on February 8, 1994,
and was elected Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Group on
August 10 in the same year.

Dr. LAU is also an independent non-executive director of Fairwood
Holdings Limited and was an independent non-executive director of
Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd. from 2002 to 2010, both of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Dr. LAU is currently
the Chairman of the Advisory Committees on management and
marketing at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University as well as Adjunct
Professor of Marketing at City University of Hong Kong.

Dr. LAU holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, an MBA degree from the University
of Calgary in Canada and a Master of Buddhist Studies from The
University of Hong Kong. He is a member of The Canadian Institute
of Chartered Accountants and the Society of Certified Management
Accountants of Canada. Dr. LAU had over 12 years of management
and accounting experience in the private and public sectors in Canada
before joining the Group.

Dr. CHAN Ka Wai (Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer),
aged 39, joined the Group in January 2000 and is the Executive
Director and Chief Operating Officer of the Company. Dr. CHAN is
responsible for all of Mainland China while directing the Group’s
operations to meet budget and other financial goals, as well as
establish goals, allocate resources and assess policies to drive the
Group’s performance. Dr. CHAN has over 15 years of experience in the
apparel retailing and marketing business.

Dr. CHAN holds a Doctorate degree in Business Administration from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and a Master of Arts in Global
Business Management from City University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN (Executive Director and Group Chief
Financial Officer), aged 52, joined the Company in August 2010 and is
the Executive Director and Group Chief Financial Officer, responsible
for corporate finance management, investor relations and corporate
governance. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. IRWIN possessed
over 26 years of experience in accounting and corporate finance
management working in the industrial sector and with government
entities in both Hong Kong and the United Kingdom. Mr. IRWIN is a
member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants in the
United Kingdom and holds a bachelors degree from the University of
Liverpool, United Kingdom.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI% 4 (#1772 %)

CIBEETE  R2013F2A1HEZ T AA R T
FTE = o CHUGANIZE £ T1 (B S R (FZE) 2
EEREE BENAARREBEZEEGNKE -

CHUGANISE £ BE IR R [E 2 CEORE F48
I8 BEEEBRFRE - EE - JEM - AR
IMNEVERS o EFPAP R (FZE) B 1EFHRBFE S —RH
2EMBAR  WIRERBUEZE WK UERE
BRSPS E S ERY -

CHUGANIZE £ 1979 F E & £ % © RAI
Ghurair Centrefi\ 32 7 3 B iZ M {l1 3% (Sindbad’ s
Wonderland) * AR REFHEZEAREIRLEF L) o

19934 * CHUGANIZC I AEF BB & &
¥ TRDBRMEEHMENESEHMORS

mig e

Bib BB IR AMEE A AL - CHUGANIYE 4 & 58 3
HPERBDFLOHBEREREERESITH AT
9 PREILEEYFRONTEREER 2 EET
EF2014FFEAE -

CHUGANEEEEftigd  BEHENES 818
& JE 48 25 3 FE /920134 & B AL 1A B 75 EN B CEO 2%
HR 2 BEHRERBRE - FwEm ) Masre
A2013%F ~ 20144 K2015F EEM A At R &
EA120% 2 EIECEO » i IR 2014F E KA
R (P B B 2B 1)) BN R R T8 o

CHUGANIEAERFPRBEMF OB EZAIIBE R
B - R RisRTEXRERC BEY36HF -

CHUGANISE A E XN IERERIE AL (De La
Salle University) " 5B ER KB - W10
2012-20132 FEH KR T —EER D EERKE -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI (Executive Director), aged 57,
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on February
1, 2013. He is also the C.E.O. and Managing Director of Giordano
Middle East FZE and a member of the Management Committee of the
Company.

As C.E.O. and Managing Director of Giordano Middle East,
Mr. CHUGANI heads the group’s business in the Middle East, India,
Africa, Central Asia and Europe. Giordano Middle East (FZE) is a 100%
subsidiary of Giordano International Hong Kong and provides strategic
support, logistics, and management to Giordano’s franchise partners
across the region.

Mr. CHUGANI began his career in 1979 when he set up Sindbad’s
Wonderland, the Middle East first Indoor Family Entertainment Centre at
the Al Ghurair Centre, Dubai.

In 1993, Mr. CHUGANI successfully entered into a joint venture with
Giordano International and has successfully expanded the business
from its original base in the UAE to numerous markets around the
region.

Known for his distinct management and leadership style, Mr. CHUGANI
received the 2014 Retail Professional of the Year Award from the
Middle East and North Africa Shopping Centre and Retailer Awards
organized by the Middle East Council of Shopping Centres and the
International Council of Shopping Centers.

He has received numerous other recognitions during his careers
including: a Special Recognition award in the 2013 Arabian Business
Indian CEO Awards in Dubai, was named one of the Top 20 Indian
CEOs in the Arab World by Forbes magazine in 2013, 2014 and 2015;
and received a special recognition award from the Entrepreneurs
Organization, UAE Chapter in 2014,

Mr. CHUGANI is also a founding member and Advisor of the Middle
East Council of Shopping Centres. His contribution to the retail industry
in the region spans over 36 distinguished years.

Mr. CHUGANI studied business management at De La Salle University
in the Philippines, where he graduated with honours and was bestowed
the St. La Salle Award for 2012-2013 academic year as an outstanding
alumnus by his alma mater, De La Salle University in Manila,
Philippines.
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WMERE L (FEHTEFE) - BFEI6RK - R20124F
S5A22AEZTARNRRIFERNITES - WIFLIEMT
FHAEREBARNTHEF RS FAELE -
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BAREER) BERARMBARAELEERARZ
BEE -FNATHAEEERZEASHBRARNER -
B 4 4 7200349 A E20065F4 A LT RN T AR
BRER1T EBYEERMELR -
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BRENAMBMERFTZRARREELEM -

BETATFROCESFHAGREER  FE2ES
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ZEELE PFESFHREESSER K1 Art
Foundation# B2 X B RANNIEEEEEREER
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SAZREZERARBIFFNITES -REL D
ETEALTRARAAGERESEAR AR ZHIT
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TEREELEMHTEREEHES  BERESR
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RKERRNERE ST ERPEMERE (FF)
KESKRESE -
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Dr. CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian (Non-executive Director), aged
36, was appointed as a Non-executive Director on May 22, 2012.
Dr. CHENG is executive vice-chairman and joint general manager of
New World Development Company Limited, an executive director of
New World China Land Limited, New World Department Store China
Limited, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited and International
Entertainment Corporation, and a non-executive director of Modern
Media Holdings Limited, all being listed public companies in Hong
Kong. He is also a director of Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited and
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited. He is also the chairman of New
World Group Charity Foundation Limited and worked in a major
international bank from September 2003 to April 2006 and has
substantial experience in corporate finance.

Dr. CHENG holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree (cum laude) from Harvard
University, and was conferred the Honorary Doctorate of Humanities by
the Savannah College of Art and Design.

Dr. CHENG is the vice-chairman of the Youth Federation of the
Central State-owned Enterprises, the vice-chairman of All-China
Youth Federation, a member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of
The Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, the chairman
of China Young Leaders Foundation, the honorary chairman of K11
Art Foundation and a member of Board of the West Kowloon Cultural
District Authority.

Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong (Non-executive Director), aged 53, was
appointed as a Non-executive Director on May 22, 2012. He was also
as an executive director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited,
a listed company in Hong Kong. Mr. CHAN has been in the jewellery
industry for 34 years.

Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council
Jewellery Advisory Committee, an administrative director of the Gems
and Jewellery Trade Association of China, an executive vice-chairman
of the Guangdong Gold and Silver Jewellery Chamber of Commerce, a
vice-chairman of the Shenzhen Gold & Jewellery Association, a general
vice-chairman of Gold Association of Guangdong Province, a vice-
chairman of the Guangdong Golden Jewellery and Jade Industry’s
Association and a director of the Gemmological Institute, China
University of Geosciences (Wuhan).
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ERLIETABFHARSEHARE - HESHEAA
g -+ Chartered Management Institute * BB EEH
XMeRBELEESTEG L EATE - BHRLELIRN
013 F2ARKEE T BT ABTIHEERKRE
[ Bt VA

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 71, joined the Group in May 1991. He is also chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Dr. BUTTIFANT is currently a non-executive director of Global-Tech
Advanced Innovations Inc. and China Nepstar Chain Drugstore Ltd.,
both of which are NASDAQ and New York Stock Exchange-listed
companies, respectively. Dr. BUTTIFANT is also an independent adviser
to MCL Financial Group Ltd.

From 2011 to 2014, Dr. BUTTIFANT was an executive director of Hsin
Chong Construction Group Ltd. (“HCCG”) and a non-executive director
of Synergis Holdings Limited (“Synergis”), all of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

In July 2010, Dr. BUTTIFANT was an executive director of the IDT
International Limited. In October 2009, Dr. BUTTIFANT was a director
of Mission Hills Group (“MHG”) — corporate finance and prior to this
appointment, he was the consultant to the Group since December
2008. Prior to joining MHG, Dr. BUTTIFANT served as a principal of
KLC Kennic Lui & Company (“KLC”), a professional accounting firm,
and managing director of KLC Transactions Limited. Prior to joining
KLC, Dr. BUTTIFANT was the executive director — finance of MHG.
In December 2004, Dr. BUTTIFANT was the managing director of
Hsin Chong International Holdings Limited, a controlling shareholder
of both the construction company, HCCG (which was acquired
by MHG in November 2007 and a property management service
company, Synergis (which was acquired by HCCG in September 2008).
Dr. BUTTIFANT was also an alternate director to both public
companies. Dr. BUTTIFANT was an operating partner of Baring
Private Equity Asia Limited. He was also the managing director of Wo
Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited (“Wo Kee Hong”) from 2001 to 2002
and was the Advisor to the board of directors of Wo Kee Hong from
November 2002 to April 2004. Prior to joining Wo Kee Hong, he was
the managing director of IDT International Limited for over 8 years and
had worked for Polly Peck Group and Sime Darby Hong Kong Limited
for more than 11 years in the capacity of finance director and managing
director. Dr. BUTTIFANT was formerly an independent non-executive
director of Alltronics Holdings Limited from 2005 to 2009 and Daiwa
Associate Holdings Limited from 1994 to 2015. Dr. BUTTIFANT is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Chartered
Management Institute, the Hong Kong Management Association
and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He has been awarded an
honorary doctorate of Business Administration (Honoris Causa) by
Edinburgh Napier University, United Kingdom in February 2013.
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Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, JP (Independent Non-executive Director),
aged 65, joined the Company as an Independent Non-executive
Director on April 26, 2004 and is a member of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Mr. KWONG is also an independent non-executive
director of another listed company, AMS Public Transport Holdings
Limited. Mr. KWONG graduated from The University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor of Science degree in Physics and Mathematics and was
awarded a Master of Philosophy degree in Economics and Politics of
Development by the University of Cambridge, England. He has served
in the Government of Hong Kong for 27 years and held positions
principally in the economic and financial fields. He was the Secretary for
the Treasury from 1995 to 1998, with responsibility for public finances,
and Secretary for Information Technology and Broadcasting from
1998 to March 2000, with responsibility for information technology,
telecommunications and broadcasting. He left the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in March 2000 to join the
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited as executive director and
first Chief Executive, following the demutualization and merger of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Futures Exchange and
their associated clearing houses and retired in April 2003. Since then,
Mr. KWONG had served as the managing director/executive director/
non-executive director of various companies, including Hsin Chong
International Holdings Ltd, Hongkong Sales (Int’l) Ltd, Macau Legend
Development Ltd and Chenavari Investment Managers (HK) Limited.

Mr. KWONG is a non-official Justice of the Peace in Hong Kong and
has been awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH (Independent Non-executive
Director), aged 55, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on June 28, 2013. He is also chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. RUDOLPH worked
for 18 years as a Fund Manager for Franklin Templeton Investments,
the last 14 in Hong Kong. Over that time, Mr. RUDOLPH developed
extensive knowledge and experience of businesses across the world
and Retail and in Asia Pacific, consumer producers were a particulars
focus. Prior to his employment by Franklin Templeton in Hong Kong,
Mr. RUDOLPH worked for 4 years with Franklin Templeton in the USA,
and before that in London for 7 years at Morgan Stanley, 3 years at
UBS Philips and Drew and 3 years at Coopers and Lybrand (now
part of PricewaterhouseCoopers) in London. Mr. RUDOLPH has been
a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of England and
Wales since 1986. He holds a degree in Economic History from the
University of Durham in the United Kingdom.
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Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) (Independent Non-
executive Director), aged 45, joined the Company as an Independent
Non-executive Director on November 11, 2015. He is also a member of
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of Company

Professor HAUNG is currently a Professor of Management at the
Department of Management, Hong Kong Baptist University. Since
2010, he has served as an Adjunct Professor in the Centre for Work,
Organization and Wellbeing, Griffith University. He has also been
appointed as a Visiting Professor in Shanghai University of Finance and
Economics since 2012.

Professor HUANG received an Honours Diploma from Lingnan
University (Hong Kong) in General Business Management in 1994, a
MA from Lancaster University (England) in Organizational Analysis &
Behaviour in 1996 and his PhD from the University of Groningen (The
Netherlands) in Organizational Psychology in 2002. He has worked as
a trainer for several companies in Hong Kong before commencing his
PhD studies in the Netherlands.

Professor HUANG’s research interests include empowerment;
leadership; employees’ well-being and emotions; cross-cultural
organizational psychology and management issues in China. He has
published inter-alia in the Academy of Management Journal; Journal
of International Business Studies; Journal of Management; Leadership
Quarterly; Journal of Organizational Behavior; Journal of Occupational
and Organizational Psychology; Journal of Cross-Cultural Psychology;
Management and Organization Review; Asia Pacific Journal of
Management; Journal of Environmental Psychology and International
Journal of Cross-Cultural Management.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is dedicated
to maintaining the highest standard of corporate governance within
a sensible and practical framework. The Board firmly believes that
the principles of transparency, accountability and independence are
essential for upholding the interests of all stakeholders and maximizing
shareholder value.

The Board is committed to excellence in corporate governance, it
is responsible for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance as well as compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements. It has reviewed and upgraded the
Company’s Code on Corporate Governance on a regular basis, even
before The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”) introduced the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices and its new edition of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”), as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”). The following items highlight
where the Company’s corporate governance practice surpasses,
attains or varies from the CG Code:
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BHIER COMPLIANCE

En Surpass

o EECTHFNABBIIIHNITESE B LT e  The Board includes four Independent Non-executive Directors,
RAZIRE - surpassing the requirement under the Listing Rules.

LI N/N ﬁﬂ BELEEE Wi AIBEEAN o The Company has a Risk Management Committee that reviews all
Q’T &ﬂ BB EZ%E@ﬁW%%@?E material controls and risk management functions and reports to
A TEH%EA/\iEﬁ/ﬁ?E'J ° the Board twice a year, surpassing the CG Code.

Attain

° Independent Non-executive Directors comprise four members of
the Board, in line with the CG Code for the minimum of one-third
as required under the Listing Rules.

e  The Company maintains appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance, in line with the CG Code.

e Any Independent Non-executive Director who has served more
than nine years will be subject to a separate resolution on further
appointment to be approved by shareholders in line with the CG
Code.

e  The Company adopts the CG Code guidelines on reviewing its risk
management and internal control system.

e  The Company meets all the CG Code mandatory provisions except
the variances mentioned below.

Deviate

e The Company deviates from the CG Code in having the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive performed by the same person.
The advantages of doing so and the balancing measures that
the Company has adopted to protect shareholders’ interests
are discussed in detail under the section “Chairman and Chief
Executive” in this report.

e According to the Bye-Laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”), the
Chairman or the Managing Director are not subject to retirement
by rotation.
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BOARD

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. It sets the Group’s overall objectives
and strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance and reviews the corporate governance standards of the
Company. It also decides on matters relating to annual and interim
results, notifiable transactions, appointments or re-appointments of
Directors, dividends and accounting policies. The Directors, individually
and collectively, are committed to act in good faith in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The strategies and plans as
decided by the Board are implemented by the management. The
management assumes full accountability to the Board for the day-to-
day operation of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Board is composed of four
Independent Non-executive Directors, two Non-executive Directors
and four Executive Directors. The Independent Non-executive Directors
and the Non-executive Directors bring a diverse range of expertise,
skills and experience to provide effective guidance and an outside
perspective to all major decisions of the Group. To assist in the
discharge of their duties, the Directors have free and direct access
to both the Company’s internal and external auditors and procedures
are in place to allow the Directors to obtain independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense. Besides, the Company has obtained
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance in line with the CG
Code.

Given the overall composition of the Board and the expertise, skills
and experience that each Director brings individually, the Group
believes that the Board is appropriately structured to provide sufficient
checks and balances to protect the interests of the Company and
its shareholders. The Board will regularly review its composition
to maintain a proper balance and diversity of expertise, skills and
experience to ensure continued effective leadership and oversight of
the Company’s businesses. Biographical details of the Directors are set
out on pages 51 to 56 of this annual report.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company provides a comprehensive induction package covering the
summary of the responsibilities and liabilities of a director of the listed
company, the constitutional documents and the Guides on Directors’
Duties issued by the Companies Registry to each newly appointed
Director to ensure that he is sufficiently aware of his responsibilities and
obligations as Director.
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The Company Secretary reports from time to time the latest changes
and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices
and other regulatory regime to the Directors with written materials, as
well as organizes seminars on the professional knowledge and latest
development of regulatory requirements related to director’s duties and
responsibilities.

During the year of 2015, a seminar was conducted by the external
professional consultants relating to the roles, functions and duties of a

FrEESEM2ETHEER listed company director. In addition, all Directors also participated in the
following trainings:
EEgHE EIER
Members of the Board Types of Training
BIUFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
/R EL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT A C
BEELSE - GBS ' P Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, JP A-C
REBHIX Professor LEUNG Kwok T8 F/NLA.
(FR2015%F5 A 25 A B tt) (Passed away on May 25, 2015)
=R Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) N3 F/NLA.
(FR2015F 11 A11 B &) (Appointed on November 11, 2015)
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH4E 4 Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH A C

FHITES
WEME L
Rt 8 &

BITES
2 REE L
(FERITHAAZ)
Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI %t 4
XERBE S E
PrEiEiE+

Ar 2R S R/e g /RIS

Non-executive Directors

Dr. CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian A B-C
Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong A'B-C
Executive Directors
Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

(Chairman and Chief Executive) A B-C
Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI A B C
Mr. Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN A'B-C
Dr. CHAN Ka Wai A B-C

attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

B: AW E®N/HEEN/IHELER

giving talks at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

C: &EJHE!/\IZ\%/)@!E

—RER BEFZE

INEEFERZIHE

M hEHER

reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy, general business, director’s training and

responsibilities etc.
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In accordance with good corporate governance principles, the Board
had established three Board Committees: the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee. In addition,
a Management Committee and a Risk Management Committee are
also in place to support the Board and the Board Committees. As
at December 31, 2015, the composition of the Board, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee is set out below. The Management and Risk Management
committees are discussed in the relevant sections in this report.

EREEE REZEE FMEEE
Audit Nomination = Remuneration
ExgRa Members of the Board Committee Committee Committee
UFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
EWRAELT Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT v/ v/ v
BEELE cBS - JP Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, JP v v v
REHE Professor LEUNG Kwok v v v
(FA201595 250 B tt) (Passed away on May 25, 2015)
EBHE Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) v v v
(FR2015F 11 B11B &) (Appointed on November 11, 2015)
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH %t £ Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH v/ v/ v/

(Chairman and Chief Executive) v v

FBTES Non-executive Directors

WEMEL Dr. CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian

PRt S % & Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong

HWITES Executive Directors

2IHEEL Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
(FERTHAEZ)

Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANISE & Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI

NEHRBERE Mr. Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN

REREL Dr. CHAN Ka Wai

REFGREZHILRARE - 15 %EE‘J?/HJ@
BEAHMAMZEE  RELEEES ARZBER
ERAREZEZEHTRABEEBELIFNTES: ME
BIAGEHUEREELRENBERARNESTEPRE
FEERTEFAREALEERABREEEERA
AEFETRBETATES

E5eRA LERREUTHZELFEFTRNATH
50 2 98 3L H) i S (8 ABUAE ©

BEAREAMA/L  BEBILIFNTEE LRI
TEEHARRA 2N °
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The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships with each other except that Mr.
KWONG serves on the board of AMS Public Transport Holdings Limited
as independent non-executive directors; while Dr. CHENG serves on
the board of New World Group and subsidiaries as executive director
and Mr. CHAN serves on the Board of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group
Limited as executive director.

It is the Board’s opinion that this relationship does not affect the
Directors’ independent judgment and integrity in executing their roles
and responsibilities.

None of the Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-Executive

Directors owned any shares of the Company up to the date of this
report.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has confirmed with the Company
in writing his independence from the Company in accordance with
the relevant guidelines. The Company therefore considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

The Board holds four regular meetings a year and additional meetings
as and when required. Regular Board meetings are scheduled in
advance to facilitate the fullest possible attendance. The Company
Secretary assists the Chairman in setting the agenda of the Board
meetings and each Director is invited to present any businesses that
he wishes to discuss or propose at such meetings. Furthermore,
all Directors have access to the Company Secretary for advice and
services to ensure that board procedures and applicable rules and
regulations are adhered to. Board papers are circulated to all Directors
and other attendees not less than three days before the Board
meetings to ensure timely access to relevant information. Draft and final
versions of the minutes are circulated to all Directors for comments.
Any Director who is unable to physically attend any Board meeting may
participate electronically by conference call or via alternate arrangement
in accordance with the Bye-Laws. Moreover, pursuant to the Bye-
Laws, Board approval may also be obtained by way of circulation of
a resolution in writing on urgent matters when convening a Board
meeting is not practicable. Sufficient information and explanatory
materials will be provided to the Directors at the same time when a
resolution in writing is circulated.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, four full Board meetings
were held to review the quarterly performance results and discuss the
Group’s strategy going forward, as well as other business. In addition,
three sets of resolutions in writing were passed.
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Attendances of Directors of the full Board meetings in 2015 are as
follows:

HERB/ERETRE
EEZge3 Board Meeting Meetings attended/held
BIYEHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
2HRAEL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 3/4
B E RS AL - GBS P Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, JP 4/4
REHK Professor LEUNG Kwok 0/2
(FA2015%5 A 25 H B ttf) (Passed away on May 25, 2015)
=B Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) TEA/NA.
(2015511 A11HEZ ) (Appointed on November 11, 2015)
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH4 &= Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH 4/4
FHITES Non-executive Directors
B M1+ Dr. CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian 4/4
FRit & % & Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong 4/4
HTESE Executive Directors
2B S+ Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter 4/4
(FERITEAEZ) (Chairman and Chief Executive)
Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI %t 4 Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI 4/4
XEREE Mr. Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN 4/4
REEE L Dr. CHAN Ka Wai 4/4
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In order to facilitate free and open discussion of issues, the
Independent Non-executive Directors and the Non-executive Directors
may also meet without the presence of the Executive Directors from
time to time.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Bye-Laws, any new Director (other than the Chairman
or the Managing Director) appointed by the Board is subject to
retirement and re-election by shareholders at the next general meeting
of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or at the next
annual general meeting of the Company (in the case of an addition
to their number) following his appointment. At each annual general
meeting, one-third (or the number nearest to but not exceeding one-
third) of the Directors (other than the Chairman or the Managing
Director) will retire from office by rotation, and every Director (other
than the Chairman or the Managing Director) is subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.
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Currently, all Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive
Directors are appointed for a specific term of three years and subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant to the Bye-Laws. To
further strengthen the standard of corporate governance, the Company
follows CG Code and requires any re-appointment of an Independent
Non-executive Director who has served on the Board for over nine
years to be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
shareholders. In such cases, the Board will set out in the annual report
or circular the reasons why it considers such Director to continue to be
independent and should be re-elected.

The Directors are not aware of any information that would reasonably
indicate that the Company is not in compliance with the CG Code,
except that (i) the roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive are vested
in the same person (Code Provision A.2.1); and (i) the Chairman
and Chief Executive are not subject to retirement by rotation (Code
Provision A.4.2).

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI, Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT,
Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH shall retire by rotation in accordance
with Bye-law 98 of the Company, and both Professor WONG Yuk
(alias, HUANG Xu) shall retire in accordance with Bye-law 101(B) of the
Company.

Whereas Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI, Dr. Barry John
BUTTIFANT, Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH and Professor WONG Yuk
(alias, HUANG Xu), being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Save for the aforesaid, the
other directors of the Company will continue in office.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Currently Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter, holds the positions of Chairman
and Chief Executive. In view of Dr. LAU’s extensive experience in the
industry and deep understanding of the Group’s businesses, the Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
in Dr. LAU provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership,
allows for more effective planning and execution of long term business
strategies and enhances efficiency in decision-making. The Board also
believes that the Company already has a strong corporate governance
structure appropriate for its circumstances in place to ensure effective
oversight of management. The main elements of this structure include:

° Having Non-executive Directors comprise three of five of the
Board;

° Including all four Independent Non-executive Directors as Audit
Committee members;

e  Ensuring that all Independent Non-executive Directors have free
and direct access to both the Company’s internal and external
auditors and independent professional advice where necessary;
and

e Having a “whistle-blowing” mechanism in place to allow the
Group’s staff members to anonymously and confidentially report
to the Head of Internal Audit any suspected acts of fraud or
gross misconduct by senior management, including that of the
Chairman and Chief Executive. Details about the “whistle-blowing”
mechanism are discussed under the section “Risk Management
and Internal Control”.

The Board believes that these measures enable our Independent
Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors to rigorously
supervise the Group’s management and effectively control key issues
relating to strategy, risk and integrity. The Board continually reviews the
effectiveness of the Group’s corporate governance structure to assess
whether any changes are necessary.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all four Independent Non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Dr. BUTTIFANT, a qualified accountant
with extensive experience in financial reporting and controls. The Audit
Committee is responsible for the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditors, reviewing and monitoring the external
auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process and discussing with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the audit. It is also responsible for reviewing the Group’s
financial information, overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system
and risk management and internal control procedures and reviewing
the interim and final results of the Group prior to recommending
them to the Board for approval. To this end, the Audit Committee
has unrestricted access to both the Company’s internal and external
auditors. Its terms of reference are available on request and also
accessible on the Company’s website at http.//www.giordano.com.hk/
web/HK/investors/Gov/2012/e TORAC. pdf.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year to review financial
reporting and risk management and internal control matters. The
Group Chief Financial Officer, the Chairman of the Risk Management
Committee, the Head of Internal Audit, the Company Secretary and
representatives of the external auditor of the Company are expected
to attend the meetings. At the discretion of the Committee, other
members of management may also be invited to attend its meetings.
In 2015, the Audit Committee held two meetings and the attendance
record, on a named basis, is set out below:

HERB/EREBITRE
EREEEER Audit Committee Meeting Meetings attended/held
BIYFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
EHRAEL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 2/2
B E RS AL - GBS P Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, JP 2/2
REHE Professor LEUNG Kwok 1/1
(7201545 H25 A BE i) (Passed away on May 25, 2015)
EVIEE Es Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) 3@ F/NLA.
(F2015F 11 A11 B EZE ) (Appointed on November 11, 2015)
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH% 4 Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH 2/2

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF

65



66

& =

A\ Az &5 o
JJ'-%E/EI A =

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EZZEER G FEIINEZHAMENEZRER
D EHE2014F 128318 L2 FEEFE =2015
F6HI0RIEAEAFHEE -RNegk B&REE
I E R AN B A EE T A T R H A
FRRE O VAHETEERNEREEANEEER
BEENASHERRES - IV BERZEFHE
EEFHAEENEKREE M NSPEL RS  UE
RERM  LEBETEEAEENS T RUBHRE
ZEIRBAHBRAER  ERMER  REJIK
REMEEEERRE °

REZES

RIFATEERTANMRE  EFGMN201263H
IBNURAREZES H=ZBBIFNTEER
FREAK  WHABTEEER REZE®ZE
EREARTHENESSRRE RERMEK (B
HiEg  AELER)  ITYEeBAENBES
g HBENORAZEIIFNTEST 2B R
REENEFTZAREETREFTIEEAEEEA
FHNEFSRHEERSR - REZEGHEBRE
BERBIREEFGERLEMN (NER) - 184
ZESHNBESERHERDLDHN ARG ZH
ukhtto://www.giordano.com.hk/web/HK/investors/
Gov/2012/cTORNC. pdf °

EFEN01BFRM(EFTEREZTLER) -
HZBREIEHEFENEZ IR TTIE

ARRAMTEZEEAREZZ TEBRBERAR
AR B R AR EERER SR -

ARBIFBERZEAR - BREENRREE -
RITHEER HEER Bk MHIREMER
BREDEFEXBETIL - ARAFRREEFER
ERBHAEE T THZREAGEBEALA

g == dh
EEZ-

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed with the external
auditors the audit strategy summary, the final results for the year
ended December 31, 2014 and the interim accounts for the six months
ended June 30, 2015. During the meetings, the Audit Committee also
reviewed the activities of the Group’s Internal Audit Department and
its internal audit report, and discussed with management the report’s
findings and recommendations on the Group’s business operations.
Besides, it also evaluated with management the Group’s risk
management and internal control system to ensure its effectiveness,
with particular attention to the adequacy of resources, the qualifications
and experience of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting staff,
as well as their training programs and budget.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

In compliance with the requirements of the relevant CG Code, on
March 21, 2012, the Board established the Nomination Committee
comprising of three Independent Non-executive Directors and the
Chairman, and chaired by Dr. LAU. The main duties of the Nomination
Committee are to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, on a regular basis,
and to identify individuals qualified to become board members. It is
also responsible for assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors and making recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors. The recommendations
of the Nomination Committee are then put forward for consideration
and adoption, where appropriate, by the Board. Its terms of reference
are available on request and also accessible on the Company’s website
at http://www.giordano.com.hk/web/HK/investors/Gov/2012/e TORNC. pdf.

The Board has also adopted a Board Diversity Policy in 2013 which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognizes that increasing diversity at the Board level
will support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to skills,
regional and industry experiences, background, race, gender, and
other qualities. The Company will also take into consideration its own
business model and specific needs from time to time in determining the
optimum composition of the Board.
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The Nomination Committee has set measurable objectives based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, length of services and other qualities. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidate(s) will bring to the Board.

Ro015%5E  BEEESH/ETT —KeH - IKE  In 2015, the Nomination Committee held one meeting and the
HEDY g F b FRsEs T attendance record, on a named basis, is set out below:
HERB/EBETRIE

EEZEEgE Nomination Committee Meeting Meeting attended/held
JHHITES Independent Non-executive Directors

REBHIR Professor LEUNG Kwok 0/1
(FR2015%F5 A 25 H @ i) (Passed away on May 25, 2015)

EHRLIEL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 1/1

=B Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) T FA/N.A.
(2015511 A11 R EZ ) (Appointed on November 11, 2015)

Simon Devilliers RUDOLPHJE & Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH 1/1
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2 EE L

(FERITEAAE)

R2015F A RBEZESEEITZIEMANT

1. RAEFEEZOHNZERBHRE/ARAE
MIEHITESE

2. BREFEKES
BEEERM R

LM ABRERER » U1IE

3. BMIUEFEMAZ - AR REhZTE X
FEEFERENOEMNER MBS T
EREERENRARR REMBARMNE
BEX - AR B IFRTEEHNBILIE -
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Executive Director
Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter 1/1
(Chairman and Chief Executive)

During the year of 2015, the Nomination Committee performed the
works as summarized below:

1. recommended to the Board the appointment of Professor WONG
Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) as an Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company respectively;

2. reviewed the draft Board Diversity Policy of the Board for Board’s
adoption; and

3. reviewed the size, composition and structure and diversity of the
Board, and assessed the balance of skills and experience of the
Board as expedient with diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the business of the Company and its
subsidiaries and reviewed the independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is composed of three Independent Non-
executive Directors and the Chairman, and now chaired by Mr. Simon
Deveilliers RUDOLPH and Professor LEUNG chaired (from January
to February 2015). The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
reviewing and determining the remuneration, compensation and
benefits of Directors and senior management. When the remuneration
package of an individual Director is under review, the Director in
question is required to abstain from voting to avoid any conflict of
interest. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on request and also accessible on the Company’s website at
http://www.giordano.com.hk/web/HK/investors/Gov/2012/eTORCC.
paf.

HERB/SBEETIHE
FHZEEEE Remuneration Committee Meeting Meeting attended/held
BIUFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
P Ee Professor LEUNG Kwok 1/1
(FA2015%F 5 A 25 H B ) (Passed away on May 25, 2015)
EiRLIEL Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 1/1
=BHIR Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) i A/NLA.
(FR2015F11 H11BEZ ) (Appointed on from November 11, 2015)
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPHE & Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH 11
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Executive Director
Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter 0/1
(Chairman and Chief Executive)

In 2015, the Remuneration Committee held a meeting to review the
remuneration and bonus of the Chairman and Chief Executive, confirm
the 2014 guaranteed bonus to the Chairman and Chief Executive and
ratify and approve the 2014 bonus payment to Directors and senior
management. The Chairman and Chief Executive absented himself
from attending the said meeting and abstained from voting to avoid
any conflict of interest. Attendance record of the meeting, on a named
basis, is set out above.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company understands that a reasonable and comprehensive
remuneration package is an important factor in attracting, retaining
and motivating high quality personnel. As such, the Company
works to ensure that remuneration is competitive and aligned with
the Company’s objectives and performance. The Company takes
into consideration a number of relevant factors in determining its
remuneration policy, including the salaries paid by comparable
companies, job responsibilities, duties and scope, employment
conditions in the Company and its subsidiaries, market practices and
the financial and non-financial performance of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and
determining the remuneration of the Directors. In doing so, the
Committee considers factors such as the fees paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, the responsibilities and likely workload
of the relevant Directors and other employment conditions in the
Company to ensure that the Independent Non-executive Directors and
the Non-executive Directors are appropriately paid for their time and
responsibilities to the Company.

The Company’s remuneration structure for its employees, including the
Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Director, is composed
of fixed compensation, cash performance bonuses, variable cash
incentives, long-term incentives, and retirement schemes as discussed
below.

Fixed compensation includes an employee’s base salary, allowances
and benefits (e.g. medical). Base salary and allowances are set and
reviewed annually for each position, taking into consideration the
Company’s remuneration policy, the Company’s and the individual’s
performance as well as market conditions and practices. Benefits
are regularly reviewed and determined largely on the basis of local
standards and practices.

Employees are also eligible to receive an annual cash bonus based on
their performance at the Group, business unit and individual levels. The
bonuses awarded to the Chairman and Chief Executive, the Executive
Director and members of senior management are reviewed annually
by the Remuneration Committee. In 2015, the cash performance
bonus component accounted for 60.8% of the total remuneration of
the Chairman and Chief Executive and the Executive Directors. Please
refer to note 10(a) to the financial statements for details. In addition,
the Company operates sales and business-related incentive schemes
to motivate certain staff such as front-line sales associates to achieve
specific sales or other business targets of the Company.
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The Company also operates a share option scheme to provide long-
term incentives to reward and retain a high calibre management
team. The details of the scheme, together with information on options
exercised and outstanding in respect of the Executive Directors and
employees as at December 31, 2015 under the scheme, are set out in
the section of Share Option Information of this annual report.

Pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the
Company participates in an MPF scheme registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority.

The total remuneration of the members of the Board (excluding share-
based payments) is shown below:

(KB EETREN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
we Fees 2 2
FrEN - EEE R E A AR F Salaries, allowances and other 12 10
benefits
i Share Options - 1
VB B 4B T B Variable remuneration related to 18 17
performance
32 30

BIAFRTES  FRTEF ATEFRAMNE
SHBE (EPMLARTESR) WAFH (21
B M) ZEMeERREET

The total remuneration (including share-based payments) of the
Independent Non-executive Directors, the Non-executive Directors, the
Executive Directors and the five highest paid employees (3 of whom
were Executive Directors) fell within the following bands:

2015 2014

AE AE

= Remuneration Number Number
07T — 1,000,0007% 7T HK$0 — HK$1,000,000 7 6
1,000,0017%& 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 - 1
2,000,001 7T — 3,000,0007% 7T HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 3 1
3,000,001 JT — 4,000,000/ 7T HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 1 1
4,000,0017% 7T — 5,000,000/ T HK$4,000,001 — HK$5,000,000 - 1
5,000,001/ 7T — 6,000,0007% 7T HK$5,000,001 — HK$6,000,000 - -
6,000,001 7T — 7,000,0007% 7T HK$5,000,001 — HK$6,000,000 1 1
8,000,001 7T — 9,000,000/ JT HK$8,000,001 — HK$9,000,000 - -
20,000,001 JT — 30,000,000/ 7T HK$10,000,001 — HK$20,000,000 1 1
13 12

ES ;%é%ﬁ#%ﬂﬁ%%&#%ﬂﬁ%%Z%’r@ﬂiﬂ%%
FE—FHMAR - FIEF2HYBHRERMEI0@) -
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All Independent Non-executive Directors’ and Non-executive Directors’
emoluments fell within the first remuneration band. Please refer to note
10(a) to the financial statements for details.
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to a Management Committee.
The Management Committee is fully accountable to the Board and
comprises the Chairman and Chief Executive, the Executive Directors
and the Group Chief Financial Officer.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors and their corporate governance
duties include:

e To develop, review and update the Company’s policy and
practices on corporate governance;

e To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

e To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

e To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;

e To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

e To develop, review and monitor the implementation of the
shareholders’ communication policy to ensure its effectiveness,
and make recommendation to the Board where appropriate to
enhance shareholders’ relationship with the Company.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Company and
formulated internal policy on inside information.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management
and internal controls, particularly in respect of financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions, and as such
monitors the effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Appropriate policies
and procedures have been put in place to safeguard the assets against
unauthorized use or disposition; control over capital expenditure;
maintain proper and accurate accounting records and enhance
the reliability of financial reporting; and to ensure efficiency and
effectiveness of operations and compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations. Such policies and procedures are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement,
loss, error or fraud, and to manage and minimize rather than eliminate
the risk of failure in the Group’s operational systems.

The Group’s risk management and internal control framework includes
the following major components:

e An organizational and governance structure with defined
responsibility, proper segregation of duties and delegated
authority;

e Systems and procedures of financial control, risk management
and internal control to identify and measure risks and conduct bi-
annual risk assessment to monitor the progress of risk mitigation;

e  Operational and financial budgeting and forecasting systems for
performance measurement, including regular variance analysis
against budgets and plans, and setting key business performance
targets with appropriate measures to rectify deficiencies;

e  Stringent policies and procedures for the appraisal, review and
approval of significant contracts, major capital and recurrent
expenditures;

e A “whistle-blowing” mechanism to allow the Group’s staff
to anonymously report any suspected acts of fraud or gross
misconduct by senior management, including that of the Chairman
and Chief Executive, to the Head of Internal Audit who will refer
the report to the Chairman of the Audit Committee for further
action; and

e  Strict internal procedures and controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information.
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The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for the
Group’s risk management and internal control system and the review
of its effectiveness to a Risk Management Committee. The Risk
Management Committee is composed of four members including
one Executive Director, Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI, together
with the Executive Director and Group Chief Financial Officer, Mr.
Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN, the Head of Internal Audit and one
senior management representative. It reviews all material controls in
accordance with the code provisions on risk management and internal
control of the Company’s Code on Corporate Governance, and reports
to the Board twice a year. The Risk Management Committee is fully
accountable to the Board for providing assurance on managing and
monitoring the system of risk management and internal controls.
The Committee evaluated and was satisfied with the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of the staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function as well as their training
programmes and budget for the year, and reported to the Board
that in all material respects the system of risk management and
internal control over risks associated with the Group’s operations was
sufficient, appropriate and operated effectively on a continuing basis.

Co-operating closely with the Risk Management Committee, the
Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring the risk

management and internal controls of the Group.

The keys tasks of the Internal Audit Department include:

Unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s key
activities, risk management, control and governance processes;

e (Conduct independent, comprehensive and regular audits
of financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of business and support units and
subsidiaries, including recommending improvements and
monitoring corrective or remedial measures taken by the units and
subsidiaries to minimize risk exposure;

e Conduct special reviews of areas of concern identified by
management or the Audit Committee;

° Investigation of business ethics, conflict of interest and other
Group policy violations; and

e  Oversee the “whistle-blowing” mechanism.
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Adopting a risk-based approach, the Internal Audit Department
implements the audit plan approved by the Audit Committee and
management, which is based on a risk assessment methodology. It
furnishes independent and objective evaluations and recommendations
in the form of an internal audit report to management. The Head of
Internal Audit reports directly to the Audit Committee twice a year on
major findings, corrective actions and responses from management.
The Audit Committee has free and direct access to the Head of Internal
Audit without reference to the Chairman or management.

During the year of 2015, the Internal Audit Department issued audit
reports to management which covered significant business processes
and activities of the Group. It worked with management to establish
action plans to address any identified control weaknesses. Post-audit
reviews were performed to ensure those agreed actions have been
implemented as intended.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

As required by Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, the Company adopted
in August 2004 and updated in 2009 and 2013 a Code of Conduct
for Securities Transactions by Directors. All Directors confirmed their
compliance with the code throughout the year.

In addition, the Company adopted in March 2005 and updated in 2009
and 2013 a Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Specified
Employees, which governs the securities transactions of those
employees who may possess or have access to inside information.
The said code covers areas such as prohibitions and conduct in the
dealing of the Company’s securities, avoidance of conflict of interests
and confidentiality of the Company’s information, etc. These employees
have complied with the aforesaid code throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period to ensure that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group, its operational results
and cash flows for that period. The Company’s financial statements
are prepared in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors are responsible for
ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently, and that where judgment has been applied and estimates
made, they are prudent and reasonable.
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The statement by the principal auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 88 to 171.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration charged by the Group’s principal auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers and its affiliated firms for non-audit and
statutory audit services is set out below:

(X B &ETRBEN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
IBERBERIEHREER Non-audit services (included tax-
AETHTEZER REMBEBRKRS) related matters, certain agreed-
upon procedures work and other
reporting services) 1 1
ETE B % Statutory audit 5 4
B E Total 6 5

HEREERRR ZBE

BRBRRZEEERARAEREEBELN
ERTE - ARBEZSREREEBAREZES &
AR RRARRMZEARURELEMN G BHE
BRRTEMMARNEE - LB EEARRT]
HREEREE - FRNMATR - R2016FBEBIRES
RMRDHERITZEFAFTHI00K °
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

Earning shareholders’ trust and confidence has always been the
major emphasis of the Company’s efforts in investor relations. The
Group’s senior management keeps a constant and open dialogue with
the investment community through company visits, conference calls,
information sessions and participation in major investor conferences to
communicate clearly the Company’s business strategies, developments
and prospects. About 100 meetings with institutional investors and
research analysts were held in 2015.

The Company has a wide and diverse shareholder base of institutional
and retail investors. To ensure all shareholders have equal and timely
access to important company information, the Company proactively
utilizes internet and other forms of electronic communication to deliver
information in a timely and transparent manner. To strike a balance
between keeping shareholders abreast of the Company’s performance
on one hand and avoiding an unhealthy focus on short-term results
on the other, the Company decided against following the CG Code
Recommended Best Practice of publishing quarterly financial results.
Instead, the Company publishes operations updates for the first three
and nine month periods on its corporate website. Annual and interim
reports, stock exchange filings, video webcasts, press releases and
other materials are also accessible on the corporate website.
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The Board welcomes shareholders’ views on matters affecting the
Group, and encourages their attendance at shareholders’ meetings
to communicate any concerns they may have with the Board or
management directly. The Company’s Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
is an especially important forum. In order to encourage and facilitate
shareholder attendance at its AGM, the Company gives at least 20
clear business days’ prior notice together with a detailed agenda.
To ensure clear communication, each substantially separate issue is
proposed under a separate resolution.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, any shareholder holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
to vote at general meetings shall have the right, by written requisition,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Investors and shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at
shareholder’s meetings or to make enquiries of the Board may do so by
contacting our Investor Relations Department whose contact details are
listed on page 180 of this annual report.

The Company held its 2015 AGM on May 22, 2015. The meeting was
held at Block B, 3rd Floor, Tin On Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung
Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Attendance of individual Board
members at the AGM is set out below:

PR B/
ERETRE
AGM Meeting
BRERER Shareholders’ Meeting in 2015 attended/held
BAFHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
A E L Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT 1/1
B E S L - GBS P Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, JP 1/1
REBHIE Professor LEUNG Kwok' 0/1
=B Professor WONG Yuk (alias, Huang Xu) 2 N3 F/NLA.
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPHE & Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH 1/1
FHITES Non-executive Directors
B 1 £ Dr. CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian 0/1
BRIt B % & Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong 1/1
HBTES Executive Directors
DR EF L Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
(X% RITHARED) (Chairman and Chief Executive) 1/1
Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI %t 4 Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI 0/1
NEREE Mr. Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN 0/1
REEEL Dr. CHAN Ka Wai 1/1

! ZEHIER2015%5525H Bttt

Professor LEUNG Kwok had passed away on May 25, 2016
2 EBHEER016F11A1TAEZFHITEF

Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu was appointed as an Independent Nnon-executive Director on November 11, 2015.
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The Chairman opened formal business at the 2015 AGM by advising on
the voting procedures and the level of proxies received. The following
items of business were considered at the meeting:

e  Adoption of the audited financial statements and the reports from
the directors and the independent auditor;

e  Resolution on a final dividend;

° Re-election of retiring directors and election of directors;

° Re-appointment of auditor;

° Resolution on the grant of general mandate to issue shares;
° Renewal of the general mandate to repurchase shares; and

° Resolution for the refreshment of the scheme mandate limit of the
share option scheme adopted by the Company on June 9, 2011
and to authorise the Directors of the Company to grant options
under the Share Option Scheme up to the refreshed scheme
mandate limit.

The 2016 AGM is proposed to be held on May 27, 2016. Each of the
resolutions as set out in the notice of the AGM will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

There was no change in the Company’s Bye-Laws during the year.
If any amendment to the Bye-Laws is necessary, according to the
relevant law governing the Company, the Company will propose the
amendment for shareholders’ approval at a general meeting of the
Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of Special General Meetings on Requisition
by Shareholders

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene
a Special General Meeting (“SGM”) of the Company. Shareholders
holding in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up
capital of the Company may send a written request to the Board of the
Company to request for a SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
registered office of the Company.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(the “Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.
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Procedures for Making Proposals at General Meetings
by Shareholders

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company:

(@) any members representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
total voting rights of the Company on the date of the requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposal must be deposited at the registered office
of the Company. The Company would take appropriate actions and
make necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.

As regards proposing a person other than the retiring Director
for election as a Director in a general meeting, please refer to the
procedures available on the website of the Company.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary at 5th Floor, Tin On
Industrial Building, 777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company has long been committed to being a responsible
corporate citizen, and formally adopted its Corporate Social
Responsibility policy statement in January 2005. Since then the
Company continues to focus on “doing well by doing good” in order
to have a positive impact in the communities where we do business,
paying particular attention to stakeholder relations, community
involvement and environmental protection.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

The Company believes that its long-term success depends on the
contribution of each and every individual in the organization. As such,
the Company is committed to treating our employees with fairness and
respect. We believe in co-operation, teamwork and trust. We hire on
the basis of ability and merit, and reward and promote on the basis of
performance.
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The Company also recognizes that values, fairness and opportunities
for continuing professional and personal development are equally
important drivers for high achievers. As such, the Company invests
heavily not only in comprehensive staff training and development
programs in sales and service, but also in management, planning and
leadership programs addressing our people’s professional and personal
development needs. The Company also has an Employee Self-Learning
Program to foster individual initiative and responsibility for development.
In addition to investing in our own people, the Group also invests
in training and development programs for its business partners and
franchisees in the Greater China region to help them better compete in
today’s rapidly changing and highly competitive market. The Company
will continue to invest in learning and development to maintain its
competitive edge.

The Company organizes various activities, including seminars on
healthy living conducted by healthcare professionals, for its employees
from time to time to help them maintain a healthy work-life balance.
Various interest groups are also active in organizing different sports
events or leisure activities which employees can participate at minimal
or no cost.

The Company also conducts employee satisfaction surveys annually
and such surveys allow us to obtain useful feedback for reference in
setting company policies.

Supply chain management is critical for the Group’s success and we
work closely with suppliers to ensure that they comply with our quality,
performance and not least labor standards. In particular, we expect our
suppliers to comply with our Core Ethical Sourcing Requirements as
listed below:

e The supplier only employs workers that are above the local legal
minimum age.

e  The supplier does not use forced or prison labour in any part or
aspects of its facilities.

e  The workers are not subjected to physical abuse, or the threat of
physical abuse.

e The supplier does not contravene local environmental laws and
regulations.

e The supplier provides a safe and healthy work environment for its
workers.

e The supplier is committed to rectifying any areas of concern
identified during supplier audits by the Company or its appointed
third party auditors.

The Group’s Quality Assurance team conducts surprise inspections
from time to time to ensure that factories comply with the Group’s
various standards.
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Acting on our belief in a “World Without Strangers”, the Group actively
supports various charitable organizations and causes, especially those
associated with education, children and the underprivileged. One
such program is Project Hope, a public service project organized by
the China Youth Development Foundation. The Group has been a
longstanding supporter of the project’s work in providing children in
poverty-stricken rural areas in Mainland China with access to primary
school education by funding the construction of a number of Giordano
Hope primary schools. Thus far, there had been twenty two Giordano
primary school of Hope completed to the end of 2015. The Group also
donated to the Caring for Children Foundation in support of children’s
welfare in the Mainland.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is also committed to protecting and sustaining the
environment through reduced consumption of electrical power, much
of which is generated from the burning of carbon and other fossil fuels.
In 2008, the Group launched an initiative to convert its shops to using
energy saving lighting. By the end of 2015, most of the Group’s stores
in South Korea, Singapore, Taiwan, Thailand and the Middle East
converted to using energy-saving lighting.

Our “Green Team” initiates and brings together representatives from
different departments to promote low carbon living. In 2015, The Green
Team organized various monthly activities for staff to learn about and
experience low carbon living which include recycling campaigns.
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The directors are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
business of the Group is the retail and distribution of men’s, women’s
and children’s basic and fashion apparel and accessories under the
Giordano & Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies and, BSX brands through
its own stores as well as third party franchisees. Although targeted
at different market segments, the brands all strive to deliver excellent
quality, value and service to consumers.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by principal activity and
geography for the year ended December 31, 2015 is set out in note 5
to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended December
31, 2015 are provided in the Chairman’s Statement, Management’s
Discussion and Analysis and the Corporate Governance Report of this
annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2015 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 90 to 171.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of 12.5 HK cents per share were paid on
September 25, 2015.

The directors recommend to shareholders the payment of a final
dividend of 14.5 HK cents per share for the year ended December 31,
2015 to those shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on June 8, 2016.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2015, the retained profits of the Company together
with the contributed surplus available for distribution amounted to
HK$820 million (2014: HK$916 million).
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made for charitable purposes by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$336,000 (2014: HK$291,000).

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at December 31,
2015 are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS

As at December 31, 2015, the Group had no bank loans (2014: Nil) that
were repayable on demand or within one year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate percentages of purchases attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers during the year are as follows:

Purchases
The largest supplier 31%
Five largest suppliers combined 50%

The percentage of the sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers is less than 30% during the year.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders (which, to
the knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company) had a beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers and customers.

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
ten fiscal years is set out on pages 2 and 3.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are shown in note 23 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

A summary of the Company’s share option scheme and details of the
movement in share options of the Company during the year are set out
on pages 172 to 179.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws although there are no restrictions against having such rights
under the laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Dr. LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter

Dr. CHAN Ka Wai

Mr. Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN?®
Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI
Dr. CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian*

Mr. CHAN Sai Cheong*

Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT *

Mr. KWONG Ki Chi, GBS, JP *
Professor LEUNG Kwok *'

Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH*
Professor WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) *?

# Non-executive directors
Independent non-executive directors
! Passed away on May 25, 2015
2 Appointed on November 11, 2015
3 Resignation tendered on March 3, 2016

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr. Ishwar
Bhagwandas CHUGANI, Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT and Mr. Simon
Devilliers RUDOLPH shall retire by rotation in accordance with Bye-Law
98 of the Company, and Professor WONG Yuk (alias, Huang Xu) shall
retire in accordance with Bye-Law 101(B) of the Company.

Mr. Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI, Dr. Barry John BUTTIFANT,
Mr. Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH and Professor WONG Yuk (alias,
HUANG Xu)* being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Biographical details of the directors of the Company as at the date of
this report are set out on pages 51 to 56 of this annual report. Further
information of the retiring directors proposed to be re-elected are set
out in the circular.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

The directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting do not have any service contract with the Company or
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance subsisted during or at the end
of the year to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at December 31, 2015, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO; or as notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

FLEHmz
HERG
i) EnEm wmrER
BERER (H15t) B EHN
(H13t) Beneficial interest Approximate
Beneficial in unlisted aggregate
EEHE EEME interest in shares underlying shares percentage
Name of director Nature of interest (Note) (Note) of interests
2 B {EPN 27,318,000 - 1.74%
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter Personal
Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI & A 1,200,000 4,200,000 0.34%
Personal
D@L & A - 6,000,000 0.38%
Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN Personal
bR 32 42 A 300,000 3,000,000 0.21%
CHAN Ka Wai Personal

it - BHEZRORRALTETRZ AR BB E ° FF
LI RALTE TR Z ARG TI AR A RPN B
BABMRTEFEZRBRE BHENBRIREI74E L
1768 -

Br Eat #EFE SN - A2015F12A31H » AR alE S
MITBAHEBEEARBIREABEEE (TR RE
F R HEIRGIZEXVER) MR - RS REEE
A AR EE B RIBZ IR HI 35216 B T # 1T
R E R ET S s AR I (1R 2E<F R | B A1 g AR R
B X AT 2 (RS SR B o ok - BR EilIREE AN
AARSEEMWERRNKEE2015F128311
IFEFANRETLAMTY  SARRESTHHES
ZERBRAMISHEZ FRAEBALRA R EA
EEZ RN EREE MR -
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Note: Interests in the shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives were long
position. Underlying unlisted shares are share options granted to the directors
pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company and details of which are set
out on pages 174 and 176.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2015, none of the
directors nor chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or as notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. Furthermore,
save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended December
31, 2015 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company or any of their
spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at December 31, 2015, the following persons, other than directors
and chief executive of the Company, having interests or short positions
of 5% or more in the Company’s shares or underlying shares were
recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO:

HERGR
HERG A MR
Aggregate BOEHN
long position Approximate

in shares and aggregate
Z8 k23 underlying shares of percentage
Name Note interests of interests
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and Its associates 1 203,247,469 12.94%
Aberdeen Global 125,119,000 7.97%
BlackRock, Inc. 172,908,865 11.01%
Sino Wealth International Limited 2 384,830,000 24.51%
AREREABRAA 2 384,830,000 24.51%
Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited
Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited 2 384,830,000 24.51%
BAXRE(ZER) BRA A 2 384,830,000 24.51%

Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited

UEE

GIOR
&

Aberdeen Asset Management Plc s B B 22 A I 1% £ 45 1E
B (71 H208,247,469/8 & 17

fiAberdeen Asset Management Plc H 2% 2 &M & A~
ARKEMEBNKRFIFAR ARG -

WERAEHE

Name of subsidiary

Notes:

1. Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and its associates held 203,247,469 shares in the
capacity of Investment Manager.

Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and its various wholly owned subsidiaries held the
following shares on behalf of the accounts they managed:

HFERGOEY

Aggregate long position in shares

Aberdeen Asset Management Asia Limited
Aberdeen Asset Management Inc

Aberdeen Asset Managers Limited

Aberdeen Islamic Asset Management Sdn Bhd
Aberdeen International Fund Managers Limited

7% Z B (7 #5Sino Wealth International Limited## & &7
384,830,000/ {7 ° Sino Wealth International Limitedd
BIAEAREANERAGIZEHES  MEAEEAFR
AR B A48 (FERR) B IR 22 8].2 12 #) - B1R-Cheng Yu
Tung Family (Holdings) Limited}Cheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings 1l) Limited# £ X Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited
S FFF B #949.0% K 46.7 % ¥z + [f1Chow Tai Fook Capital
LimitedBI R B A 18 (1 /K) F IR 2 7] #5 5 #778.6 %K 7 °

Bt - 5LiEF R BRG] 5 - Cheng Yu Tung Family
(Holdings) Limited ~ Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings 1I)
Limited + Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited % & A #& (#%)
B IR 2 5] #18 A 1K Sino Wealth International Limited#% & _
LR 17 RIGEIIR (7 HEB s o

DANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
m AR 2 F

182,475,000
11,450,000
38,316,000

670,000

140,865,469

2. Those shares represent 384,830,000 shares held by Sino Wealth International
Limited. Sino Wealth International Limited is wholly owned by Chow Tai Fook Nominee
Limited, which in turn controlled by Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited. Since Cheng
Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited and Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings Il) Limited
held approximately 49.0% and 46.7% interest in Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited
respectively, which in turn held an approximately 78.6% interest in Chow Tai Fook
(Holding) Limited and accordingly each of Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings) Limited,
Cheng Yu Tung Family (Holdings 1) Limited, Chow Tai Fook Capital Limited and
Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited is deemed to have an interest in the said shares and
underlying shares held by Sino Wealth International Limited for the purpose of the
SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Bye-laws provides that each Director or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or
otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has maintained
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect of
relevant legal actions against the Directors

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Company did not have any connected transactions which were
subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules during the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire and being eligible, offer itself for
re-appointment, and a resolution to this effect will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter
Chairman

Hong Kong, March 3, 2016

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Giordano
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on
pages 90 to 171, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as
at December 31, 2015, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries
as at December 31, 2015, and of their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, March 3, 2016
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

HZE2015%F12A318 EFEE

For the year ended December 31, 2015

(B =& FIS) - (In HK$ millions, HiaF
UEEBTAEN) except earnings per share) Note 2015 2014
tHER Sales 5 5,381 5,545
$HE AR Cost of sales (2,284) (2,331)
EF Gross profit 3,097 3,214
Ha g AR E A Yz - JFRR Other income and other gains, net 6 89 77
nIHER Distribution expense (2,242) (2,360)
TREHR Administrative expense (388) (389)
5k A Operating profit 7 556 542
MEEM Finance expense 8 - (1)
FEAE & & QR E A Share of profit of joint ventures 16 42 54
FEAL B & R Bl Share of profit of associates 17 -
B 35 B Profit before taxation 5 598 596
A Taxation 11 (118) (130)
R EF B A Profit for the year 480 466
FEAE 3@ A - Profit attributable to:
VNN §=) Shareholders of the Company 426 408
FE2 I M A 2 Non-controlling interests 54 58
480 466
KRR EEGEF 2 Earnings per share for profit attributable to
S AT shareholders of the Company 12
R GEAL Basic (HK cents) 27.1 26.0
s (B Diluted (HK cents) 27.1 25.9

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS
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EEERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HZE2015F12A31HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2015

(X B&EETRENL) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
R EEEF Profit for the year 480 466
Hihsira s - Other comprehensive income:
R EEEERKEZER Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss
ArEEREEAREL Fair value change on available-for-sale
) (Mfst18) financial asset (Note 18) - 1
AHESHMEERERE Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial asset - 4
EihEERRIHMERE WS Share of other comprehensive income of
joint ventures - (2)
ReneEHAnEBECEE Fair value loss on cash flow hedge - 3)
BN B AT - B AT Exchange adjustment on translation of

BENR D ARIBE overseas subsidiaries, associates,

& 5 J8 & joint ventures and branches (121) (67)
TEEFEHRZE KRR Total comprehensive income for the year 359 399
EhBEmEe RS : Total comprehensive income attributable to:

ZiN/NETE ) Shareholders of the Company 319 343
FEFE MR Non-controlling interests 40 56
359 399
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EHEERER

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

201512 A31H
December 31, 2015

HZ12H31H
As at 31 December
HiaE
(X BEETTREN) (In HK$ millions) Note 2015 2014
BE ASSETS
IRBEE Non-current assets
LEN Y e Property, plant and equipment 14 239 281
EES Goodwill 15 546 535
BENBIRER Interest in joint ventures 16 503 532
RN b ey Interest in associates 17 — 4
AHESHMEE Available-for-sale financial assets 18 13 15
RERREZARNEREZ Financial assets at fair value through
EHEE profit or loss 19 28 28

HEL MHEEENRE Leasehold land and rental prepayments 20 205 228
HEES Rental deposits 109 136
FEFRIBE E Deferred tax assets 28 48 45

1,691 1,804
RBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 21 491 514
ME L A ENRE Leasehold land and rental prepayments 20 47 45
JE LB 50 % EL A R Trade and other receivables 22 542 579
Re RIR1TETT Cash and bank balances 30 1,076 915

2,156 2,053
EESE Total assets 3,847 3,857

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

B WE B ER LSS
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EHEEREER (R)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

2015912 A31H
December 31, 2015

HZ12H31H
As at 31 December

HiaE
(A B EE TREN) (In HK$ millions) Note 2015 2014
EEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BAR#E Capital and reserves
fi& 7 Share capital 23 79 78
1 Reserves 26 2,483 2,604
R A% B Proposed dividends 13 228 228
RARIIREELEER Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company 2,790 2,910
FE 2 1 R A Non-controlling interests 24 176 174
BB Total equity 2,966 3,084
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
RERLHEaE Put option liabilities 27 19 -
RIEFHIBEAE Deferred tax liabilities 28 111 121
130 121
REBEE Current liabilities
JE A BR 3R % E A JE 5 3R Trade and other payables 29 559 460
B HEEAE Put option liabilities 27 102 102
18 Taxation 90 90
751 652
EEA%E Total liabilities 881 773
EahkaEHARE Total equity and liabilities 3,847 3,857
BERBEE Net current assets 1,405 1,401
EEHERRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 3,096 3,205
2| B & PR &= &
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter CHAN Ka Wai
EZE o
Director Director
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EHBEERER

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HE2015F12A31MAILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2015

b &t
(X B EX T AEN) (In HK$ millions) Note 2015 2014
rE K Operating activities
B 35 A A Profit before taxation 598 596
AR Adjustments for:
JE15 & & R Ra T Share of profit of joint ventures 16 (42) (54)
JE (R Bk & 1 B1& Share of profit of associates 17 - (1)
TAE 1 b & 2 T8 FRIA# 8 Amortization of leasehold land and
rental prepayments 20 58 57
FEHA Interest income 6 (11) (16)
e Depreciation 7 126 140
7 B ER W B BT /B B B Gain on remeasurement of
LARBEEHTE previously held interest
RERHE 2w W upon step acquisition of subsidiaries 31 2 -
HEME BERZEZFRE Net gain on disposal of property, 6 (11) (14)
plant and equipment
AHESHEERERRE Impairment loss on available-for-sale 2 4
financial asset
W HBRRREZRESE Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment 1 -
BN\ Bl RS R E E 18 Impairment loss on associates - 2
RITERFE Interest on bank loans 8 - 1
B EE R Share option expense 9 3 2
HE H S Exchange difference (33) (27)
2iEES FIBRRBEEZBA] Operating cash inflow before changes 689 690
ZRERSRA in working capital, interest and tax
FEZRD Decrease in inventories 27 4
JE LS AR 5% % H A JE R 2 R Decrease in trade and other receivables 40 57
JERT R R EMER R 2 Increase/(decrease) in trade and 45 (72)
8/ G ) other payables
KEEHEEXE RS Cash generated from operations 801 679
EAREIPSN Interest paid - (1)
BERNEAFEM Hong Kong profits tax paid (13) (26)
BB INEIIE Overseas tax paid (76) (134)
REXBECESHRANTFE Net cash inflow from
operating activities 712 518

94 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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EHRERER (&)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

BZ=2015F12A31AILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2015

b &t
(X B EX T ABEN) (In HK$ millions) Note 2015 2014
REFEK: Investing activities:
BEME - MERKE Purchase of property, plant
and equipment 14 (98) (144)
HEMERBE L Z WA Proceeds from disposal of property
and leasehold land 15 13
WEE M B A R CRBRIRTT AT Acquisition of subsidiaries
FIREEE) (net of bank balances and
cash equivalents acquired) 31 16 -
TE L S TE A 2 38 A0 Increase in leasehold land and
rental prepayments 20 (47) (43)
MEZS 2D Decrease in rental deposits 16 2
HRITE BAF B 2 m /(38 hn) Decrease/(increase) in bank time deposits 30 90 (22)
2 HE Interest received 11 16
BERAELERFIRE Dividends received from joint ventures 35 37
REXBZRERA/ Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
(Ru) =8 investing activities 38 (141)
ALK Financing activities:
BITIRAFTIS A Proceeds from issue of share capital 3 11
2 U FE 12 ) M R 2 Capital injection to a subsidiary from
HHE QA E’J&ﬁ a non-controlling interest - 2
EATIEES R Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (46) (37)
EfRRE Dividends paid (424) (542)
EEETER Repayments of bank loans = (333)
MEXEHeREFHE Net cash outflow from
financing activities (467) (899)
ReERRSEEZE M CED) Increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents 283 (522)
FONBRSRRESEEER Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year 688 1,232
ReRBESEENEEER Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
BEoTE on cash and cash equivalents (32) (22)
FRESRESEHEETR Cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the year 939 688
RERRSEEEFTZIN ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
iﬁé&%ﬁﬁ & Cash and bank balances 30 1,076 915
o fFRE 1.)51 LA B ER Less: Bank deposits with maturity
ZﬁETTE,HW_M over three months (137) (227)
939 688
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2015F12A31HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2015

£E
Group
ARARFEEESR
Attributable to shareholders of the Company
LEze
HEERG
Ex BiRE Available- FEdM
BE&E fif for-sale %
RE&  #AB®  Capitl RGEE Share ENfE EMfEE  fnancial  REEA Non- EEAE
(WEERTAEN) Share Contributed redemption Share  options Exchange Other asset  Retained &3 controlling Total
(In HK$ millions) capital surplus  reserve  premium  reserve  reserve  reserves  reserve profits Total interests equity
#201551A1H
At January 1, 2015 8 383 3 916 2 67 95 - 1,346 2,910 174 3,084
TEEAT
Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 426 426 54 480
Aol
Qther comprehensive income:
-NBAR BELF
RERARNDARE
LEHHRE
- Exchange adjustment on
translation of overseas
subsidiaries, associates,
joint ventures and branches - - - - - (107) - - - (107) (14) (121)
fEaks
Total comprehensive income - - - - - (107) - - 426 319 40 359

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

B B E B ER

n

3
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Group

(WBEBTREN)
(In HK$ millions)

B2 x (F)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

HZE2015F12A31HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2015

AR ARFEGER
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

AEEZE
HEERK
Ex BRE Available- FEHM
EE&E fif for-sale %
RE  BAEH  Capital ROEE Share ERGE  HEE  financial RHEER Non- EHR#E
Share Contributed redemption Share  options  Exchange Other asset  Retained &t controlling Total
capital  surplus  reserve  premium  reserve  reserve  reserves  reserve profits Total interests equity

HfRERS:
Transactions with owners:
e
Transfer among reserves
EREE
Share option scheme
- RfRREN ST RR
- Shares issued upon exercise of
share options
-BkEER
- Share option expense
SBatELmERHES
(Hits1)
Non-controlling interests arising on
business combination (note 31)
RUEHBRAMES L
AEBERR R W51
Recognition of put option liability
arising from acquisition of
subsidiaries (note 31)
FEHEERRS
Dividends to non-controlling interests
N1UERBRE (Wi1a)
2014 final dividend (Note 13(b))
0165 P HIRE (HiH136)
2015 interim dividend (Note 13(a))

- - - - - - (19) -

(19)

(19)
. . . - - - - - - - (46) (46)
. . . - - - - - (08 (228 - (228)

- . . - - - - - (196)  (196) - (196)

ARARBEALER
AARRERADREE
Total contributions by and
distributions to owners
of the Company

1 - - 2 - - (21) - (421) (439) (38) (4m)

2FEEERS

Total transactions with owners

1 - - 2 - - (21) - (421) (439) (38) (41)

201551231 R
At December 31, 2015

19 383 3 918 2 (40) 74

1,351 2,790 176 2,966

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Eaf2 8k (E)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

HZE2015%F12A318 EFEE

For the year ended December 31, 2015

%
Group

(HEEETEEN)
(In HKS millions)

RRARREHER
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

e
Share
capital

SABH
Contributed
surplus

ER
EOfRE
Capital
redemption
reserve

RiAEE
Share
premium

BiE
1
Share
options
reserve

B 5 el
Exchange
reserve

bk
Other
eserves

&S
HEEHD

Available-

for-sal

e

financial
asset
reserve

FEEA
Retained 8%
profits Total

JEEHIM
Ea
Non-

controlling
interests

BREE
Total
equity

201451718
At January 1, 2014

78

383

905

23

)

1,486 3,006

3,249

RERRN
Profit for the year
Etpirals
Qther comprehensive income:
-TIHESRERAS
ba Lltimal)
- Fair value change on available-
for-sale financial assets
(Note 18)
-THESREARNEER
- Impairment loss on available-
for-sale financial asset

-REREEMARE R

- Fair value gain on cash flow hedge

-EERERTE A KA
- Share of other comprehensive
income of joint ventures

-ENNBAA BEAF
BEDA RALAAE
LERHE

- Exchange adjustment on

translation of overseas
subsidiaries, associates,

joint ventures and branches

(65)

@

408 408

- (65)

58

2

466

(67)

LD
Total comprehensive income

(65)

0

408 343

56

399

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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n
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%
Group

(HEEETEEN)
(In HKS millions)

Ex285k (&)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

ARARREAER

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

HZE2015F12A31HILFE
For the year ended December 31, 2015

e
Share
capital

SABH
Contributed
surplus

EX
EOfRE
Capital
redemption
reserve

RiAEE
Share
premium

BiE
1
Share
options
reserve

B 5 el
Exchange
reserve

bk
Other
eserves

AtEze
HEERR
Avallable- SR
for-sale Ex
financial ~ FFEF Non-  Bnf@E
asset  Retained A% controling Total
reserve profits Total interests equity

HfRERS:
Transactions with owners:
e
Transfer among reserves
BREE
Share option scheme
- R RREN T RR
- Shares issued upon exercise
of share options
-BREER
- Share option expense
ARAAREALE
Capital contribution by
non-controlling interests
FEHMERRS
Dividends to non-controlling interests
13ERBRE (Wi 13b)
2013 final dividend (Note 13(b))
0145 R EIRE (Wi 136)
2014 interim dividend (Note 13(a))

]

- - - (37) (87)

- (377) (377) - 377)

- (165) (165) - (165)

ARRERALER
RALRAER A RAT
Total contributions by and
distributions to owners
of the Company

- (548) 529 (%) (564

BFEZEERS

Total transactions with owners

- (548) (629) (39) (664)

2014127318
At December 31, 2014

78

383

22

67

9%

- 1,346 2910 174 3,084
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0w R M
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

201512 A31H
December 31, 2015

1.

—RER

ERREBEER AR ([ARQR]) REWES
nAE (BB IAEE]) BB —([@%E52,371HE
JEEIW B ML MBI R 2 EEMEHH R
4 & Giordano & Giordano Junior + Giordano
Ladies & BSXZE ¥ (4 AR 5% fn f& ©

ARAR—MRBREIMKNINERE T
NaE A EE A A Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda °
RAATWNELFNBBMEXHAER AR
E—mis L (RHRE : 709) -

BREFRIGERRIN  REHP BHRRUABEE T
BB - LA FFEF 3R R E 20163 A3H
EEESRBE -

FTESFHEE
BRAGHYBBRREANETES TR
RTX - BRRERBIN  WEBREMTIHRD
PIEFERNEBER -

(a) MBEE
AEFHBHRERDIERELGTHAER
2 BREAMBEHRSEER (THKFRS))
B - RGP BB MR R RE L RAR
e BEAUTHLESREE  KBRE
ERAAREREBEZERMEENARITES
BMTAZRAAEFEMIEHER -

FEBBHKFRSIRR G B R EREFE EEMA
—LEBEH A - EREBNTEER
BAREEz @ KRR ED HH - — &
TEREHE S RIEMEE  HHE
HUBBRRBEEATEZ BEMMGHR
Bt ST AH R o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Giordano International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) distribute and sell fashion apparel under
the brand names of Giordano & Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies
and BSX through an extensive retailing network with 2,371 shops
spanning over 20 countries.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Canon’s Court,
22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda. The Company has
its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(stock code: 709).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million) unless otherwise stated.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on March 3, 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The consolidated financial
statements are prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial
assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
derivative financial instruments, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. FESFBE (&)
(b) IBREBERZEARZEDN
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Impact of new and amended standards and

interpretations

The Group has adopted the following amended standards
which are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on
or after January 1, 2015:

Amendment to HKAS 19 on contributions from employees
or third parties to defined benefit plans. The amendment
distinguishes between contributions that are linked to service
only in the period in which they arise and those linked to
service in more than one period. The amendment allows
contributions that are linked to service, and do not vary with
the length of employee service, to be deducted from the cost
of benefits earned in the period that the service is provided.
Contributions that are linked to service, and vary according
to the length of employee service, must be spread over the
service period using the same attribution method that is
applied to the benefits.

Amendments from annual improvements to HKFRSs - 2010
— 2012 Cycle, on HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’, HKAS 16,
‘Property, plant and equipment’ and HKAS 38, ‘Intangible
assets’ and HKAS 24, ‘Related party disclosures’.

Amendments from annual improvements to HKFRSs — 2011
— 2013 Cycle, on HKFRS 3, ‘Business combinations’, HKFRS
13, ‘Fair value measurement’ and HKAS 40, ‘Investment
property’.

The adoption of the improvements made in the 2010-2012
Cycle has required additional disclosures in the segment note.
Other than that, the remaining amendments are not material
to the Group.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit”
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)
come into operation during the financial year, as a result,
there are changes to presentation and disclosures of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF

101



102

B %R M EE ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201512 A31H
December 31, 2015

2. FESEFBE (&)
(c) B AEFE
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognizes any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognized
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement basis
is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such
re-measurement are recognized in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Subsidiaries (continued)

Business combination (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

Change in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result
in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
— that is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposal to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognized
in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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December 31, 2015
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries (continued)
Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost, less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements
are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations each
investor have. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognized at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses
in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint
ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
joint ventures), the Group does not recognize further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf
of the joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Joint arrangements (continued)

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealized losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but does not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in an associate are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognized at cost, and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognize the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associate’s post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognized in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognize further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognizes
the amount in the consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognized in the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’'s interests in the associates.
Unrealized losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-makers. The chief operating decision-makers,
who are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been identified
as the directors and senior management that make strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s companies are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the company
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the transaction dates. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated income
statement.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Group companies

(iv)

The results and financial position of all the group
companies (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
balance sheet date;

— income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average rate is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case, income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rate on
transaction dates); and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entities and translated at the
closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognized
in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a -joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
equity holders of the company are reclassified to profit or
loss.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is stated at cost and is not amortized.

Buildings, leasehold improvements and other fixed assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents the
purchase price of the asset and other costs incurred to bring
the asset into its existing use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Freehold land is not amortized.

—  Buildings situated on freehold land are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years
after the date of completion.

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease or their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after
the date of completion.

- Plant and equipment 5 years
—  Other property and equipment 3 -5 years
Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and

adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognized in
the consolidated income statement.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

1)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and represents the excess of the
consideration transferred over the Company’s interest in
net fair value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree and the fair value of the
non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the higher
of value in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognized immediately as an expense and is
not subsequently reversed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortization and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value-in-use. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Financial assets
Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also
classified in this category as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-
current.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
“trade and other receivables” and “cash and bank
balance” in the balance sheet.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified
in any of the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12 months of
the end of the reporting period.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Financial assets (continued)

U]

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially
recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognized at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed
in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognized
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognized
in equity are included in the income statement as “gains and
losses from investment securities”.

Impairment of financial assets
(i) Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss
event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i) Assets carried at amortized cost (continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and
the amount of the loss is recognized in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan or held- to-maturity investment
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognized impairment loss is recognized in the
consolidated income statement.

(ii) Assets classified as available for sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity
investments classified as available for sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below
its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognized in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in
the consolidated income statement on equity instruments are
not reversed through the consolidated income statement. If,
in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available for sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the
impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated income
statement.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and
is arrived at as follows:

()  Raw materials and purchased goods — invoiced prices
plus procurement costs;

(i)  Work in progress and finished goods — cost of direct
materials, direct labor and an appropriate proportion of
production overheads, excluding borrowing costs.

Net realizable value is the estimated price at which inventories
can be sold in the normal course of business after allowing
for the costs of realization and, where appropriate, the cost of
conversion from their existing state to a finished condition.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within bank loans in current liabilities on
the consolidated balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

Bank loans

Bank loans are recognized initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently stated at
amortized cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized
in the consolidated income statement over the period of the
other financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

Bank loans are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

t)

(u)

Put option arrangements

The potential cash payments related to put options issued
by the Group over the equity of subsidiary companies are
accounted for as financial liabilities when such options may
only be settled other than by exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of shares in
the subsidiary. The amount that may become payable under
the option on exercise is initially recognized at fair value with a
corresponding charge directly to equity.

The Group recognizes the cost of writing such put options,
determined as the excess of the fair value of the option over
any consideration received, as a financing cost. Such options
are subsequently re-measured at fair value as a result of
the change in the expected performance at each balance
sheet date, with any resulting gain or loss recognized in
the consolidated income statement. The charge arising is
recorded as a financing cost. In the event that the option
expires unexercised, the liability is derecognized with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they are incurred, except
to the extent that they are capitalized as being directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale.

Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to
the tax authorities.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Current and deferred tax (continued)

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to the
extent that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse
in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Employee benefits

(i)

Pension obligations

Except for the pension scheme arrangements in Taiwan,
the Group operates defined contributions schemes and,
if applicable, participates in central defined contribution
provident fund schemes for all qualified employees. The
assets of the said schemes are held by independently
administered funds separated from those of the Group.
Contributions to these schemes are made by both the
employers and employees at rates up to 20% on the
employees’ salaries.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
plans and mandatory provident fund scheme are
expensed as incurred and, if applicable, are reduced
by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the scheme or the plan prior to vesting fully in
the contributions. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been made.

The branches of wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group
in Taiwan have a defined benefit scheme (“Old Scheme”)
governed by the Labor Standard Law and a defined
contribution scheme (“New Scheme”) governed by the
Labor Pension Act which became effective on July 1,
2005.

Under the Old Scheme, the Group has an obligation
to ensure that there are sufficient funds in the scheme
to pay the benefits earned for the service years of all
employees before the New Scheme was effective and
the subsequent service years of employees who chose
to continue to participate in the Old Scheme. The
branches currently contribute at 2% of the total salaries
of participating employees as determined and approved
by the relevant government authorities. The assets of the
Old Scheme are invested by the Bank of Taiwan.

Under the New Scheme, the branches contribute each
month at 6% of the salary of employees, with a cap of
NTD9,000 who choose to participate in the New Scheme
into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labor
Insurance.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Employee benefits (continued)
(i) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognized as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. At each balance sheet
date, the Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to become exercisable.
It recognizes the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated income statement
and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the
remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.

(w) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be
made.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts, rebates, returns
and value added taxes. The Group recognizes revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Sales of goods - retail

Sales of goods are recognized when products are sold
to the customer. Retail sales are usually in cash or by
credit card. The recorded revenue is the gross amount of
sales, before netting off credit card fees payable for the
transactions. Such fees are included in distribution costs.
Revenue is shown net of returns, rebates and discounts.

Sales of goods - distribution

Sales of goods are recognized when products are
delivered to the customer, the customer has accepted
the products and collectibility of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method, taking into account
the principal amount outstanding and the interest rates
applicable.

Royalty income

Royalty income is recognized on an accrual basis
in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive
payment is established.

Rental income

Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y)

()

Leases (as the lessee)
Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the leasing company
are accounted for as operating leases. Rental payments
applicable to such operating leases are charged to the
consolidated income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease periods.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities exposed it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, cash
flow interest rate risk and price risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Group
uses derivative financial instruments to manage certain risk
exposure when necessary.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations.

As at year end, the foreign exchange risk of the Group
arising from commercial transactions, recognized assets
and liabilities is considered to be insignificant. This is due
to the Group’s transactions being generally denominated
in the functional currencies of the respective group
entities, while balances denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant group
entity are generally settled promptly leaving minimal
outstanding foreign currency position as at the balance
sheet date.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #



B HmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. MBRERERE (&)
(a) MBEERREE (&)

(i)

(ii)

BE % b ()

REBRABXRXZNEHRZE
ERBENELRREE EEHY
EHEREFAENTIDR  AKH
Z ™A% A] B AT 3L & B HMEE 3
BH -

AEBEEEETHIEBRE K
FEESZINEBLERR

FEERER

AEBZEERBREERERITE
FoEWEZREMERR  HE
Be - MEWBEBALRE %5
EHZEEEAAEEREREE
FFAHrNEsEERR - R2015F
128318 * FTERITFERETRE
LEGHKE YESEAEERR -

TEHE—REBRRS  TR{EH
REABEEERSA2AERAN
HeoAEEHEHEBRITEELHE
JHEBEEFETEEHEE FEH
/30-60H °

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #

2015912 A31H
December 31, 2015

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued)

(ii)

To manage foreign exchange risk arising from
commercial transactions, recognized assets and
liabilities, companies in the Group may use forward
foreign exchange contracts when major fluctuation in the
relevant foreign currency is anticipated.

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations,
whose net assets are exposed to foreign currency
translation risk.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from balances
with bank, trade and other receivables, rental deposits
and amounts due from related parties. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets. As at December 31, 2015, all the bank deposits
are deposited in the high quality financial institutions
without significant credit risk.

Retail sales are usually made in cash, through popular
credit cards or through reputable and dispersed
department stores. The Group’s credit sales are only
made to wholesale customers with an appropriate credit
history and on credit terms of 30-60 days.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(ii) Credit risk (continued)

The table below shows the major types of debtors as at
December 31, 2015 and 2014.

&8
Group

(XEEETBEN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
HESYE Counterpart:
BERA Department stores 200 225
hnEE Ry Franchisees 64 64
Al A L IR UK AR 3k Trade receivables from

related parties - 4
FEYAE A RER K Credit card receivables 9 11
HAh Others 2 2
FEUBR 3k (B 7t22) Trade receivables

(Note 22) 275 306
¥=x Landlords 215 244

490 550

ST TR BELERRELH -
AEEVESFEREETRL ZRIT
IR (2014 : ) -

REE < R

AEEBBETTRBITRENAR
KERZREREMBERTRE
MREMREFEY  KEHRD
Bz Rk -

AREER2015F12H8318 2 &= 2084
HEBEHN —FREE - BRRBRE
BEEEREEIAIN  AEE KRR
A aR2015%12 A31H 2 2 28 7%
BEHAR—FREE -
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These counterparts have no default history in the past. The
Group holds nil bank guarantees (2014: nil) from landlords.

(iii) Liquidity risk
The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by maintaining
sufficient banking facilities and cash and cash

equivalents, which is generated from the operating cash
flow and financing cash flow.

As at December 31, 2015, all of the Group’s financial
liabilities are due within one year. As at December 31,
2015, except for the Group’s put option liability which
is due after 2 years, all of the Group’s and Company’s
financial liabilities are due within one year.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk factors (continued)
(iv) Cash flow interest rate risk

Except for the bank balance of HK$1,076 million (2014:
HK$915 million); the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets and liabilities. The bank balance and
short-term bank borrowings at floating rate expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which is
insignificant to the Group. The Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates. Management does not
anticipate significant impact resulted from the changes in
interest rates.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives on managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern as well as
maximizing returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders.

In order to improve the capital structure, the Group may
raise long term debts, adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders and issue new
shares.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk because
investments held by the Group are classified on the
consolidated balance sheet as available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

As at December 31, 2015, if there had been a 5% change
in the fair value of available-for-sale financial asset and
financial asset at fair value through profit or loss with all
other valuables held constant, the Group’s equity would have
increased/decreased by HK$0.65 million (2014: HK$0.75
million) and net profit would have increased/decreased by
HK$1.4million (2014: HK$1.4 million).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.

(i)

(ii)

Assessment of impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2 (i). The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or its fair value
less costs of disposal, whichever is higher, and both bases
require the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the CGUs and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, an impairment loss may arise (Note 15).

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

(iii) Assessment of impairment of non-current

financial assets

The Group conducts impairment reviews of non-current
assets that are subject to depreciation and amortization
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Management
assesses the recoverable amount of each non-current asset
pbased on its value in use or on its fair value less costs of
disposal (by reference to market prices), depending upon the
anticipated future plans for the assets. These calculations
require the use of judgments and estimates.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation
to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives
are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets. The depreciation for future periods is adjusted if there
are material changes from previous estimates.

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in economic conditions in places
where the Group operates and changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to changes in market
conditions. Management reassesses these estimates at each
balance sheet date.

Fair value of written put option liabilities

Certain of the Group’s business combination activities
involved put options issued by the Group over the equity of
subsidiary companies. The Group recorded such written put
option liabilities at their fair values which are determined in
accordance with the terms under those relevant agreements
and with reference to the estimated post-acquisition
performance of the acquired subsidiaries. Judgement is
required to determine key assumptions (such as growth
rate, margins and discount rate) adopted in the estimation
of post-acquisition performance of the acquired subsidiaries.
Changes to key assumptions can significantly affect the
amounts of future liabilities. Put option liabilities shall be re-
measured at their fair value resulting from events or factors
emerge after the acquisition date, with any resulting gain or
loss recognized in the consolidated income statement.
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OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers who
make strategic decisions.

There are two major business segments, namely Retail and
Distribution and Wholesale sales to overseas franchisees. The
chief operating decision-makers assess the business of the
Retail and Distribution segment from both a geographic location
and a brand perspective. From geographic perspective, the
Retail and Distribution segment comprises retail and franchise
sales in Mainland China and Middle East, retail sales in Hong
Kong and Taiwan and Rest of Asia Pacific. Certain countries are
aggregated and reported in one segment as they are under similar
economic condition or managed by the same team. From a brand
perspective, the Retail and Distribution segment is sub-divided into
Giordano & Giordano Junior, Giordano Ladies, BSX and Others.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
before finance cost, tax and share of profit of joint ventures and
associates. This is the measurement basis reported to the chief
operating decision-makers for the purpose of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance.

HREENRE D  AEBZIHERRKS An analysis of the Group’s reportable segment sales and operating
SHmAZ AT profit is as follows:
2015 2014
&ERM Eyebil
#EHE Operating HESE  Operating
(HEEETEEN) (In HK$ millions) Sales profit Sales profit
HEARE Mainland China 1,451 90 1,580 59
EERAE Hong Kong and Taiwan 1,610 119 1,640 130
SAEME Rest of Asia Pacific 1,317 151 1,362 169
HEME Middle East 639 112 617 107
ZERABAG Total Retail and Distribution 5,017 412 5,199 465
AHEFAHEFEINER Wholesale sales to overseas
franchisees 364 52 346 51
AEEE/EE R Segment sales/operating profit 5,381 524 5,545 516
e Corporate function 32 26
REER Finance expense - (1)
ElEAZARGRT Share of profit of joint ventures 42 54
e EARRR Share of profit of associate = 1
BB AER Profit before taxation 598 596

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

EE D (&)
RISES 2 FERSBZE—SHNMT

e

2015912 A31H
December 31, 2015

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Further analysis of the Retail and Distribution business by brand is
as follows:

2015 2014

BERR Ebnhil

#EE  Operating HEE  Operating

(UEEETREN) (In HK$ millions) Sales profit Sales profit
mig By brand:

Giordano K Gioraano Junior Giordano & Giordano Junior 4,302 414 4,491 396

Glordano Ladles Giordano Ladies 393 43 391 40

BSX BSX 167 1 207 14

ity Others 155 14 110 15

ZERPHAG Total Retail and Distribution 5,017 412 5,199 465

ARARHRES HREBHIERZKA
13.358 B T (20144 : 13.241887m) * &
RABERKEHIINERE ZHRAB1451EE T
(20144 : 15818 7T) + K E b B R ¥ Hh
BEZW A E25.95 7 T (20144 : 26.411E

BIL) °

DEbZ Mz W A10.761E%E T (20144 -
10218 L) ETFTAHEH -

R OKRETE NS E A A3,6008 8 T
(2014%F : 4,8008 78 70) ,&/8 & & # A3,300
BT (20149 : 3,7008 78 70) , D K E b
/33,9008 78 7T (20144 : 4,0008 78 7T) A E
& 42,6008 8 7T (20144 : 230088 7T) °

B KPERE IE & F 52,4008 78 7T (20144 ¢
1,1008 8 L) BB N EE AB1,8008/8 T
(20144 : 2,0008 & 7L) , s KH M@ A
4,0008 78 7T (20144F : 4200878 7T) , P E iy
[2 A9008 8 7T (20144 : 800& B TT) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #

The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external
customers in Hong Kong is HK$1,335 million (2014: HK$1,324
million), Mainland China is HK$1,451 million (2014: HK$1,580
million) and the total of revenue from external customers from
other countries is HK$2,595 million (2014: HK$2,641 million).

Inter-segment sales of HK$1,076 million (2014: HK$1,021 million)
have been eliminated upon consolidation.

Depreciation and amortization charged related to Mainland China
was HK$36 million (2014: HK$48 million), Hong Kong and Taiwan
was HK$33 million (2014: HK$37 million), Rest of Asia Pacific was
HK$39 million (2014: HK$40 million) and Middle East was HK$26
million (2014: HK$23 million)

Income tax expense charged related to Mainland China was
HK$24 million (2014: HK$11 million), Hong Kong and Taiwan was
HK$18 million (2014: HK$20 million), Rest of Asia Pacific was
HK$40 million (2014: HK$42 million) and Middle East was HK$9
million (2014: HK$8 million).

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201512 A31H
December 31, 2015

5.

EpI (&)
Eééé;%T\a%éﬁEIﬂ&z_u,‘%lﬁéFZ#
MENEE#T A2.01EB T (20145 : 2.2(8
BIT) 0 MR B KRE £0.92(878 7T (20144 ¢

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong is HK$201 million
(2014: HK$220 million), located in Mainland China is HK$92 million

1208 7m) MARBIINBERZZEIERS (2014: HK$129 million) and the total of these non-current assets
B EBER/13AVES T (20144 1 13.6718 located in other countries is HK$1,311 million (2014: HK$1,367
BIL) ° million).
R E S BE D  REBZHBEEZD An analysis of the Group’s assets by geographical location is as
o follows:
SHEE
Segment assets

(KB EE TRENN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
BB K B Mainland China 967 992
BEAERAE Hong Kong and Taiwan 815 763
DR E M@ Rest of Asia Pacific 617 623
PR Middle East 856 855
DEEE Segment assets 3,255 3,233
EERNRIER Interest in joint ventures 503 532
— Bt N R R Interest in an associate - 4
AHEZEMERE Available-for-sale financial assets 13 15
REZREAREREZEMEE Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss 28 28
BT IBE E Deferred tax assets 48 45
BERRE Total assets 3,847 3,857

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS
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B3R M aE ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2015912 A31H
December 31, 2015

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, NET

(KB EE TRENMN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
He A Rental income 16 13
FERr A Royalty income 36 37
M X B 18 F 5 Net exchange loss 2 (17)
FEMA Interest income 11 16
& B Uk A Dividend income 5 5
HEWE - EBELRE 2 FlE Net gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 11 14
Bt AR R R EBE(WF17) Impairment loss on associates
(Note 17) - 2
AHESREERERERE Impairment loss on available-
for-sale financial asset (2) (4)
DIEEWERB AR AR EENTE Gain on remeasurement of
REFEE w2 W= previously held interest upon
step acquisition of subsidiaries 2 -
H b U A/ 5 Other income/gains 12 15
89 77

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #
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MEHmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201512 A31H
December 31, 2015

7. R&ERA

OPERATING PROFIT

(KB EETRENL) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
KERFNESHNBRTHEIE The operating profit is stated
after charging:
HELT Amortization of
TEAF FRIE # 8 leasehold land prepayments 8 8
% 25 Em B Auditors’ remuneration 6 6
M MRERETE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 126 140
THREFZ Operating lease rentals in respect
KETHEEA of land and buildings
—-&EBEEXH — Minimum lease payments
-BFERER - office and warehouse 18 18
—HEAELIH — Minimum lease
— 58 payments — shop 874 963
—AAEESER - Contingent rent 224 225
—BBE - Management fee 54 56
fREFEXEM Provision for/(reversal of) obsolete
RFE zME/ (BH#) stock and stock written off 5 9)
B IR (FF3E9) Staff costs (Note 9) 886 874

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS
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B3R M aE ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2015912 A31H
December 31, 2015

8. RMEEH 8. FINANCE EXPENSE
(KB EE TRENMN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
HITEFRFE Interest on bank loans - 1
9. EIT XK 9. STAFF COSTS
(A FEE TREN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
HehkIE Salaries and wages
(BREEEH) (including directors’ emoluments) 806 790
EREER Share option expense 3 2
BRE - R EHKETE Pension cost — defined
contribution plans 77 82
886 874
KEFRN KEBSBERREEN ZMHK During the year, no unvested benefits were utilized by the Group
(20144 : 4%) DURVE M FOK T o 7820154 K to reduce the level of contributions (2014: Nil). As at December 31,
2014512 H318 - BB A RF (LA 2 KeE 2015 and 2014, no unvested benefits were available to be utilized
SHELHE K - in future years.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 131
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B %R M EE ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201512 A31H
December 31, 2015

10.EEPVFFZFAELRS 10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(a) EEE £ (a) Directors’ emoluments

ExXine

R

Employer’s

REKRar  RARE  HtEE contribution
e #4¢ Discretionary Share Other to pension &it
BEfE Name of Directors Fees  Salaries  Bonuses**  options  benefits*  schemes Total
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000

2015
el LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter - 3,399 13,756 - 1,933 18 19,106
Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI - 1,462 4,049 514 44 49 6,118
B IRWIN Dominic Leo Richard" - 2,651 111 10 21 18 2,811
Frd CHAN Ka Wa - 1,617 370 10 16 18 2,031
BEAr CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian’ 200 - - - - - 200
Rt g CHAN Sai Cheong' 200 - - - - - 200
RN Barry John BUTTIFANT 400 - - - - - 400
BEE KWONG Ki Chi* 350 - - - - - 350
Py LEUNG Kwok 154 - - - - - 154
B WONG Yuk (alias, HUANG Xu) ® 58 - - - - - 58
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH* Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH* 350 - - - - - 350
1,712 9,129 18,286 534 2,014 103 31,778
2014

il LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter - 3,038 13,652 - 1,961 17 18,668
Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI' Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI' - 1,463 3,407 1,131 65 49 6,115
NEH' IRWIN Dominic Leo Richard" - 2283 - 9 21 17 2330
FEE CHAN Ka Wai' - 1,221 - 9 16 17 1,263
g0 CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian’ 200 - - - - - 200
BtE" CHAN Sai Cheong’ 200 - - - - - 200
RN Barry John BUTTIFANT 400 - - - - - 400
B KWONG Ki Chi* 350 - - - - - 350
2g LEUNG Kwok* 370 - - - - - 370
Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH* Simon Devilliers RUDOLPH* 350 - - - - - 350
1,870 8,006 17,059 1,149 2,063 100 30,246

t T RITHREE

Chairman and Chief Executive

T
BAERITES * Independent non-executive directors
SEMITES " Non-executive directors
# Hm s o EREBER - BERRIEZR # Other benefits include insurance premium, housing and tax allowances
o WBMRARBR N DR R IEEIRTE 2R F **  Discretionary bonus is determined based on profit sharing ratio or pre-
BEEREFTRE determined acheivement rate of profit targets.
! R2014F6 208 £ TE S i Appointed as a director on June 20, 2014
2 R201595 250 Bt 2 Passed away on May 25, 2015
8 R2015F11AIMBETEE 3 Appointed as a director on November 11, 2015
132 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10.EEM N EMER (F)

(a) EEM= (&)
REFERN MARAEEXNZHME

2015912 A31H
December 31, 2015

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The aggregate amount of emoluments payable to directors of

WEEAN the Company during the year is as follows:
(UEEETHEN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
we Fees 2 2
Hinil< Other emoluments:
EX%& FBEEYN Bk Basic salaries, housing
Hin 2B R BN & allowances, share options,
other allowances and
benefits in kind 12 11
Al Bonuses 18 17
32 30

(b) ENESFHRE
RAFERN AEEBRAU GRS HFEE
B ARG (20144 @ 3fi) = 5 - H B
SZHBERLEXHEE - FH T2
(204F 2 ) e FBREMS BT
R

(N EEETRENL)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include 3 (2014: 3) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments payable to the remaining 2 (2014: 2)
individuals during the year are as follows:

(In HK$ millions) 2015 2014

EXHE FEERM B

Basic salaries, housing

Hin 2B REY = allowances, pension, other
allowances and benefits in kind 5 5
B4 Bonuses 1 1
6 6

BRIRSFBREEMSARNFRENT

The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals fell
within the following bands:

<485l AE

Emolument bands Number of individuals
2015 2014

HK$

2,000,001 - 3,000,000 1 1

3,000,001 - 4,000,000
4,000,001 - 5,000,000

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #
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MEHmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201512 A31H
December 31, 2015

10.EEM N EMER (F)

(c) MEE - TRFEFERNEA
EREEZEESNEETIBREMHN
EX - EERNEMAXZHESR

ARBE NS TFEURARBES - &
HZEESTHMEAERREREZE
EEHENTEAIRAZER %]
REEMR S EFRIEEEDQRIEN
£383(1) () g K F622GEE =2 H 1E L
WE (20144 : 4E) -

11. 818
78 FIB BUR IR I8 75 2518 7 1 3 FE SR Bk F
216.5% (20147 1 16.5%) 2 B ¥ &t - 15}
BB Ty A5 A4 B B P 2 B

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(c) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and connected entities with
such directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
of the directors, their controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities for disclosure pursuant to section 383(1)(d)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of 622G
(2014: None)

11. TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2014:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Overseas
taxation is calculated at the rates applicable in the respective
jurisdictions.:

(U BB T REN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
fr8%iE Income tax
KEEMBHIEA Current income tax

—BENER - Hong Kong profits tax 20 21

— BB - Outside Hong Kong 70 71

-MERAR—GERAHE - Withholding tax on distribution

Z Al BN I8 from subsidiaries and
a joint venture 37 27

EREBE Deferred tax
MREEEEREY Relating to the origination and

TERER reversal of temporary differences (7 9

BEMEER (R /TR

(Over)/under provision in prior years

—BENEH - Hong Kong profits tax - 1
—BAEUI - Outside Hong Kong 2 1
BIEZ M Taxation charge 118 130

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2015912 A31H
December 31, 2015

11. 5% 18 (48) 11. TAXATION (continued)
REE 2 HIE T EARR R AR ER R W&t Reconciliation of the Group’s profit before taxation at the tax rate
EoBRMAENBE BEEmT of Hong Kong to the taxation charge is as follows:
(ABZETRENL) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
BRBAREF (TEEEEEE QA Profit before taxation (before share of
S8 A=WNEIb R profit of joint ventures and associates) 556 541
B %16.5% Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% 92 89
(20144 : 16.5%) & it (2014: 16.5%)
HBERTARE 2 E Effect of different tax rates
in other countries 14 11
PAAB 2 X Expenses not deductible
for tax purposes 9 8
ABRZELREEE Deferred tax assets not recognized 13 23
BERB A Income not subject to tax (37) (34)
FREMABRACTE Utilization of previously
unrecognized tax losses (3) (4)
BRERMABHEAZTE Recognition of preivously
unrecognized tax losses 2 1
NEwE Withholding tax 30 34
BEFETRER Under provision in prior years 2 2
BB H Taxation charge 118 130
AN REBFEENBAT ZHRHIBEEZIEE The provision for taxation of the Company and its Hong Kong
REERBBRNGEER B ZAFTERT subsidiaries is calculated by applying the current rate of taxation of
i FIEIR TR 16.5% (20144F 1 16.5%) 51 & - 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) to the estimated assessable profits earned in

or derived from Hong Kong during the year.

HEtREE txﬁl\?é*ézfﬁ%’“TZﬂ TRIE Taxation on the profits of other subsidiaries operating outside
EREBEARS VAR 2H X Hong Kong is calculated at the rates applicable in the respective
jurisdictions.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201512 A31H
December 31, 2015

12. 5 R&EF
EREALNBERRNDREAFERREGS
BEHETA. 26188 7T (2014 : 40818 T) 51 &

BEREABFDEAFERBEITRNG
hnHE F 19 IR #1,570,283,2300% (20144 -
1,569,176,9290% ) 5+ & o

FREEREF VREE2015FE A BT
1D Z INHEF B #81,570,283,2300% (20144 -
1,569,176,9290%) hn £ REZARIE A1 5] 08 A A&
HAERE T EE S RTTEBRERETT
M E 1T 2 IR 1D 2 hn#E F 39 i 811,383,913 %
(20144 : 2,121,728/ 51 & -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on the consolidated profit attributable to shareholders for the year
of HK$426 million (2014: HK$408 million).

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average
of 1,570,283,230 shares (2014: 1,569,176,929 shares) in issue
during the year.

The diluted earnings per share is based on 1,570,283,230 shares
(2014: 1,569,176,929 shares) which is the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the year plus the weighted
average of 1,383,913 shares (2014: 2,121,728 shares) deemed to
be issued if all dilutive outstanding share options granted under
the share option scheme of the Company had been exercised.

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #



MBRRWE (E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2015912 A31H
December 31, 2015

13. R 2 13. DIVIDENDS
(a) XFEREWMT : (a) Dividends attributable to the year:
(K BEETHEN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
EEMAEREZFHRE Interim dividend declared and
FR12.551 paid of 12.5 HK cents
(20145 : BR10.5%10) (2014: 10.5 HK cents) per share 196 165
196 165

REEBREZZ AR E
FR14.5%8 1
(20144 : BRZ14.57810)

Final dividend proposed
after the balance sheet
date of 14.5 HK cents

(2014 14.5 HK cents) per share 228 228
228 228
424 393

R2016F3ASHETZEST @ b
EEEBRERBRE BSR4 5/%%
&tlﬁ%‘?ﬁ/ﬂigﬁ *“AEIJIEET:EWI%%T e
%éﬁ%ﬁ%w%‘ Ho

b) BRE—FE IREXFERE
BEXNHRE :

(N EEETRENL)

At the board meeting held on March 3, 2016, the directors
proposed final dividend of 14.5 HK cents per share. The
proposed dividend has not been recognized as a liability at
the balance sheet date. The amount of proposed dividend
was based on the shares in issue as at the proposed date.

(b) Dividends attributable to the previous year,
approved and paid during the year:

(In HK$ millions) 2015 2014

Bt MR 22014 F R HIRR &
145581
(20134 : T%24.07%8 L)

2014 final dividend approved
and paid of 14.5 HK cents
(2013: 24.0 HK cents)
per share 228 377

EXHRESBEDIERREXNBZE
BITRMEBBAE

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #

The amount of dividends paid was based on the number of
shares outstanding as at the dividend payment date.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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B3 8RR MY R ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

20155 12H31H

December 31, 2015

14. Y% - B RRE

(HEE#TAEL) (In HK$ millons)

RAE Cost

201551418 At January 1, 2015

BEESE Translation difference

WERB AR Acqusition of subsidiaries
(#1231 (Note 31)

"E Additions

e Disposals

7201512 A31H At December 31, 2015

2RNE Accumulated depreciation

#2015%1A18 At January 1, 2015

BEEE Translation difference

WENBAR Acquisition of subsidiaries
(Hi3t) (Note 31)

BERE Impairment

TEEHE Charge for the year

e Disposals

12015F12 4318 At December 31, 2015

#2015%12A31H Net book value at
ZEERE December 31, 2015

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

M EBE R

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
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MBRRWE (E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

14. Y% - SR 1E (E)

15.

201512 A31H
December 31, 2015

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

HEME
R BRR
KAERE BN
21 Leasehold
RETF BER  improvements,
Freehold B fumniture HE
land & BF Plant & & office Motor A
(N EEHTAEN) (In HK$ millions) buildings Buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
K& Cost
20141 A18 At January 1, 2014 58 25 55 1,043 23 1,204
BEEE Translation difference (3) - " (25) ¥ (30)
AE Additions - - - 144 - 144
hE Disposals - (1) (1) (79) (1) (76)
M2014F12A318 At December 31, 2014 55 24 53 1,089 21 1,242
ZENE Accumulated depreciation
M2014F1A18 At January 1, 2014 13 7 52 833 15 920
BEZEE Translation difference (1) - (1) (23) - (25)
TEERE Charge for the year 1 1 1 134 3 140
HE Disposals - (1) (1) (71) (1) (74)
20145127310 At December 31, 2014 13 7 51 873 17 961
120145127318 Net book value at
LEERE December 31, 2014 42 17 2 216 4 281
Gk 15. GOODWILL
(ABEETREN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
M1A1A At January 1 535 535
UG BB B B A R (A1 a£31) Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 31) 11 -
M12H31H At December 31 546 535

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #
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MEHmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201512 A31H

December 31, 2015

15. & ()
EFEOCBREBEESIEMBEER S BLER
AEBEZEHANBEEELEEM(ICGU]) - &
BiRp@E o EamunT

15. GOODWILL (continued)

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generating units (“CGU”)
identified according to the location of operation and business
segment. The goodwill analysed by operating segment is as
follows:

(U BEETAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
ZENDH Retail and Distribution
— K E b [@ — Rest of Asia Pacific 5 5
—FEE - Middle East 541 530
546 535
BEREEAR Impairment test for goodwill

CGUZ rI i el & 58 IR B AR BER HE K
ANt o ZEAE T ENE R B & 25F B
BHEENUNER R RE - BEEREBRA
PREBREYMISRE 2 FEHRETEE -
PR E EF Y HEERRERIEN A% -
STFHRENE RS RE  IFRAEEERNE
PINEREZRO G EFRERIDHE - B
UAE,FT R Z FATBEIR R 512.75%, H b 3
& PR A 2 B RTAGIR R B183.8%E15.1% &
ERBMEBEES BB ERR -

EEZRRMR2015F K2014F12 A1 B IE W &
BERE -

AEEBTHEEFEREIANERER
EITHURME DT - B2015FEh RS -
REZ2RElaEdERRBaEnwesgre
SIBIMREELSENEE S BBB ARG
& 58 o R2015%F12A831H » R Hih & R IE
£ FA{E (B 5T & H9 ] Uiz [2) 25080 18 168 AR 1 {85,400
BT WMPRMEREARFFHHEERER
REREEBEE0.6MEH D P RMEE
BB ERIER -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on
fair value less costs of disposal calculation. These calculations
use post-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period.
Management determines the financial budgets of Middle East
based on past performance and its expectations of market
development. The average annual sales growth rate is expected to
be 7%. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rate of 3% per annum after considering
both internal and external factors. The pre-tax discount rates used
for UAE is 12.75% while other Middle East Regions is between
13.8% to 15.1% and they reflect specific risks relating to the
segment.

The directors are of the opinion that there was no impairment of
goodwill as at December 31, 2015 and 2014.

The Group has performed a sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions used for the annual impairment test for goodwill.
Except for Middle East in 2015, a reasonably possible change in
key assumptions used in the impairment test for goodwill would
not cause any CGU’s carrying amount to exceed its respective
recoverable amount. As at December 31, 2015, the recoverable
amount for Middle East calculated based on fair value less costs to
sell exceeded carrying value by HK$54 million. Had Middle East’'s
forecasted average annual sales growth rate been 0.6 percentage
point lower than management’s estimates,Middle East’s remaining
headroom would be removed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2015912 A31H
December 31, 2015

16 EE ARER 16 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES
SEETMALERRZERTT Particulars of the unlisted joint ventures are as follows:
BRTR2HARZRAE
HEZHNADER BRURBE L FEMEX
Name of Place of FERGBEALE Issued and fully
jointly controlled incorporation Percentage of paid share capital FTEER
company and operation equity holding or registered capital Principal activities
2015 2014
Giordano Corporation K& REE 48.5 485 1,030,000/ BETERER
Limited* Republic of Korea SRR EES,0008 B B 2 Lk REHAm
1,030,000 common stock of Retail of apparel and
WONS5,000 each accessories
ERGCERRAAN B 49.0 49.0 200,000 REBENHES
Cheong Yiu Hong Kong BREBEIET,EER Trading of
Enterprises Limited* 200,000 ordinary shares of packaging products
HK$1 each

© HEREZREES R A

* joint ventures held indirectly

(A FEE T REN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
Mm1A18 At 1 January 532 539
FEAG & T Share of profit 42 54
BlEENFIRE Dividends received from

joint ventures (35) (87)
MEETE Translation difference (36) (24)
M12A31H At 31 December 503 532

TXEINZAERRZBMADAEBHEEFT

B2 B BB -
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The joint venture listed below has share capital consisting solely of

ordinary shares, which is held directly by the Group.
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B %R M EE ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201512 A31H
December 31, 2015

16 5% QA= (&)
BELRZHBENEE
TXHIGEAR 2B EREE -

16 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
Summarised financial information for joint ventures

Set out below are the summarised financial information for joint
ventures.

(U B EETHBENMN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
bk Current
HeRReEEET Cash and cash equivalents 404 379
B mE&EE Other current assets 642 748
MEEEBRR Total current assets 1,046 1,127
Htnsas Other current liabilities (92) (114)
MBI AERRE Total current liabilities (92) (114)
B Non-current
BE Assets 93 100
Bf&E Liabilities (12) (14)
EEFE Net assets 1,035 1,099
SN ES K4 Summarised income statement
(X FEE TREN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
W e Revenue 1,556 1,754
k- Y% ¥ Depreciation and amortisation (29) (27)
=] Expense (1,419) (1,583)
B 350 AR Profit before taxation 108 144
s Taxation (22) (32)
B B 18 0% 7 & Profit after taxation and total

BER A W comprehensive income 86 112

142 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MBRRWE (E)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

16 &N E#EE (&)

Bt 55 B B 8%
BERREEEEZMBERFEE

2015912 A31H
December 31, 2015

16 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information

Reconciliation of the summarized financial information presented to
the carrying amount of its interest in the joint ventures.

(U B EETHBENMN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
1A1BEEFE Opening net assets 1 January 1,099 1,112
R AE S i 7 Profit for the year 87 111
BElEERARRE Dividends received from

joint ventures (72) (76)
MmEEE Translation difference (78) (48)
12A31BEEFE Closing net assets 1,035 1,099
EihA &R AR Share of interest in joint ventures 503 532
Bk Goodwill - -
FEEEB Carrying value 503 532
BEMRE 2 AE Operating lease commitments 342 498

$%Fﬁ¢%ﬁZAM’“TZ$ﬁ jI/x*ﬁ‘/%/F&

EMRRBEREREE -

$%W?§$K§£%%E&’§$7¥KH§
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There are no material contingent liabilities and capital
commitments relating to the Group’s interest in the joint ventures,
and the joint ventures have no contingent liabilities and capital

commitments themselves.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MEHmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201512 A31H
December 31, 2015

17. B4 N T RE RS 17. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

(KB EETRENL) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
FEEmRGL (KAE) Unlisted shares (at cost) = -
Bl Wt B 18 i 71 Share of post-acquisition profits - 6
BTl Uk B 1% o 1 Share of post-acquisition reserves - -

B R EEE (B ite) Less: Provision for impairment
(Note 6) - @)
- 4

AEEFHEZIFLMBE QR ESEOT

The Group’s interest in its unlisted associates are as follows:

(K BEETREN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
BE Assets = 7
aE Liabilities = ()
G & EFE Share of net assets - 6
W #= Revenue = 12
EH Expense - (11)
B 75 B A Profit before taxation = 1

I8 Taxation = -
FEAGBR TR 1% 3 T Share of profit after taxation = 1

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS
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B HmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

18. AT HEZEMEE
AEEZeMEERNAERRIERERA
A) ([ FEIRER]) 4.85% 2 #E5(2014: 4.85%)

2015912 A31H
December 31, 2015

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available-for-sale financial assets represented 4.85% interest in
Speedy Global Holdings Limited (“Speedy”) (2014: 4.85%).

(K FEETAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
W1 A1R At January 1 15 14
BARBECEEHEA Fair value change transfer to
AHEZSMEERE available-for-sale financial
assets reserve - 1
BARBEZES Fair value change charged to
R FIE 5% 51 32 income statement 2) -
M®12A31H At December 31 13 15

MR2015F12A31H ' A E 2 eMEEER
MFEIRIKA.85% e o ZEER B ITE
B MERKEERREEER - EXKBEH
FEHERZ— -

R2015F12A31H AJHEZSRMEEZ A

RERREBEEBHERSMBR AR ZBE
BE 2BERE—MH-

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #

As at December 31, 2015, available-for-sale financial assets
represented 4.85% interest in Speedy and is denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. Speedy is engaged in garment manufacturing
business and is one of the key suppliers of the Group.

As at December 31, 2015, the fair value of the available-for-sale
financial asset is determined using its quoted price on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited which is categorised as Level 1.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201512 A31H
December 31, 2015

19. RIBRERAABEE >SHEE 19. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

MR2008F6A27H * ARRIFIVEEWZELE
Placita Holdings Limited ([ Placita]) 21.0%%#
@ o IRIBEZ W - 8T 26,055,4400% & @ AR
REAREBIFEH T30.0%E T2 BAWE
¥ $8 /56,055,4400% Placitaz 18 45 i% ([ 18 5
BR1) o BRI T ARFELER 2R
SHHAME -

ZEEREREHERENEZRARAE
e - ARBEEREFRMEE  RHRER
ZBFFRABLEXBERIREMFMA -

M2015F12A31AZELER R BHEBAE LR
7t BB £2,8008 % 7L (20144 : 2,8008 &
L) c RIEEEBREAREREZ EREESZA
hEZSHERIBERIEAEMEA -

ZARERERATERECSRMEEAR
BEEBREMRBERAETREZINENSIE
RAABRME EME/NER CHa B R
A) 0 IBIEHKFRS 7H) QA R B R 4B 58
BEZR -

PROFIT OR LOSS

On June 27, 2008, the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its 21.0% interest in Placita Holdings
Limited (“Placita”). As part of the agreement, the remaining
6,055,440 Ordinary Shares representing the Group’s remaining
30.0% of the total issued share capital of Placita held by the
Company were redesignated into 6,055,440 preference shares of
Placita (the “Preference Shares”). Furthermore, the Purchaser also
granted to the Company a put option on the Preference Shares.

The Preference Shares and the related options are measured at
fair value through profit or loss. The fair value has been and will be
re-assessed by an independent professional valuation firm at year
end and the end of each subsequent period.

The fair value of the Preference Shares and the related options
is HK$ 28 million as at December 31, 2015 (2014: HK$28
million). Changes in the fair values of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded in other income in the income
statement.

The fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss is determined based on discounted cash flow, using inputs
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs), which is categorised as level 3 under the fair value
hierarchy pursuant to HKFRS 7.

(KB EETHAENN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
W1 A1R At January 1 28 28

RABRRBAREZIE N

Increase in fair value to
income statement - -

W12A31H

At December 31 28 28

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS
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20. HE L RESHNI A

B3R M aE ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201512 A31H
December 31, 2015

20. LEASEHOLD LAND AND RENTAL PREPAYMENTS

AELH e
BfffE  EfRE
Leasehold land Rental fit
prepayments prepayments Total
(WEEETAER) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2015 2015 2014
MAIBZREFE Net book value at January 1 174 99 273 290
BhEZEE Translation difference @ ] ) )
NE Additions - 47 47 43
TEEEH Amortization for the year ) (50) (58) (57)
e Disposals 1) - (1) (1)
M2A3IA ZEEFE Net book value at December 31 163 89 252 273
RHHS Current portion 6) (41) (47) (45)
ki) Long-term portion 157 48 205 228

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 #
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MEHmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201512 A31H
December 31, 2015

21. 78 21. INVENTORIES
(U BEE TREN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014

R & Raw materials = 2

X i Finished goods 491 512

491 514

GEECHERAERYLEEHER AT A
22 81836 7T (20144 « 23.418# )

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

The cost of inventories recognized as expense and included
in cost of goods sold amounted to HK$2,280 million (2014:

HK$2,340 million).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2015912 A31H
December 31, 2015

22 FEURBRF N H #h FE WL X 22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(KB EETRENL) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
FE U BR 3R Trade receivables 275 306
R E R E Less: Provision for impairment (11) (15)
FEREERUFE Trade receivables, net 264 291
Ef g B Other receivables, including
e RIERRIA deposits and prepayments 278 288
542 579
RIBEREARHESEN NEBEESER Other than cash and credit card sales, the Group normally allows a
T#HTHEZEZFEFI0Z60HEER - credit period of 30 to 60 days to its trade customers.
BUREFRMEMERTANEBENRZER The other classes within trade and other receivables do not
SEREEE- contain impaired assets.
(a) BRi#R 2 AT (a) Ageing analysis
REFEBRIEER (0B REEEHE) < F As at the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis from the
BRIBIBEEZA ST invoice date of trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful

debts) is as follows:

(U B EETRBEI) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
0&30H 0 - 30 days 187 212
31260H 31 - 60 days 42 46
61£90H 61 - 90 days 13 17
#O0H Over 90 days 22 16
264 291
FEWBER EEELN AR ENE - BAE The carrying amount of trade receivables are stated approximately
BEESHAHRERH A EERER at fair value. There is no concentration of credit risk with
TWaERMEZEERE - respect to trade receivables as the Group has a large number of

internationally dispersed customers.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 149
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201512 A31H

December 31, 2015

22 EWERF R Hfth FEUWRFR (1)

(a) BR#: 7 47 (48)

R2015F12A31H - BB W ERE 2
JE U BR 3% 55,8005 7% 7T (20144F : 6,800
BET) MAETEERFPAXAOWE
BEH - BEBEZHEE D ZBRE DN

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a)

Ageing analysis (continued)

As at December 31, 2015, trade receivables of HK$58 million
(2014: HK$68 million) were past due but not impaired. These
related to a number of customers for whom there had been
no recent history of default. Their ageing analysis from the

m due date is as follows:

(U BEBTREN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014

0%E30H 0 - 30 days 28 37

#30H Over 30 days 30 31
58 68

(b) FEUR AR =X B9 IR B

FEU IR SR R BB 1R - Th AR P A
B BREASERRKEIRKN K IR
- ERBERT  BESEBERERK

(b)

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment loss in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables
directly.

FRNREERE S (BIFET R EEE The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
BELS) AT year, including both specific and collective loss components,
is as follows:

(XBBETRENL) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
®1A18 At January 1 15 17
AN EE S A] Y (B s BR SR ER 1D 2 il EE Receivables written off during

the year as uncollectible (4) (2)
M12A31H At December 31 11 15

&5 2 BB 2 FE 4 SRR 3R B R B e &
B 88 IE E S E TR B R T Uk ml 2R 40 Uk AR
Ko BRSNS EREEE - AEEALEH
BRARFFBEAER M -

150 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

The individually impaired receivables relate to customers that are in
financial difficulties and management assesses that only a portion
of the receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently,
specific allowances for doubtful debts were recognized.The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

23. A

201512 A31H
December 31, 2015

23. SHARE CAPITAL

(K BEETREN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
EIE Authorized:
2,000,000,0008% 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of

FREESBIZ T mA HK$0.05 each 100 100
ERITREEHAE Issued and fully paid:
1,570,394,518/% 1,570,394,518 ordinary shares

(20144 : 1,569,912,5180%) (2014: 1,569,912,518 ordinary

FREESEILZ LB shares) of HK$0.05 each 79 78

RAFER  SHTRAZEBHERNT

Details of the movement in the issued share capital during the year
are set out below:

RH#BE

Number of shares

2015 2014

FREESHEIZ EBR

W1A1H

BATR D

Ordinary shares of
HK$0.05 each

At January 1
Issue of shares

1,569,912,518
482,000

1,5666,836,518
3,076,000

W12A318 At December 31 1,570,394,518 1,569,912,518
(a) ETRHD (a) Issue of shares

BARNABZERERE  RRAINRAF
ERNEBEREREEATEBRENT 2
EF T ETERmESSI 2 3T B
5 $£482,000/% °

ARBBITZABHEEARELRRRE
BRARNESTEYZFE RS

(b) BEREEH
BEREAIZBERARABRERAK
FEAZEBFBEHNREI7T2BEE179E °

(c) B #%
AR B AN E R I 4 B ) B AR AT AR 7

(d —E&RAFMBEENRSG
MR2015F12A31H —A &R HE
XA 511,800,000 38 % f% 15 (20144 :
1,800,000 i A% AZ 1) °

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #

(b)

(c)

(d)

Pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company, the
Company issued 482,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in
the capital of the Company to option-holders who exercised
their rights attached to share options during the year.

All the new ordinary shares issued by the Company ranked
pari passu with the then existing shares of the Company in all
respects.

Share option information

A summary of the share option scheme and details of the
movement in share options of the Company during the year
are set out on pages 172 to 179.

Repurchase of shares

During the year, the Company did not repurchase any of its
shares.

Shares held by a joint venture

As at December 31, 2015, 1,800,000 ordinary shares (2014:
1,800,000 ordinary shares) were held by a joint venture.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A XEKAERLF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201512 A31H
December 31, 2015

24 EXFFEFIEER

REBEZIEERES LB A1.76688 T
(20144  1.748 %8 L) + EFPT. Giordano
Indonesia ([ Indonesial) 11.238& 7t (2014
£ :41.23{8# L) * Giordano Fashions (L.L.C.)
(TUAE]) 151,9008 % 7T (20144 : 1,5008 78
JT) * MTextile and Ready Garments Co. Ltd.
([ Saudi]) 152,100& % 7T (20144 : 3,1008
BIT) o HMb A A ZIEERERTERX o

BEERGFEREZZHNBELT M

TXEEHEE RS (HAKEN S B
BERUHE) 2MBRAIZHMBEERME -

24. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

The total non-controlling interest for the period is HK$176 million
(2014: HK$174 million), of which HK$123 million (2014: HK$123
million) is for PT. Giordano Indonesia(‘Indonesia”), HK$19 million
(2014: HK$15 million) is for Giordano Fashions (L.L.C.) (“UAE”)
and HK$21 million (2014: HK$31 million) is for Textile and Ready
Garments Co. Ltd.(“Saudi”). The non-controlling interest in respect
of the rest of the companies are not material.

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries
with material non-controlling interests

Set out below is the summarised financial information for each
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to the
Group.

EEEERER Summarised balance sheet
Z1 MARKAERE W 1 B 1 15

Indonesia UAE Saudi
(KB &E#TAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
e Current
BE Assets 188 173 57 92 107 106
afE Liabilities (37) (39) (19) (33) 41) (26)
MENFEEBH Total current net assets 151 134 38 59 66 80
FERE Non-current
= Assets 56 61 29 31 33 41
EREFEELT Total non-current net assets 56 61 29 31 33 4
FEE Net assets 207 195 67 90 99 121

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

B B E B ER

n

Gl
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

24 EXFFEFIMER (F)

(continued)

MBRRWE (E)

20155 12H31H

December 31, 2015
24. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

SN E S K4 Summarised income statement
g0e MAAEAERE it bR {R
Indonesia UAE Saudi

(UEEFTRENL) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
YA Revenue 444 436 235 243 325 324
B B¢ A1 4 A Profit before income tax 79 96 30 28 48 44
FSHER Income tax expense (20) (24) - - (9) (7)
B 751 18 3 F Post-tax profit 59 72 30 28 39 37
Hibir e s Other comprehensive income (46) (23) - - - -
ERA Total comprehensive income 13 49 30 28 39 37
JERGI S Total comprehensive income

iR e WE allocated to Non- Controlling

Interests 7 25 6 6 10 9

JEEHIIE R Dividends paid to

BERRE Non-Controlling Interests 14 15 11 8 18 10

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #
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B %R M EE ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201512 A31H
December 31, 2015

24. T A I A M RE R () 24. MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

(continued)

HERERBHE Summarised cash flows
ge MAAHEERE bR TR
Indonesia UAE Saudi

(NEEETRENL) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
REEB 2 Net cash inflow from

BemAFHE operating activities 45 63 26 48 70 59
REEK Net cash outflow from

RemiFE investing activities (16) (19) (5) 7 (9) (16)
MEEKZ Net cash outflow from

RemtEE financing activities (28) (37) (42) (43) (60) (41)
HekBeEE Increase/(decrease) in cash

2 CRD) and cash equivalents 1 7 (21) ©) 1 2
AzBRER Cash and cash equivalents

ReSEET at January 1 54 48 48 50 55 53
HNEEREE B Effect of foreign exchange

rate changes (5) 1) 1 - (1) -

M2A31AZE4S Cash and cash equivalents

LB EEET at December 31 50 54 28 48 55 55

PERARAEE AR HMEHNSE -

The information above is the amount before inter-company
eliminations.

154 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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5. AREERBEREKERSH X

%R (E)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2015912 A31H
December 31, 2015

OF THE COMPANY

25. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS

(U BEETREN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
&E ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
ME - RERZE Property, plant and equipment 7 7
=N 2 Interest in subsidiaries 817 817
REZREAABEREZEHEE Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss 28 28
JFE U P J8 2 B 5108 Amounts due from subsidiaries 226 233
HELTHRBLEBEMNFIA Leasehold land and rental

prepayments 114 119
HEEZS Rental deposits 1 1

1,193 1,205
REBEE Current assets
HELwRBLSBENKIE Leasehold land and rental prepayments 5 5
JRE LS BR R R L fth B WK Trade and other receivables 3 3
A= PNCIE ] Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,374 1,067
Re RRTET Cash and bank balances 43 46
1,425 1,121

BEEHAE Total assets 2,618 2,326
EEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BARHE Capital and reserves
[h&N Share capital 79 78
@ (Hitp) Reserves (Note(b)) 1,535 1,629
BRI E Proposed dividends 228 228
EHERE Total equity 1,842 1,935
nEBEE Current liabilities
A< BR 0 I L b FE 9 3R Trade and other payables 4 3
JEASH PR B 2 B 3B Amounts due to subsidiaries 771 387
18 Taxation 1 1
EEAE Total liabilities 776 391
EERAEAR Total equity and liabilities 2,618 2,051
FRBEE Net current assets 649 (391)
EEAERABEE Total assets less current liabilities 1,842 1,935
2 B fE RRE=#
LAU Kwok Kuen, Peter CHAN Ka Wai
EZE EZE
Director Director

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #
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(b) 2=

B3 8RR MY R ()
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2015912 A31H
December 31, 2015

2B AREERBERRESZEEHX

OF THE COMPANY

(b) Company

(UEEETAENN) (In HK$ millons)
R201551A1A At January 1, 2015
REERT Profit for the year
Birbla Total comprehensive income
FEmEE Transfer among reserves
EREE Share option scheme
—REf R E - Shares issued upon exercise
ks 4l of share options
-RREER - Share option expense
2014 KRB B (Hi130) 2014 final dividend (Note 13(b)
20155 R HRE 2015 interim dividend
(HiE15) (Note 13(3))
R2015%12A31A At December 31, 2015

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
& o B E R 2 A

25. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS
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2. XREEERREERSBHR (R)

(b) 27 (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

MBRRWE (E)

201512 A31H

December 31, 2015
25. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS

OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(b) Company (continued)

2014F 7 kB =0T - The comparative figures for 2014 are set out as follows:
EX R E
BOEE B
RE  @GARH Capital  IRIHETE Share  EFEF EngEH
Share Contributed  redemption Share options  Retained Total
(NEEETBEN) (In HKS millions) capital  surplus  reserve  premium  reserve profits equity
R2014%E1 A18 At January 1, 2014 78 540 3 905 23 437 1,986
REE R Profit for the year - - - - - 478 478
BreKE Total comprehensive income - - - - - 478 478
L EEE! Transfer among reserves - - - - (3 3 -
EREE Share option scheme
—RiTF R - Shares issued upon exercise
&7z kA of share options - - - 11 - - 11
-BREER - Share option expense - - - - 0 _ 9
2013EXBRE 2013 final dividend - - - - - (377) (377)
(H#130) (Note 13(b)
0145 ERE 2014 interim dividend - - - - - (165) (165)
(H13) (Note 13(a))
- - - 11 (1) (539) (529)
120145124318 At December 31, 2014 78 540 3 916 22 376 1,935

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 #
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MEHmRMEE (&)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

201512 A31H
December 31, 2015

26. f##E
R2015F12A318 » AEB 2 FEES LT

26. RESERVES

The reserves of the Group as at December 31, 2015 are analyzed

as follows:

(U EEFTREN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
AR Contributed surplus 383 383
&R E B RS Capital redemption reserve 3 3
B 15 % 1B Share premium 918 916
ERERE Share options reserve 22 22
HE 5 % Exchange reserve (40) 67
H bR Other reserves 74 95
B A Retained profits 1,351 1,346
2,711 2,832

BORARHEA B (M aF13(a) Proposed final dividends
(Note 13(a)) (228) (228)
R RCE-L Total reserves 2,483 2,604

AEBZHARBDIEREESEEMELE Y
HEERR  MEBEATBREN1995F5H29H
T HEATEIMEST - RIE B FFE19814F
RNAENE (BHER])  BARBA DR TRE -

HifEtm < EBBBFRBOT

(@) REFBEAEBBEEIEZRMBESR +
BAEZMBABEEREES A
RBmTEEE (NE) RBAEMZSE
MEBARZEARE-

(o) RIEEEE A5 SRR HA DI K 5 B 7 5
R RBRBZAERRETEMEE
R EADFE AR AT AR EE R K EE
HEBEERN - MAABERSREIKE -

© REMIAHEERERERITDEMN -
FIfrRBE A B R B 2B S QR 2R TE W
BED  BRBAERESN - TAIEDE
ZH e

d) WERHEEZERAMBaB1I.21ESBT
(20144 : 1.02{88 L) » (M5F27%31)

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

The contributed surplus of the Group represents credit arising
from a group reorganisation pursuant to a scheme of arrangement
which was completed on May 29, 1995. Under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) the contributed surplus is
distributable to the shareholders.

Details of the main items in other reserves are as follows:

(@)

According to the relevant laws and financial regulations, the
statutory reserve funds of the subsidiaries in Mainland China
may be used to make up prior years’ losses, if any, and to
increase the capital of the subsidiaries.

In accordance with the Korean Tax Incentive Limitation Law
and Korean Commercial Code, the statutory reserve fund and
other reserves of the joint venture in the Republic of Korea
may only be used to offset a future deficit or be transferred to
capital stock, but not for cash dividends.

According to the United Arab Emirates Commercial
Companies Law, the statutory reserve fund of the associate in
United Arab Emirates is not available for distribution except as
provided in the Federal Law.

Put option financial liability recognised of HK$121 million
(2014: HK$102 million). (Note 27 and 31)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

27. RHER LA E

20124 » AN % B 3t [A]Giordano Fashions
(L.L.C.) ([ Giordano UAE ]) KTextile and
Ready Garments Co. Ltd. ([ Giordano KSA])
2 IEVERR AR R OG E R - DA E SR I
ERRAZHB TR TAEBMEENTKAE
miERBEL1.0288 7T (20135 : 1.02188
JC) o & et HA M 7 AN & B 5E A UK B Giordano
UAE K Giordano KSAZ % 1734 & B& 05 A 17
- MEEINHEH ZEVKEEVLRE
ARERER  BMEHFTBELDSEMNIRE - BHR
HEAREBEUELEREN ARBAE -

F N A% B MGiordano KW Giordano
QAZ FETERR AR IR BRI (R0 Hi b - A E
AR EEEE TASBEMEANTHEE
iR B EA1,9008 B 7T © % Rom HiE R A
= B 52 A W B Giordano KW K Giordano QAZ
IRD = FEBERAIIT(E - M EMB BB - 3%
SUBaABEVSHEATERR  GHTE
EEEMRE FRURHHEEBEUETE
BEREYAEREAEE -

ZEOREHEAARERRBUBERSIR, R
ERBZRENSEERTABREM S LG
MEM (TABEHA) » RIEHKFRS 782
RENERABIBER/E=H -
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27. PUT OPTION LIABILITIES

In 2012, the Group recognized financial liabilities of approximately
HK$102 million in relation to the financial liabilities arising from
the put option granted to the non-controlling shareholders of
Giordano Fashions (L.L.C.) (“Giordano UAE”) and Textile and
Ready Garments Co. Ltd. (“Giordano KSA”) to sell their remaining
interests in these companies to the Group. Such put option is
exercisable any time after 3 years from completion of the Group’s
acquisition of the shares in Giordano UAE and Giordano KSA and
has no expiry dates. Such financial liabilities are initially recognized
at their fair value, which are the present value of the estimated
redemption amount. The put option liabilities are denominated in
U.S. dollars and are classified under current liabilities.

During the year, the Group recognized financial liabilities of
approximately HK$19 million in relation to the financial liabilities
arising from the put option granted to the non-controlling
shareholders of Giordano KW and Giordano QA to sell their
remaining interests in these companies to the Group. Such put
option is exercisable any time after 3 years from completion of the
Group’s acquisition of the shares in Giordano KW and Giordano
QA and has no expiry dates. Such financial liabilities are initially
recognized at their fair value, which are the present value of
the estimated redemption amount. The put option liabilities are
denominated in U.S. dollars under non-current liabilities.

The fair value of the put option liabilities is determined based
on discounted cash flows, using inputs that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs), which is
categorised as level 3 under the fair value hierarchy pursuant to
HKFRS 7.
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28. JEFE B IR
BEEHERBABEEIRETEERBEAR
& ALEER 2 B T 1F 2 MR -

AEERFAZECHEEERBBEZED
(R —#BE 2 AR IEHATD 0T -

EEBR(EE)/EE

28. DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method at the rates applicable in the respective
jurisdictions.

The movement in the Group’s deferred tax assets and liabilities
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction)
during the year is as follows:

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

mE
eHFE  RAE2
Accelerated  RFEF

accounting Unremitted Htth &t
(HEEETAEN) (In HKS millions) depreciation profits Others Total
0015415 1A At January 1, 2015 0 118 (35) 76
BhEZE Translation difference 1 ) 1 6)
RAEEFREA Credited to income statement - 6) (1) ]
20154127318 At December 31, 2015 6) 104 (35) 63
201441 A1A At January 1, 2014 &) 115 39) 60
BhEZE Translation difference 1 (3) 1 (1)
RABRRF/(EA) Charged/(credited) to income statement - 6 3 9
REBEENETA Credited to other comprehensive income - - (1) (1)
20144127318 At December 31, 2014 " 118 (35) 76

REBBARERELEHEEET,6008 T
(20144 : 8,600 B 70) E B RNFIE - b5
AERBELEHIEEEE F4,1008 7% 7T (2014
F 14,6008 % 70) 511 2015F12 431 Hi#E54F
RNER B ITBHoETEHEBNREEKME A
Az EREATRIE S5 -

ERERMFFRAIT  HEEMBH SRR —
MR EERBREERRERERBRE
BiREE - THSREFABERER R
HEERBRAIIK-

160 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

The Group has unrecognized deferred tax assets of HK$76
million (2014: HK$86 million) arising mainly from tax losses. These
unrecognized deferred tax assets to the extent of HK$41million
(2014: HK$46 million) will expire within 5 years from December
31, 2015. The remaining portion is mainly related to the losses of
subsidiaries in Australia and Germany which has no expiry date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the
same fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined after
appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance
sheet.
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28. EAEFI 1 (48) 28. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)
(KB EE TAEN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
RIERIEEE Deferred tax assets (48) (45)
EIEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 111 121
63 76

29. F& 14 BR 7R B2 E i B A3 K

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(B EETHBENMN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014

FEATBR 3K Trade payables 232 167
HEtEMRRENER Other payables and accrued

expenses 327 293

559 460

AT RENRK RO

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

(B EETHBENMN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
0Z30H 0 - 30 days 186 144
31Z60H 31 - 60 days 32 8
61ZE90H 61 — 90 days 8 4
#90H Over 90 days 6 11

232 167

N R ZREBEOARABTIE -
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The carrying amount of trade payables is stated approximately at

its fair value.
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30.BERBITER 30. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
=
Group

(KB EETHAENMN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
e kReEE Cash and cash equivalents 939 688
TR =88 A L2 H Bank deposits with maturity over

ZRITE BT R three months from date of deposits 137 227
He MIBTRET Total cash and bank balances 1,076 915

AEBULEZBEERBRTEEBESELTE
BIL (20145 : 3655BBL) 2ARBIR SR
RITHETE -

AEETHERNERNEAETF2.1% (2014
F:28%)  ZEGRZFHEPHRAEZRN
=f@A -

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

Included in the cash and bank balances of the Group are cash
and bank balances totaling HK$470 million (2013: HK$355 million)

denominated in Renminbi.

The effective interest rate on bank deposits of the Group was
2.1% (2014: 2.8%) per annum; these deposits have an average

maturity of more than 3 months.
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31. X565

R2015%F + N & E # N33% Giordano
Kuwait ([ Giordano KW) # % £49% 5&29%
Giordano Qatar ([ Giordano QA) FJ49%#E25 °

&R E 5t Giordano KW K Giordano QA
MHEENEBREAHBEANEENAENE
EEBAUALREREABIEEH RSO RAR
fBME -

2015912 A31H
December 31, 2015

31. BUSINESS COMBINATION

In 2015, the Group increased its economic interests in Giordano
Kuwait (“Giorando KW”) by 33% to 49% and in Giordano Qatar
(“Giordano QA”) by 29% to 49%.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for
Giordano KW and Giordano QA, the fair value of net assets
acquired, liabilities assumed and the non-controlling interest at the
acquisition date.

HK$ millions
BILEB
ReRE Purchase consideration in cash 16
FEATSER IR B Completion dividend payable 20
WSR2 AR R BUR D A RE Forfeiture of consideration payable due to
unsuccessful acquisition of entity in Oman (2)
wREED Total consideration transferred 34
£ B & fF AT %5 A Giordano KW K Fair value of equity interest in Giordano KW and
Giordano QAEz= H A F (B Giordano QA held before the business combination 7
REAE Total consideration 41
BABBZEERE " Net assets acquired:
VI - e KRR Property, plant and equipment 4
FE Inventories 4
JFE U BR 3k e L At U R Trade and other receivables 4
Be RIRITHE S Cash and bank balances 32
JE 1 BR SR % H A FE 51 3K Trade and other payables (6)
38
FE 12 )1 FE 2 Non-controlling interests (8)
WEmMEE 2BE Goodwill on acquisition 11
41
W kB Mt B N R FTsl B Analysis of the net cash inflow in repect of the
ZEERAFEIN: acquisition of subsidiaries:
BENReERE Cash consideration paid (16)
Friig 2 IR1THTF AR E Bank balances and cash acquired 32
W EEKT B A RIFTEI Bz Analysis of the net cash inflow from
BERAFEZOMN acquisition of subsidiaries 16
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31. XB & 0 (&)

o B8 Fr 2 A 0 B PR HE200 & 78 TTET A E 20154
12A31BAHFMBRFAHITHER -

NEBIRENWEE B B S EFREmER I
sl - BEERABEAEEIFFGiordano
KW K Giordano QA% B H149%1% E i, D R
50% ' BHEAEEEEMIEGHE - AEBRE
B2 EGiordano KW} Giordano QAT 7 # 7]
BoRrEk=ZENEORMNER I E
& 1 4% 1@ A Giordano KW Giordano QA% B
WE B XNZEEMN, M EGiordano KW
K Giordano QAR # 11 82 28 i 55 [B] %5,

BEEENBE11008 8T REAEEE
Giordano KW X Giordano QA & 4& 4 1% 8 Hf
EENEERZ HROEEB/B A NEK
FriS®i

NEBEEMETE S HF AT B Giordano KWH)
16%7#E 25 M Giordano QARI20%E %5 2 A i B
MER1S2008 8 L2 Wi - R EFT AZE2015
F12AMBEHFBERPHEMYE -

B UL EE 2 © Giordano KW & Giordano QAE Eh
2,7008 B T iHE R3008 BT A

R & Giordano KW X Giordano QAE2015%F 1
A1BREAMHAR - £2015F12831BHE
BRI 2R B 35 6 58 #8538 11,2008 7 7T Kk A
EAN100E AT ©

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

31. BUSINESS COMMITMENTS (continued)

Acquisition-related costs of HK$2 million have been charged to
administrative expenses in the consolidated income statement for
the year ended December 31, 2015.

The Group has chosen to recognize the non-controlling interest at
its proportionate share of net assets for this acquisition. The Group
does not own the majority of Giordano KW’s and Giordano QA’s
voting rights. However, the Group determined that it has control
over Giordano KW and Giordano QA and included them into the
scope of consolidation, considering the fact that the Group holds
49.0% of the voting rights of each of Giordano KW and Giordano
QA, is exposed to variable returns from its involvement with these
entities, and that the Group’s directors constitute the majority
of the members of the board of directors of Giordano KW and
Giordano QA.

The goodwill of HK$11 million arising from the acquistion is
attributable to the economies of scale expected from combining
the operations of the Group and Giordano KW and Giordano QA.
None of the goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

The Group recongized a gain of HK$2 million as a result of
measuring at fair value of its 16% equity interest in Giordano KW
and 20% equity interest in Giordano QA held before the business
combination. The gain is included in other gain in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Giordano KW and Giordano QA contributed HK$27 million sales
and HK$3 million profit since acquisition.

Had Giordano KW and Giordano QA been consolidated from
January 1, 2015, the consolidated income statement for the year
ended December 31, 2015 would show an increase in sales of
HK$12 million and profit of HK$1 million.
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31. XB & 0 (&)

F Py K% B MGiordano KWK Giordano
QAZ JEVE R AR AR SR 1% Rom HA b - DA E
I AREERE TASEMEEANT K AE
MER B EL1,9008 8 70 o Z R 0h BIER A
& B 52 ik Y B Giordano KW K Giordano QAZ
IR = F1&HERAIIT(E - M BB EBEE - %
LHBABYNTREATERER  BHFTER
SHENBeRERAPERE BLHREL
HEABEUELEREINAI ERBEE -

% 1% FGiordano KW Giordano QAZ JE# %
PR 2 RN EARE SN AEBNEIEIEIRRE
BT RIEBHE - LAIE S EMGiordano KWK
Giordano QAZ B # - 2RI R A S E T
B U B Giordano KW K Giordano QA Z %153 R
FRERATE  MBESHAE - 25 RA
BHEZITEEAUTRER ZESE ()
HNEEE GREBESERDO)ITERER
ZARTIE °
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31. BUSINESS COMMITMENTS (continued)

During the year, the Group recognized financial liabilities of
approximately HK$19 million in relation to the financial liabilities
arising from the put option granted to the non-controlling
shareholders of Giordano KW and Giordano QA to sell their
remaining interests in these companies to the Group. Such put
option is exercisable any time after 3 years from completion of the
Group’s acquisition of the shares in Giordano KW and Giordano
QA and has no expiry dates. Such financial liabilities are initially
recognized at their fair value, which are the present value of the
estimated redemption amount and were reclassified from equity.
The put option liabilities are denominated in U.S. dollars and are
classified under non-current liabilities.

In addition to the put option granted to non-controlling
shareholders of Giordano KW and Giordano QA, the Group was
also granted a call option from the non-controlling shareholders
with the rights to purchase their interests in Giordano KW and
Giordano QA. Such call option is exercisable any time after 2
years from completion of the Group’s acquisition of the shares
in Giordano KW and Giordano QA and has no expiry dates. The
exercise price of both the put and call options shall be the higher
of (a) the same per share valuation as the acquisition and (b) the
fair market value at the time of exercise of the option.

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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32, & IE
REPE 2 AKE

(a) M2015F12A31H  KREB R T EE
BT IRMEER Z A A AR K
HrgeEansRENEEERNT

32.

COMMITMENTS
Commitments under operating leases

(@) As at December 31, 2015, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease charges payable under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of retail shops, office premises,
factories and warehouses as set out below:

(X B EETREN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
1F R Within one year 711 787
118 E5F A After one year but within five years 723 761
5F A Over five years 7 13

1,441 1,561

KeMEANBETREBREGS He
EFHERBEEE - ETPAMZELEE
EHeIREREREHSANHER
AEZES (ARSERE) o LiAE
DEsEREEASFTE -

(b) M2015%F12A31H AEBERTEEH
RIBZTAIRARBHE  EERER
SEERBERADT

The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and
renewal rights. The operating lease rentals of certain outlets
are based on the higher of a minimum guaranteed rental or a
sales level based rental. The minimum guaranteed rental has
been used to arrive at the above commitments.

(b) As at December 31, 2015, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease income receivable under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of retail shops and factories as set

out below:
(KB BETRENN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
16 R Within one year 23 11
1612 1B5F A After one year but within five years 8 17

31 28

33. EAREE
R2015%F K%2014F 128318 » REEWEE
AERHEMEEE ERAERRAEREZ
BARAEAE o

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
= A X EBERLS

33.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Group had no material
capital commitments in respect of leasehold improvements,
furniture and fixtures.
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M4.EERBALRS

ERBA LA ERAREEN ST 3=
EERHBREERRFES - HITEERXR
FENZALT HAXMAZHHZMAE
FENZANITRREEBAL -

(a) RAFER AEEXZTHEBRARZ—
BEBBEBAREETAZ AN
““7 TEBRS EHEZERSF

2015912 A31H
December 31, 2015

34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related
if they are subject to common control or common significant
influence.

(@) During the year, certain subsidiaries traded with joint ventures
and associates in the ordinary and usual course of business.
Details relating to these transactions are as follows:

ManR
(X B E# T RENN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
HELR - Sales to:

—&ERA a joint venture 196 186

iR /NE] associates 6 20

202 206

FEEF R - Royalty income from:

—G5ERNT a joint venture 28 29

M12A318 W A 708 -

Amounts due from these related parties at December 31 are:

(KX B E#TRENN) (In HK$ millions) 2015 2014
JE U B B N T RA Amounts due from/(to):

aERNA joint ventures 3 9

B 2 2 A associates = 2

3 11

ﬁA2015¢12H31E| =t i BE B A = FIE
75 Bl iz B 7 JIE Ui K E b & R BR 7N o FE IR FK
Iéii@z%ﬁa,é IR R BN EREEE -

(b) EEEEE &M
EERAEEEREARSTAMBE -
HB S NE SRR T10BE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 F #

As at December 31, 2015, the above amounts due from
related parties are reflected in trade and other receivables. The
receivables are unsecured in nature, bear no interest and are
repayable on demand.

(b) Key management compensation

The directors regard the five highest paid individuals as
the key management of the Group whose remuneration is
disclosed in Note 10 to the financial statements.
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35. X EME LT
WL
MBARERE Place of
Name of subsidiary incorporation
BHRHEBERAR) B0
Bluestar Exchange Limited* Hong Kong
RERNKESAER AR 0
Bluestar Exchange Hong Kong
Worldwide Limited*
East Jean Limited* e
Hong Kong
Giordano (Australia) M
Pty. Limited* Australia
Giordano Fashions HE
(India) Private Limited* India
Giordano Fashions (L.L.C.)* (OEnk(=
BedxE
United Arab
Emirates

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

B WE B ER LSS

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

BEERHZ EERTR2EME
ECERES R AR A
Effective Issued and fully paid FEEK/CEHE
percentage of share capital Principal activities/
equity holding or registered capital place of operation
2015 2014
100 100 3,000,0000% RETERDH
SREEIBTZEER fRi REBAm/EE
3,000,000 ordinary shares Retail and distribution of
of HK$1 each apparel and accessories/
Hong Kong
100 100 650,000 RETERE
SREEIBTZEER REHAm/AE
650,000 ordinary shares Retail of apparel
of HK$1 each and accessories/
Taiwan
100 100 100,0008% RETERE
SREEI0ET SRR REHAm/AE
100,000 ordinary shares Retail of apparel
of HK$10 each and accessories/
Taiwan
92.8 92.8 700,0008% BETERE
SREEIRTZEER REBA RN
700,000 ordinary Retail of apparel
shares of AUD1 each and accessories/
Australia
50.9 50.9 10,000,000 BETERDH
BREEIHEER R RECB Ao/ E
LaR Retail and distribution of
10,000,000 ordinary shares apparel and accessories/
of INR10 each India
49 49 3,000%% RETERE
FIREE1T,0000 Bt 2 1 REHE R/MAiaia
b3 [
3,000 shares of Retail of apparel and

AED1,000 each

accessories/United
Arab Emirates
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35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BEERHZ EERTR2EME
ECERES B A 2 A
B4 2 Effective Issued and fully paid FEEK/CEHE
MEAR R Place of percentage of share capital Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding or registered capital place of operation
2015 2014
TR RAR R e 100 100 50,000 BETERDH
Giordano Limited* Hong Kong BREE100ET fR REBAm/EE
TER Retail and distribution of
50,000 ordinary apparel and accessories/
shares of HK$100 each Hong Kong
Giordano (M) Sdn. Bhd. ERAED 100 100 500,000 RETERE
Malaysia BREESRATEIT REHE /S RA D
Rl Retail of apparel
500,000 ordinary shares and accessories/
of RM1 each Malaysia
ERRRFAERAR” B 100 100 50,0002 7% BETERE
Giordano (Macau) Limited* Macau MR B HEREK RELH w2
MOP50,000 Retalil of apparel
represented by 2 quotas and accessories/Macau
Giordano Middle East FZE* (DR (=YF= 100 100 152 B EE1,000,000 BaniH
BRE-HF Pl Bk B s 8 2 IR 17 FlR 5 2 BE #3 FR am/
Dubai - 1 share of AED1,000,000 each MAABaRE -7
United Arab Distribution of apparel
Emirates and accessories/
Dubai - UAE
Giordano Originals GEipIb 100 100 1,900,002 M4 7T RETEREHRE
(Singapore) Private Singapore $$1,900,002 N ELH A b/ In3g
Limited Retailing and trading of
apparel and accessories/
Singapore
Giordano Vietnam Limited* BB 60 60 10,0008% BEGBRE
Hong Kong BREEIETZEER R EERE/ME
10,000 ordinary shares Joint Ventures investment
of USD1 each & franchising/Vietnam
Giordano (Cambodia) RIFE 80 - 1,000/% meTERE
Enterprises Limited* Cambodia SR EE4,000RHERH RECH A /R
1,000 shares Retail of apparel and
of KHR$4,000 each accessories/Cambodia
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35. T BB A (F)

35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BEERHZ ERTRZEAR
ERASE B A 2 A
B4 2 Effective Issued and fully paid FEEK/CEHE
WEAR AR Place of percentage of share capital Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding or registered capital place of operation
2015 2014
PT. Giordano Indonesia* gfe 40 40 1,5008% RETERR E#Am
Indonesia SR E(E1,000,000HEE LHEBHEER/HE
ZEBR Retail of apparel,
1,500 ordinary shares accessories and related
of IDR1,000,000 each products/Indonesia
FINRHEK )N 100 100 210,100,000 A R # RERR  RER
BRRAE(Hfit) Mainland China RMB210,100,000 HERE LR @/
Shenzhen Tiger B K BE
Garment Ltd.* (hote) Investment holding,
manufacturing and
retailing of apparel
and accessories/
Mainland China
EREEERAF N 100 100 1,0008% % 3 R REER KKEHR
Tiger Enterprises Limited Hong Kong BREEVET TRAE IR PR/ B KM
1,000 ordinary shares of Investment holding,
HK$1 each trading of garment
60,000,000 & & 2 R T fix products and provision
BREE1BT of management services/
60,000,000 non-voting Mainland China
deferred shares of
HK$1 each
Textile and Ready DERAATE 75 75 10,000 CETERERRHRR/
Garments Co. Ltd.” Kingdom of SRAEE2,7000HEDH DERAATE
Saudi Arabia a3 Retail of apparel and
10,000 shares of SR2,700 each accessories/Saudi Arabia
Walton International Ltd.* Hels 100 100 1025 HREZENE
Cayman Islands SRAEEIETZERR Licensing of trademarks

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

B WE B ERL

Gl

102 ordinary shares
of US$1 each
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35. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BEERHZ EERTR2EME
ERASE B A 2 A
B4 2 Effective Issued and fully paid FEEK/CEHE
MEAR R Place of percentage of share capital Principal activities/
Name of subsidiary incorporation equity holding or registered capital place of operation
2015 2014
Giordano Fashions B 49 16 3,000 RETERERE#Am/
W.LL. State of Kuwait BREGE100MEFENR B
a3 Retail of apparel and
3,000 shares accessories/State of Kuwait
of KD100 each
Gio Fashions W.L.L. FHER 49 20 20,000% RETERERERAm/
State of Qatar BREEI0EDH KM REB
20,000 shares Retail of apparel and
of QAR10 each accessories/State of Qatar

it - R E RO BB E L
* BEFEZINERE

MBHRREB

AEEFBHRON2016F3F3EKEEES

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 #
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Note: This is wholly foreign owned enterprise
*  Subsidiaries held indirectly

36. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors
on March 3, 2016.
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION
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20116 HOR + AR AL IEER200251 H24H
Rz BB e st 8 ([2002F BE AR #5121 )) - R
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On June 9, 2011, the Company terminated its then share option
scheme adopted on January 24, 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) and
adopted a new share option scheme (the “2011 Scheme”) on the
same date, but the options which have been granted and remained
outstanding and/or committed as of that date shall continue to follow
the provisions of the 2002 share option scheme and the Listing Rules.

Summary of the share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”)
is as follows:

(1) Purpose

As incentives or rewards for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the selected eligible persons.

(2) Eligible persons

() (a) any director or proposed director (whether executive or
non-executive, including any independent non-executive
director), employee or proposed employee (whether full
time or part time) of, or

(b) any individual for the time being seconded to work for;

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or
any company controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

(i) any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder or any company

controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

(i) any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder or a
company controlled by a controlling shareholder;

(@) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,
contractor, agent or representative of,

(b) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to,

(d) any customer of, or

(e) any landlord or tenant (including any sub-tenant) of;

and, for the purposes of the Scheme, shall include any company
controlled by one or more persons belonging to any of the above

classes of eligible persons.
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BREER
SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

Maximum number of shares

As at March 3, 2016, the maximum number of shares available for
issue is 156,900,702, representing approximately 9.99% percent
of the issued share capital of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible person

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to any eligible person (including
canceled, exercised and outstanding options), in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such date on
or after the date on which the option is granted as the directors
may determine in granting the option and expiring at the close of
business on such date as the directors may determine in granting
the option but in any event shall not exceed ten years from the
date of grant (which is the date of offer of grant if the offer for the
grant of the option is accepted).

(6) Acceptance of offers

)

C)

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is
HK$1.00.

Basis of determining the option exercise price

The option price per share payable on the exercise of an option is
to be determined by the directors provided always that it shall be
at least the higher of:

()  the closing price of the shares on the date of offer;

(i)  the average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and

(i) the nominal amount of a share.

The remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme remains in force until June 8, 2021.
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

EﬁﬁQEZ%E} MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS
RAREER - AQNFIERE Y S8EEEHsm T During the year, movements of the Company’s share options are set
out below:
20024 B R REET &) 2002 Share Option Scheme
RREHA
Number of share options
RER
20155 RERRH REREH & R2015%
1B1R2E8 Granted Exercised Canceled/ 12A31AZ&H  SROTFE
RERAL Balance as at during during  lapsed during  Balance as at Exercise price RHAH TS
Eligible person 111/2015 the year the year the year 12/31/2015 per share Date of grant Exercisable period
AT (B/8/E) (A/8/E)
HK$ (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

g%
Director
WER 800,000 - - - 800,000 4502 10/08/2010 03/25/2011 - 06/30/2020
Dominic Leo Richard [RWIN 1,700,000 - - - 1,700,000 4502 10/08/2010 03/22/2012 - 06/30/2020

2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000 4502 10/08/2010 03/01/2013 - 06/30/2020

5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000

174 GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

BRI AE 2% (8) MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
2002F & IR fE 5T &I () 2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)
BREHR
Number of share options
RER
R20155 RERRH REREH &N 20158
1B1B 248 Granted Exercised Canceled/ 12A31AZ&H  BROFE
FERAL Balance as at during during  lapsed during  Balance as at Exercise price REAH TEs
Eligible person 111/2015 the year the year the year 12/31/2015 per share Date of grant Exercisable period
V-7 (F/A/%) (F/A/%)
HKS (MM/DDIYYYY) (MM/DDIYYYY)
EELNER 98,000 - - - 98,000 3.8% 11/27/2007 11/27/2008 - 11/26/2017
Continuous 120,000 - - - 120,000 3.896 11/27/2007 11/27/2009 - 11/26/2017
Contract 158,000 - - - 158,000 3.896 1/27/2007 11/27/2010 - 11/26/2017
Employees 1,192,000 - 62,000 24,000 1,106,000 3.520 07/30/2008 10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
676,000 - - - 676,000 3.840 07/30/2008 10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
676,000 - - - 676,000 4160 07/30/2008 10/01/2008 - 09/30/2018
980,000 - 280,000 - 700,000 3.340 07/07/2010 03/22/2012 - 06/30/2020
4,150,000 - 140,000 310,000 3,700,000 3.340 07/07/2010 08/01/2013 - 06/30/2020
200,000 - - - 200,000 6.160 05/24/2011 03/22/2012 - 06/30/2020
300,000 - - - 300,000 6.160 05/24/2011 03/01/2013 - 06/30/2020
500,000 - - - 500,000 6.160 05/24/2011 02/28/2014 - 06/30/2020
At
Total 14,050,000 - 482,000 334,000 13,234,000

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 #

R

GIORDANO INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
A X EKAERLF

175



176

SHARE OPTION

INFORMATION

ERESE (E) MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
2011 F BB IR fE T &8l 2011 Share Option Scheme
BREHE
Number of share options
RER
A2015% REARH REARH HHEH R2015%
1A1R &4 Granted Exercised Canceled/ 12A31B2&H  BRAEE
FERAL Balance as at during during  lapsed during  Balance as at Exercise price REAH TEs
Eligible person 11112015 the year the year the year 12/31/2015 per share Date of grant Exercisable period
BT (F/B/E) (B/B/E)
HK$ (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)
E%
Director
Ishwar Bhagwandas CHUGANI 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 7.650 04/10/2013 02/28/2014 - 03/31/2022
1,800,000 - - 1,800,000 - 7.650 04/10/2013 03/04/2015 - 03/31/2022
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 7.650 04/10/2013 03/04/2016 - 03/31/2022
6,000,000 - - 1,800,000 4,200,000
WEH 100,000 - - - 100,000 5.000 08/24/2014 08/04/2015 - 03/23/2024
Dominic Leo Richard IRWIN 150,000 - - - 150,000 5,000 03/24/2014 08/04/2016 - 03/23/2024
200,000 - - - 200,000 5,000 08/24/2014 B3 1 Note 1 - 03/23/2024
250,000 - - - 250,000 5.000 08/24/2014 152 Note 2 - 03/23/2024
300,000 - - - 300,000 5,000 03/24/2014 133 Note 3 - 03/23/2024
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000
3 400,000 - - - 400,000 5.200 10/07/2011 03/22/2012 - 09/30/2021
CHAN Ka Wai 600,000 - - - 600,000 5.200 10/07/2011 08/01/2013 - 09/30/2021
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 5.200 10/07/2011 02/28/2014 - 09/30/2021
100,000 - - - 100,000 5,000 08/24/2014 08/04/2015 - 03/23/2024
150,000 - - - 150,000 5.000 08/24/2014 08/04/2016 - 03/23/2024
200,000 - - - 200,000 5.000 03/24/2014  Iii3H1 Note 1 - 03/23/2024
250,000 - - - 250,000 5,000 08/24/2014 Fi352 Note 2 - 03/23/2024
300,000 - - - 300,000 5.000 08/24/2014 733 Note 3 - 03/23/2024
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
Ko Note:
7. D016 FELFEXE N EH 1. The day after 2016 final results announcement
2. 2017ELFEXENTTEH 2. The day after 2017 final results announcement
3. D018 FXENHEH 3. The day after 2018 final results announcement
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

ERESE (E) MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
2011 B AR R ot 28I (4E) 2011 Share Option Scheme (continued)
BREHE
Number of share options
RER
R20155 RERRH REREH &N R2015%
1R1B 28 Granted Exercised Canceled/ 12A31AZ&H  BROFE
RERAL Balance as at during during  lapsed during  Balance asat Exercise price ReAH THH
Eligible person 111/2015 the year the year the year 12/31/2015 per share Date of grant Exercisable period
AT (B/R/E) (B/B/E)
HKS (MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)
EELNER 2,962,000 - - 228,000 2,734,000 5.200 10/07/2011 03/22/2012 - 09/30/2021
Continuous 6,038,000 - - 480,000 5,558,000 5.200 10/07/2011 08/01/2013 - 09/30/2021
Contract 16,250,000 - - 1,550,000 14,700,000 5.200 10/07/2011 02/28/2014 - 09/30/2021
Employees 742,000 - - 106,000 636,000 5.380 06/12/2012 08/01/2013 - 12/31/2021
300,000 - - - 300,000 5380 06/12/2012 02/28/2014 - 12/31/2021
500,000 - - - 500,000 5380 06/12/2012 08/04/2015 - 12/31/2021
1,760,000 - - - 1,760,000 7.650 04/10/2013 02/28/2014 - 03/31/2022
2,640,000 - - 2,640,000 - 7.650 04/10/2013 08/04/2015 - 03/31/2022
4,400,000 - - - 4,400,000 7.650 04/10/2013 03/04/2016 - 03/31/2022
6,048,000 - - 510,000 5,538,000 5.000 08/24/2014 08/04/2015 - 03/23/2024
9,022,000 - - 756,000 8,266,000 5.000 08/24/2014 08/04/2016 - 03/23/2024
12,126,000 - - 1,020,000 11,106,000 5.000 08/24/2014 T3 Note 1 - 03/23/2024
15,230,000 - - 1,284,000 13,946,000 5.000 08/24/2014 ii32 Note 2 - 03/23/2024
18,204,000 - - 1,530,000 16,674,000 5,000 03/24/2014 Bi£E3 Note 3 - 03/23/2024
- 7,732,000 - 258,000 7,474,000 3792 04/09/2015 08/04/2016 - 03/31/2025
- 7,922,000 - 262,000 7,660,000 3792 04/09/2015 B13E1 Note 1 - 03/31/2025
- 500,000 - - 500,000 4090 07/10/2015 08/04/2016 - 06/30/2025
- 500,000 - - 500,000 4,090 07/10/2015 131 Note 1 - 06/30/2025
96,222,000 16,654,000 - 10,624,000 102,252,000
it 340,000 - - - 340,000 5.200 10/07/2011 08/22/2012 - 09/30/2021
Others 720,000 - - - 720,000 5.200 10/07/2011 08/01/2013 - 09/30/2021
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 5.200 10/07/2011 02/28/2014 - 09/30/2021
510,000 - - - 510,000 5,000 08/24/2014 08/04/2015 - 03/23/2024
758,000 - - - 758,000 5.000 08/24/2014 08/04/2016 - 03/23/2024
1,020,000 - - - 1,020,000 5.000 08/24/2014 B13E1 Note 1 - 03/23/2024
1,282,000 - - - 1,282,000 5.000 08/24/2014 132 Note 2 - 03/23/2024
1,530,000 - - - 1,530,000 5.000 08/24/2014 133 Note 3 - 03/23/2024
9,160,000 - - - 9,160,000
At
Total 115,382,000 16,654,000 - 2,840,000 119,612,000
Biat - Note:
1. D016 F 2 FERENTEH 1. The day after 2016 final results announcement
2. D017 FE L FEXENTEH 2. The day after 2017 final results announcement
3. D018 F L FH#EZ N TTEH 3. The day after 2018 final results announcement
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION
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MOVEMENT OF SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Notes:

1. The weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the date
on which the options were exercised by the Continuous Contract Employees
was HK$3.77.

2. The market value per share as at December 31, 2015 was HK$3.63.

3. The closing price of the shares immediately before the dates on which the
options were granted were as follows:

Closing price per share
Immediately before

Date of grant the date of grant

April 9, 2015 HK$3.85

July 10, 2015 HK$3.94
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SHARE OPTION INFORMATION

VALUATION OF SHARE OPTIONS

The fair value per each option granted during the year was estimated
on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model

with the following assumptions:

R BH 201554 A9H 2015%7H10H
Date of grant Apr 9, 2015 July 10, 2015
TEE 3.792% 7T 4.097% 7T
Exercise price HK$3.792 HK$4.09
BRESE

Number of options 15,654,000 1,000,000
BhEzgRAFTEE 0.1187 7T 0.265% 7T
Fair value per option HK$0.118 HK$0.265
i 3 b2 A X (Mt FEa)

Risk free interest rate (Note a) 1.043% 1.117%
SR ESE N 42,0781l 38.07%8 1l

Expected dividend per share

T8 HA % & (M 5Eb)
Expected volatility (Note b)

BHBEREFS

Expected life of options

B

a. EE R T FE RN A2 I FRINER 2 EH
ARHZEE -

b. FEH G R BER AR AR EREF o) K IE -

c. TH 52 o AT AT Rl E (BER AR FEH T HEEH
BREREIE - L BRREIF N LR FWE B &
HEREZ LA BEEXEANZE -
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42.0 HK cents

38.0 HK cents

38.8% 38.2%
65 65
6 years 6 years
Note:
a. The risk free rate is based on the approximate yield of five-year Exchange
Fund Note on the grant date.
b. The expected volatility is based on volatility of the stock price of the Company
over the past year.
c. The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires input of highly subjective

assumptions. Any changes in the subjective input assumptions may materially

affect the estimation of the fair value of an option.
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IMPORTANT DATES
Closure of Register of Members

Annual General Meeting

May 24, 2016 to May 27, 2016
(both days inclusive)

Proposed Final Dividend

June 6, 2016 to June 8, 2016
(both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting

May 27, 2016

Dividends

Interim Dividend 12.5 HK cents per share
Paid on September 25, 2015

Proposed Final Dividend 14.5 HK cents per share

Payable on June 24, 2016

STOCK CODE

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong : 709

Bloomberg . 709 HK

Reuters 0709.HK

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Giordano International Limited

5th Floor, Tin On Industrial Building
777-779 Cheung Sha Wan Road
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2746 4668

Facsimile (852) 2370 8864

e-mail . investorrelations@giordanogroup.com
WEBSITE

www.giordano.com.hk
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